
 

SYRACUSE CITY 
 

Syracuse City Council Work Session Notice  

July 10, 2012 – 6:00 p.m.  

Large Conference Room 

 Municipal Building, 1979 W. 1900 S. 

 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Syracuse City Council will meet in a work session on Tuesday,  

July 10, 2012, at 6:00 p.m. in the large conference room of the Municipal Building, 1979 W. 1900 S., 
Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. The purpose of the work session is to discuss/review the following 
items: 

 
a. Meeting agenda for the Regular Council Meeting to begin at 7:00 p.m. (5 min.) 

 
b. Report from Parks and Recreation Director Kresta Robinson re: Heritage Days. (5 min.) 

 
c. Review agenda item 5: Proposed Resolution updating the consolidated fee schedule. (5 min.)  
 
d. Presentation from “Citizens for a Better Syracuse” and Syracuse Arts Academy relative to the 

West Davis Corridor.  (15 min.) 
 

e. Report from ad hoc committee. (25 min.) 
 

f. Council business. (5 min.) 
 
*** Meetings of the Syracuse City Council may be conducted via electronic means pursuant to Utah 

Code Ann. § 52-4-207.  In such circumstances, contact will be established and maintained via 

electronic means and the meeting will be conducted pursuant to the Rules, Policies and Procedures 

established by the Governing Body for electronic meetings.  Councilmember Peterson has requested 

an opportunity to participate in this meeting via electronic means.*** 

 
 

~~~~~ 
In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the City Offices at 
801-825-1477 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted within the Syracuse City limits on this 6th day 
of July, 2012 at Syracuse City Hall on the City Hall Notice Board and at http://www.syracuseut.com/.  A copy was also provided to the Standard-Examiner on 
July 6, 2012. 
  CASSIE Z. BROWN, CMC 
  SYRACUSE CITY RECORDER 

   



  
 

Agenda Item #b Report from Parks and Recreation Director Kresta 

Robinson regarding Heritage Days. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Parks and Recreation 

Director Kresta Robinson. 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



  
 

Agenda Item #d Presentation from “Citizens for a Better Syracuse” 

and Syracuse Arts Academy relative to the West 

Davis Corridor.  

 

Factual Summation  
• Please see the following email regarding this agenda item. 

• Please see the attached City Council and Planning Commission Minutes regarding 

the Syracuse Arts Academy. 

 
From: Craig Johnson [mailto:craigajent@gmail.com]  
Sent: Monday, July 02, 2012 11:04 AM 

To: Cassie Brown; Robert Rice 

Cc: brian@lebaronjensen.com; Craig Johnson; Jamie NagleYahoo; bduncan@syracuse.com 
Subject: Agenda item for July 10 

 

This is a request to add an agenda item to our July 10th work session meeting. I have 

discussed this with Brian Duncan and he and I would like to add this to the agenda. 

Please add an item for a presentation from the citizens group, Citizens for a Better 

Syracuse, as well as the Syracuse Arts Academy and discussion. I was approached and 

asked for them to be on the agenda. They would like 15 minutes for the 

presentation/discussion. The content of the presentation are issues and concerns related to 

the West Davis Corridor. 

Sincerely, 

Craig Johnson 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 





















  
 

Agenda Item #e Report from Ad Hoc Committee. (25 min.)  

 

Factual Summation  
• Presenting for the committee is Councilmembers Doug Peterson and Craig 

Johnson. Any questions regarding this item may be directed at them.  

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



 

SYRACUSE CITY 
 

Syracuse City Council Agenda  
July 10, 2012 - 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 
Municipal Building, 1979 W. 1900 S. 

 
 

1. Meeting called to order 
Invocation or thought** 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Adopt agenda 

 

2. Presentation of the Syracuse City and Wendy’s “Award for Excellence” to Wyatt Jensen and Savannah Holland.  
 

3. Approval of Minutes: 
a. Regular Meeting of February 14, 2012 
b. Special Meeting of March 14, 2012 

 

4. Public Comment: This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas.  Please limit your 
comments to three minutes.   
 

5. Public Hearing – Proposed Resolution R12-19 updating and amending the Syracuse City Consolidated Fee 
Schedule.  

 

6. Authorize Mayor Nagle to execute the Interlocal Agreement for Metro S.W.A.T.  
 

7. Proposed Ordinance No. 12-19, granting the local Fire Official the authority to prohibit the use of any ignition 
source, including fireworks, lighters, matches, and smoking materials within the city – and penalty.  

 

8. Proposed Resolution R12-20 dictating the format of the Syracuse City Council meeting minutes.  
 

9. Proposed Resolution R12-21 rescinding Resolution R08-23, which set forth rules for conducting public meetings of 
the City Council and Planning Commission using electronic means.  

 

10. Proposed Ordinance No. 12-18, amending the Syracuse City General Plan adopted in 1976, as amended.  
 

11. Public Hearing – Proposed Ordinance No. 12-20 adopting Title Two rewrites of the Syracuse City Municipal Code 
pertaining to Administration.  

 

12. Councilmember Reports. 
 

13. Mayor Report. 
 

14. City Manager Report. 
 

15. Adjourn 
 

 
 

~~~~~ 
In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the City Offices at 
801-825-1477 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted within the Syracuse City limits on this 6th day 
of July, 2012 at Syracuse City Hall on the City Hall Notice Board and at http://www.syracuseut.com/.  A copy was also provided to the Standard-Examiner on 
July 6, 2012. 
  CASSIE Z. BROWN, CMC 
  SYRACUSE CITY RECORDER 
 
**Members of the public who desire to offer a thought or invocation at Syracuse City Council Meetings shall contact the City Administrator at least two (2) 
weeks in advance of the meeting.  Request will be honored on a first come, first serve basis.  In the event there are no requests to offer a comment or 
prayer, the Mayor may seek opening comment or prayer from those members of the public attending the meeting or from City Staff or City Council.   

 



 

 

Agenda Item “2” Presentation of the Syracuse City and Wendy’s 

“Award for Excellence” to Wyatt Jensen and 

Savannah Holland.  

 

Factual Summation 

• Any questions regarding this item may be directed at Community and Economic Development 

Director Mike Eggett.  

• Please see the attached memorandum provided by the Community and Economic 

Development Department. 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

July 10, 2012 



Mayor  
Jamie Nagle  
 
City Council  

Brian Duncan 
Craig Johnson 
Karianne Lisonbee 
Douglas Peterson  
Larry D. Shingleton 
 

City Manager 

Robert D. Rice 

 

 

 

 

 

 
        
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Community & Economic Development Department 

Date: July 10, 2012 

Subject: Presentation of the Syracuse City & Wendy’s Award for Excellence to Wyatt 

Christensen and Savannah Holland. 
 

 

Background 
The City wishes to recognize citizens who strive for excellence in athletics, academics, arts and/or 

community service.  To that end, in an effort to recognize students and individuals residing in the City, 

the Community and Economic Development, in conjunction with Jeff Gibson, present the recipients for 

the “Syracuse City & Wendy’s Award for Excellence.”  
 

“Syracuse City & Wendy’s Award for Excellence” 
This monthly award recognizes the outstanding performance of a male and female who excel in athletics, 

academics, arts and/or community service. The following are the individuals selected for the award and 

the reasoning for their selection:   
 

Wyatt Christensen 
“Wyatt had an amazing season, while participating in our 2012 Minor League baseball program. 

He continually displayed outstanding leadership, and sportsmanship, game in and game out. 

Wyatt was also selected to the 2012 Minor League East All-Star team, and he led his team to a 7-

1 victory over the West All-Star team. “ 
 

Savannah Holland 
“Savannah is a well-rounded athlete. She has participated in several Syracuse Recreation 

programs, but most recently she was involved in both our Softball and Tennis programs. 

Savannah is an incredibly quick learner, and is always competing at an extremely high level of 

play. She continually carries a positive attitude and constantly has a smile on her face.” 
 

Both students will: 

• Receive a certificate and be recognized at a City Council meeting 

• Have their picture put up in City Hall and the Community Center 

• Have a write up in the City Newsletter, Facebook, Twitter, and website 

• Be featured on the Wendy’s product TV 

• Receive $10 gift certificate to Wendy’s 
 

Recommendation 

The Community & Economic Development Department hereby recommends that the Mayor and 

City Council present the “Syracuse City & Wendy’s Award for Excellence” to Wyatt 

Christensen and Savannah Holland.  



  
 

Agenda Item #3 Approval of Minutes: 

a. Regular Meeting of February 14, 2012 

b. Special Meeting of March 14, 2012 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Recorder Cassie 

Brown 

• Please see attached meeting minutes. 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Regular Meeting, February 14, 2012.     1 
   2 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on February 14, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the 3 
Council Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers: Craig A. Johnson 6 
                            Karianne Lisonbee 7 

 Douglas Peterson  8 
     Larry D. Shingleton 9 
 10 
  Mayor Jamie Nagle 11 
  City Manager Robert Rice 12 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 13 
   14 
City Employees Present:  15 
  Police Chief Brian Wallace 16 

Community Development Director Michael Eggett 17 
City Attorney Will Carlson 18 
Information Technologies Director TJ Peace 19 
Finance Manager Steve Marshall 20 
Police Detective Corey Rowley 21 
City Planner Kent Andersen 22 

            23 
Visitors Present: Cliff Sorensen  Angel Olavarrieta  Laura Sorensen 24 
  Jordyn Cook  Katelyn Farmer  Malynda Pogue 25 
  Zach Lechman  Ronald Hampton  Corey Wilcox 26 
  Angie Sloan  Julie Heaps  Brent Vandermeide 27 
  Gary Pratt  Dean Rasburne  Holly Rasburne 28 
  Lurlen Knight  Krystal Hassard  Vicki Hassard 29 
  Markasa Phillips  David Mcelroy  Charlotte Duncan 30 
  Lisa Jamison  Chad Thompson  Trent Sorensen 31 
  Emily Sorensen  Gerreld Jacobs  Brian Duncan 32 
  Ryan Chandler  Lisa McKnight  Brent Briggs 33 
  Lindsay Jackson  Julie Bachman  George Bachman 34 
  Mike Norton  Dorathy Law  Charlie Black 35 
  Alan Briggs  Teri Briggs  Joshua Simpson 36 
  Jennifer Stockdale Garciela Paz  Caryn  Doman 37 
  Cathy Wilcox   38 
        39 

1.  Meeting Called to Order/Adopt Agenda 40 

Mayor Nagle called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. as a regularly scheduled meeting, with notice of time, place, 41 

and agenda provided 24 hours in advance to the newspaper and each Councilmember.  She asked all visitors present if any 42 

wished to provide an invocation or thought; Councilmember Peterson provided an invocation.  Boy Scout Jefferson Wooley,  43 

then led all present in the Pledge of Allegiance.   44 

COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE AGENDA.  COUNCILMEMBER 45 

PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   46 

 47 

2.  Approval of Minutes  48 

 The minutes of the regular meeting of January 10, 2012 were reviewed. 49 

DRAFT 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 2

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO TABLE APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE 1 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 10, 2012 AS PRESENTED.  COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONDED 2 
THE MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   3 

The minutes of the Special Meeting of February 2, 2012  were reviewed.   4 
COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 5 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2012 AS PRESENTED.  COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON SECONDED THE MOTION.  6 
ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   7 
 8 

2.  Public Comments  9 

Mike Norton, 2615 W. 1300 S., stated that he hopes that the Council will re-open the discussion regarding an 10 

interchange for the West Davis Corridor as it travels through the City.  He stated that there are other options to consider and 11 

the Council has had the chance to review maps of areas of the City to understand the impacts the proposed interchange will 12 

have on the surrounding neighborhoods.  He stated that there will be properties that will be made into islands and the people 13 

living on those properties will be cut off from their neighborhoods.  He added that people that live on the east side of Bluff 14 

Road will lose their backyards because of the interchange.  He stated that he is simply asking that the Council reevaluate the 15 

interchange and consider pushing it further to the west in the area of 4200 West.  He stated it will be easier for the people 16 

living in that area to absorb the impact because they have larger tracts of land.   17 

Ken Green, 2286 W. 2175 S., stated that he wanted to stand in opposition to the Bluff Road alternative for the West 18 

Davis Corridor.  He stated that selecting that option is not an example of forward thinking for the community.  He stated that 19 

20 to 30 years down the City will still need a road built further to the west.  He stated that in reviewing the maps that UDOT 20 

has presented it is clear to see that there are natural feeders into the A route.  He stated that in the future the construction 21 

trends will not be the same as they are now according to population projections.  He stated that the road will run directly 22 

through the most populated and constricted part of the community.  He stated the A route would help to better develop 23 

Antelope Island and may draw more retail establishments to that area of the City.  He stated that the Bluff Road interchange 24 

would negatively impact at least 1,000 residents.  He stated that their overall quality of life will be reduced. 25 

Nathan Miller, 2107 S. Bluff Road, stated that he knows that the Council has just finished a conversation with 26 

UDOT and there are a lot of residents interested in what is happening.  He stated he understands the history of the project, but 27 

there are some new members of the City Council and he would like to ask them to reopen the issue for further discussion.  He 28 

stated that the homes located around Antelope Drive will not be relocated; instead they will be surrounded by a freeway 29 

system and other roads.  He stated that he is trying to think if that is what the Council envisioned a year ago when they voted 30 

to support the Bluff Road option.  He stated that Antelope Drive is the entrance to the City and the interchange will be a mess 31 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 3

and give the City a bad image.  He stated that he understands that residents will be impacted no matter where the road is 1 

constructed, but one suggestion he would like to make is for the City to reorganize the transportation committee that was 2 

assembled by the Planning Commission a year ago; the committee was ultimately disbanded.  He stated that the committee 3 

had started to discuss this project, but the Council decided to stop that from happening.  He stated this is a great opportunity 4 

for the citizens to get involved and discuss how to make the City look and feel like they would like.  He stated it is a good 5 

opportunity to create a vision for the City.  He asked the Council to try to look into the future 10 to 50 years from now and 6 

determine if the legacy they are proposing is really what they want.  He stated that he knows that UDOT will listen to the 7 

City Council as much as they will listen to the residents, but he reiterated that he would encourage the Council to reopen the 8 

discussion so that “we” can make Syracuse the great city it is.   9 

Ronald Hampton, 2637 W. 1200 S., stated that he will not rehash all that has been said so far, but he feels that 10 

UDOT made their recommendation just to hear the citizens complain.  He stated that their plan is pathetic.  He stated that the 11 

new fire station will be located on the west side of the road and it will take them an extra two minutes to get wherever they 12 

need to go.  He stated that if one’s house is burning, they do not want it to burn for an extra two minutes. 13 

Dorathy Law, 3178 S. 3000 W., stated that she would like to thank the City and UDOT for all their hard work as this 14 

is an impossible decision to make.  She stated that she does not want to get too detailed in her comments, but she thinks that 15 

“we” are making the right decision.  She stated that Bluff Road has been preserved as a major thoroughfare for years and she 16 

feels using that original alignment is appropriate and fair, though some homes will be impacted that may not have been 17 

included in the original planning.  She stated that she knows that there will be some movement and flexibility on the route, 18 

but she knows that UDOT will consider every family living in the area and hopefully come up with the best decision that 19 

causes the least amount of impact.  She stated she feels it is possible to have the best of both worlds; a beautiful City and a 20 

thriving business community.  She stated that business leaders have expressed what they need to make that happen.  She 21 

reiterated that she wanted to thank the Council for all of their hard work.  She stated that she knows that not everyone will be 22 

happy and that makes the decision hard, but she noted that homes can be rebuilt or moved while farmlands cannot be moved 23 

or mitigated.  She stated that the rate at which farmland is being lost is scary and she applauded the Council for trying to 24 

maintain the focus on farmland in order to keep Syracuse special; it makes “us” what “we” are.   25 

Charlie Black, 3178 S. 3000 W., stated that the Council is in a tough position as well and so are the residents.  He 26 

stated that no one wants a road to go through their home, farmlands, or through wetlands.  He stated, however, that wetlands 27 

can be mitigated and a new home can be purchased to replace an old one, but neither of those options are available when it 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 4

comes to farmlands.  He stated that farmland requires a special climate, irrigation system, and soils.  He stated that if the road 1 

follows alternative A, his farm is just a small portion of the farmland that will be affected.  He stated that one of the best and 2 

last prime coil climates in Utah is in west Syracuse on the Leo Cook property.  He stated that it is probably the best vegetable 3 

farming area left in the State and if the highway goes through the middle of it, it will remove a high percentage of that ground 4 

and likely put farms out of business.  He stated that if one or two farms go out of business it will make it hard for the rest of 5 

them to stay in business because they all rely so heavily on one another.  He stated that the farmlands balance wetlands to 6 

provide a better habitat.  He stated that there are thousands of geese that land on his farm to eat grain.  He stated this is a 7 

unique and neat place and it would be a shame to ruin it because it is irreplaceable.   8 

Chad Thompson, 1686 S. 2660 W., stated that he lives on the corner of Antelope Drive in the Huckleberry 9 

subdivision and he house would actually remain intact even though the house next to him would be taken out.  He stated that 10 

Mr. Black is correct that houses can be replaced or relocated, but he failed to mention that some houses will remain and be 11 

surrounded by roads.  He stated that his property value will drop to nearly zero and he will be surrounded on three sides by a 12 

road.  He stated that he has younger kids that will not be allowed to play outside because of those roads.  He stated that the 13 

design of the interchange is ludicrous.  He stated that his other major concern has not yet been raised this evening.  He stated 14 

that when his family moved to Syracuse they knew that the road could possibly follow the Bluff Road alignment, but at that 15 

time the Syracuse Arts Academy had not yet been built.  He stated that his kids attend that school and the City should not 16 

have approved its location if they knew it would be located within feet of the road.  He stated there are a lot of children 17 

whose safety will be jeopardized by locating the road so close to the school.  He stated he honestly believes that when the 18 

project is done the intersection and interchange will be the laughing stock of the corridor.  He stated that he would like the 19 

Council to consider other options in order to provide better safety for residents on the community since that is what is most 20 

important.   21 

Tom Bland, no address given, stated that he too is opposition to alternative A and he would like to the Council to 22 

reconsider their decision.  He stated that he moved to Syracuse in 1996 for the improved quality of life.  He stated that the 23 

quality of life in Syracuse is rated higher than the average of the state and the entire nation.  He stated that he would beg the 24 

Council to reconsider their decision so that Syracuse residents can continue to have a high quality of life. 25 

Marva Rampton, 1700 S. Bluff Road, stated that there are several things about this discussion that bother her.  She 26 

stated that farmlands are very important.  She stated that farmlands are important too, but there are farmlands throughout the 27 

state and farmlands are not unique to Syracuse.  She stated that one thing that the farmers have going for them is that they are 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 5

protected by the government while the average citizen is not.  She stated that Charlie Black’s farm should be considered 1 

commercial property rather than farmland.  She stated that the option that the Council has supported will create more safety 2 

issues by separating the fire department from the rest of the City.  She stated that in less than two minutes someone can die in 3 

a fire and if there are going to be neighborhoods that will be locked in by streets it will be difficult for emergency responders 4 

to reach them.  She stated that Bluff Road is also a historical road and she does not think that the people that decided to set 5 

land aside for the road in that area had any idea what Syracuse would grow to be like.  She stated that Syracuse is not through 6 

growing and she asked if the Council really wants the freeway to run through the center of the City rather than locating it 7 

further to the west.   8 

TJ Jensen, 3242 S. 1000 W., stated that he would like to point out that the fire department currently has access issues 9 

because of busy school traffic in the area.  He then noted that there was recently some “drama” surround the appointment of a 10 

new Fire Chief.  He stated the Council ultimately appointed a Fire Chief and he congratulated Chief Froerer.   11 

Randy Miller, 1531 W. 2175 S., stated that he does not live very close to any of the proposed West Davis Corridor 12 

routes, but he knows that an injury to one is an injury to all.  He stated that the Council and citizens should collectively tell 13 

UDOT to “stuff it”.  He stated that the road is not good for the farmers or the citizens.  He stated that he would like to make a 14 

quick book recommendation; he suggested that the Council read The Power Broker, which is a book about Robert Moses and 15 

the fall of New York.  He stated that Mr. Moses wielded power with transportation in order to ruin the city and make it so 16 

that only a certain class of people could live there.   17 

Bruce Schofield, no address given, stated that the last gentleman that spoke asked why the road is needed and where 18 

it is going to be located.  He stated that he has attended a lot of the meetings to discuss this project and he wanted to review 19 

some of the options.  He stated that the road could be located near 4200 West, but there is a new school and the North Davis 20 

Sewer District sewer plant in that vicinity.  He stated that from what he understands the sewer plant has a lot of equipment 21 

that cannot be located near vibration; he added that a lot of people don’t often think about the Buffalo Point Elementary 22 

School, but there are lot of kids in that area as well.  He stated that school would be impacted as much as the Arts Academy.  23 

He stated that his opinion is that a dike should be built to run from the south end of Antelope Island from Freemont Island to 24 

Promontory.  He stated that he has maintained that opinion throughout this entire process, but everyone has told him that the 25 

road would be too far from the City. 26 

Lurlen Knight, 400 S. 2000 W., stated that he noticed the City recently sold 60 acres of park land.  He stated that if 27 

that is the case, he thinks the City needs to buy park land somewhere else in the City to replace the portion that was sold.  He 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 6

then stated that he also noticed an item on tonight’s agenda dealing with the reissuing of bonds.  He stated that he wants to 1 

compliment the Council for doing that.  He stated that interest rates are so low and a lot of money can be saved over the life 2 

of the bond.  He stated when the bonds were first issued the City worked with Zion’s Bank, but they also worked with a 3 

company that sold bonds on the national level.  He stated that he would encourage the Council to see if they can get a better 4 

rate on the national level again.  He noted that the NDSD just refinanced some of their bonds and the taxpayers will save 5 

substantial money as a result.  He then stated he wanted to comment about the West Davis Corridor.  He stated that there are 6 

a lot of people that will be impacted by the road.  He stated he can remember years ago when Interstate-15 was being 7 

constructed through Ogden.  He stated that Ogden fought the project and pushed the freeway to the west and when the 8 

freeway finally opened it just about killed Ogden economically because motorists could easily bypass the City.  He stated that 9 

one of the ways into Ogden was through Riverdale and they took advantage of that and made a lot of money in sales tax 10 

dollars as a result.  He stated that if the road in Syracuse is pushed too far to the west, people will not use it as much as they 11 

would if it were closer to the City center.  He stated Syracuse is a destination City right now and if the road were closer to the 12 

City center, people from Layton and Clearfield would come and use that road to get to Salt Lake rather than using Interstate -13 

15.  He stated that would make Syracuse a through fare and the business districts would benefit as a result.  He stated he 14 

understands the difficulties that the Council is facing, but he asked them to consider any potential impacts to the entire City. 15 

Larry Kirby, no address given, stated he was here when the City Council approved the Bluff Road option and he felt 16 

somewhat bulldozed over.  He stated that he hopes that some of the newer citizens will have as much input in this process as 17 

those that have lived here for many years.  He stated that “we” will look back 15 to 20 years from now and much of the 18 

farmland will be gone no matter where the road ends up being constructed.  He stated that kids of farmers will choose to sell 19 

farmland rather than continuing to farm it.  He stated that “we” should move cows, not people even though the farms have 20 

some very emotional rhetoric.  He stated he does not understand why it is more appropriate to move so many homes instead 21 

of impacting a small portion of farmland.   22 

Mayor Nagle stated that the Council has heard everything that has been said tonight about the West Davis Corridor.  23 

She stated that she understands that no matter where the road is constructed it is going to be impactful and the City is 24 

committed to working with UDOT to try to minimize those impacts whenever possible.  She stated that she simply wanted 25 

the citizens to be aware that the Council is aware of all their concerns. 26 

 27 

3.  Public Hearing – Proposed Resolution R12-07 adjusting the Syracuse  28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 7

City budget for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2012. 1 

A staff memo from Finance Director Steve Marshall explained that the budget opening document itemizes 2 
recommended budget line item changes to revenue and expenditures for all city funds. Throughout the year it becomes 3 
necessary to review the budget and make changes reflecting what has occurred since the initial budget adoption in June 2011.   4 
The memo reviewed some of the highlights: 5 

 6 
• The brightest spot with this budget opening is the fact that sales tax revenue is projected to finish up $200,000 over 7 

the prior budget year.  Within this budget opening we are proposing that all of these funds go to roads, as well as an 8 
additional $115,580 for a total increase funding to the roads of $315,580.   9 

 10 
This increase in funding for the roads accomplishes two things.  First and most important, it is an amount that 11 
exceeds our salaries & benefits in the B&C roads fund ($306,560 – salaries & benefits in B&C fund) effectively 12 
eliminating salaries & benefits from the B&C roads funds.  Second, it allows us to complete two more road projects 13 
bringing us to a total of 3 road projects and $512,255 for FY12.  14 

 15 
• Another highlight is that we are adding an impact fee road project to the budget in the amount of $600,000.  This 16 

would go to widening roads in our city (i.e. 700 South) that have the greatest need for improvement based on 17 
impacts from new residential homes. 18 

   19 
• So between the 3 projects above and this impact road project the city is looking at putting approximately $1,112,225 20 

to our roads in FY12.  21 
 22 

• The total general fund revenue budget excluding sales tax ($339,650 – $200,000) increased by $139,650.  The total 23 
general fund expense budget excluding the transfer to B&C roads for the new projects ($451,032 - $315,580) 24 
increased by $135,452. A net increase of $4,198. 25 

• All other funds in the city had minor budget changes mainly attributed to depreciation expense.  New infrastructure 26 
is given to the city each year when subdivisions are completed.  The increase in depreciation expense is for the new 27 
infrastructure. 28 
Mr. Marshall approached the Council and summarized his memo.   29 

Councilmember Johnson stated that he has a couple of questions about the funding for the City newsletter.  He 30 

stated he noticed that the budgeted amount for that has increased by $5,000.   Mr. Marshall stated that is correct and that is 31 

due to the fact that when the budget was originally created, staff projected that some of the costs associated with the 32 

newsletter would be offset by advertising revenue, but the projections for advertising revenue has not been as high as 33 

originally anticipated.   34 

Councilmember Johnson then stated that he noticed there were some costs associated with the remodel of the east 35 

side of City Hall.  He asked if the City fronted those costs because ReMax backed out of the lease.  City Manager Rice stated 36 

the City paid those costs and his plan was to include it in the common area maintenance (CAM) rates for ReMax.  He stated 37 

that when a new tenant is secured those costs will be considered into their CAM rates as well.   38 

Councilmember Johnson inquired as to what an Engine Boss is.  Mr. Rice stated that the City recently purchased a 39 

fire tender truck and in order to get it certified for use by the U.S. Forest Service there was a requirement to have an 40 

employee assigned to be the Engine Boss.  He stated the City did not have someone serving in that position, so when the 41 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 8

vehicle arrived the City was forced to enlist the help of neighboring city.  He stated that now the City has its own Engine 1 

Boss and another one in training so that by the time the fire season rolls around the City will have at least two Engine Bosses.  2 

Councilmember Johnson asked if that is a new employee position.  Mr. Rice stated it was a contract employee.  Mr. Marshall 3 

stated that it has allowed the truck to be called to fires out of the state, which generates revenue for the City.  Councilmember 4 

Lisonbee stated that the increased expenditure associated with the Engine Boss is $315,580 and she asked what kind of 5 

revenue the City will bring in to cover that expenditure.  Mr. Marshall stated that the increased expenditure for the Engine 6 

Boss is $10,000, not $315,580.   7 

Mayor Nagle stated that she wants to comment Mr. Marshall and Mr. Rice and everyone else in the City that has 8 

“knuckled down” because it is a huge accomplishment to be able to dedicate all the B&C Road funds to maintenance and 9 

repairs rather than to wages.  She stated that is probably the single greatest thing that Mr. Marshall and Mr. Rice have helped 10 

the City with since they began their employment.  She stated that is the most glaring item in the budget opening document 11 

and she commends everyone that was involved in it.  She stated all small changes added up to a big amount to be focused on 12 

the roads.   13 

Councilmember Peterson stated that he thought that he saw a proposal for where the staff wanted to use that money, 14 

but he cannot find it in his packet.  Mr. Marshall stated there was a list of unfunded projects that was included in the packet 15 

behind the budget adjustment document.  He stated it is the same document that was provided to the Council at their budget 16 

retreat last year.  He stated the list includes 10 or 12 projects.  Councilmember Johnson asked if staff has targeted any 17 

projects to be completed with the funding included in this budget opening.  Mr. Marshall stated that he has targeted three 18 

road projects.  He stated that the $600,000 in transportation impact fees is not what he is referring to; rather he is referring to 19 

the money now available through Class C road monies.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she is confused about the use of 20 

the impact fees.  She stated that the project to reconstruct Gordon Avenue was supposed to be covered by impact fees; that 21 

was mentioned through the course of three different public hearings about the project.  She stated that she has not seen those 22 

costs debited from the impact fee funds.  Mr. Marshall stated that project took place in the last budget year.  Councilmember 23 

Lisonbee stated that is correct, but the latest report of the City’s impact fees included on the State Auditor’s website, it says 24 

that there is $600,000 still available in 2012.  Mr. Marshall stated that the impact fee study references proposed areas for 25 

which to use the impact fee monies.  He stated that the report shows all revenue coming into the City and what the current 26 

balance is and where the City projects to use the money.  He stated that is just a proposal and not a final determination on 27 

how to spend the money.  He stated that currently the money is pointed to the extension of 2700 South from 2000 West to 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 9

3000 West, but now that the City has a new Public Works Director he wants to sit down with him and make sure that is the 1 

best place to use the money.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that before Mr. Marshall began working for the City and when 2 

Rodger Worthen still worked for the City there was a lot of discussion about the Gordon project and the two change orders 3 

that were submitted.  She stated the project as $800,000 or $900,000 and it was said two or three times during public hearings 4 

that the money for that project would come from transportation impact fees, but she has not seen that transaction.  Mr. 5 

Marshall stated a portion of the project was paid from the water impact fee funds as well as the transportation impact fee 6 

fund.   7 

Mayor Nagle then convened the public hearing. 8 

TJ Jensen, 3242 S. 1000 W., stated that he wanted to commend the staff, Mayor, and Council for doing everything 9 

they have done in order to complete one or two road projects.  He stated that one of the priorities has been to replace the 10 

secondary water line under Bluff Road because that water line does not have sufficient capacity to water all lawns in the City 11 

at the same time.   He stated that he would encourage the Council to take that into consideration; there is a problem with 12 

delivering the water from Jensen Park to the entire City and that needs to be resolved at some point.   13 

There being no additional persons appearing to be heard Mayor Nagle closed the public hearing.   14 

 COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-07 15 

ADJUSTING THE SYRACUSE CITY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012.  COUNCILMEMBER 16 

SHINGLETON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF 17 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE WHO VOTED IN OPPOSITION. 18 

 19 

5.  Proposed Resolution R12-04 updating and adopting Syracuse City  20 

Engineering Standards and Construction Specifications. 21 

A staff memo from Public Works Director Robert Whiteley explained that the proposed Syracuse City Engineering 22 
Standards and Construction Specifications have been provided to the Council for consideration and can be formally adopted 23 
via adoption of a resolution. Each municipality follows a set of engineering standards to ensure that minimum requirements 24 
are being followed based upon industry standard and local conditions.  Syracuse City’s standards are currently included as an 25 
appendix of Title Eight in the Syracuse City Code. The original standards have been incorporated into this document (shown 26 
in gray shading). This document is more comprehensive based upon common standards used in the engineering industry. As 27 
technologies advance, the standards must advance as well. That is the purpose for the currently proposed updates. In order to 28 
streamline updates of this document in the future, it is recommended that these standards stand as a separate document from 29 
the ordinance. The ordinance will still refer to the city standards. Future resolutions will ensure that the most current version 30 
is being followed.  The City’s standards have not been updated for at least 15-years.   31 

Mr. Whiteley approached the Council and summarized his staff memo. 32 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-04 1 

UPDATING AND ADOPTING SYRACUSE CITY ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND CONSTRUCTION 2 

SPECIFICATIONS.   COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   3 

 4 

6.  Authorize Mayor to execute the Lease Purchase Agreement with  5 

Zion’s Bank. 6 

A staff memo from Finance Director Steve Marshall explained that in July of 2011 the Council approved the FY12 7 
budget which included the acquisition of 10 hybrid police vehicles to replace some of the older vehicles owned by the City. 8 
Historically the City has purchased three police vehicles each year. However, due to budget constraints, the City has not 9 
purchased any vehicles since 2009. By leasing these 10 vehicles, the City will pay approximately the same amount that 10 
would have been spent to purchase the same three vehicles we have in previous years. This lease agreement is between 11 
Zion’s Bank and the City for the purchase of 10 hybrid police vehicles. The vehicles have been built and are now in service 12 
within the Police Department. This lease agreement authorizes the City to borrow the money from Zion’s Bank so that the 13 
City can pay the vendor who built the cars. This lease is a four payment, three year lease with the first payment to be made at 14 
the inception of the lease agreement and each additional payment to be made annually on February 15 of each year. The final 15 
payment will be made on February 15, 2015. The interest rate is a fixed 2.7% rate over the life of the lease agreement.  16 

Mr. Marshall approached the Council and summarized his staff memo.   17 

Mayor Nagle asked if the purchase price at the end of the lease is $1.00, to which Mr. Marshall answered yes.   18 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the interest rate is variable or fixed.  He stated he saw a reference to a maximum 19 

rate of five percent.  Mr. Marshall stated it is a fixed rate and the five percent amount is related to the bond refinance item to 20 

be considered later in the meeting.   21 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE 22 

LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH ZION’S BANK.  COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE SECONDED THE 23 

MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. 24 

 25 

7.  Consideration for adoption of resolution R12-08 of the City Council of  26 
Syracuse City, Utah, authorizing the issuance and sale by the Municipal  27 
Building Authority of Syracuse City, Utah, of its Lease Revenue Refunding 28 
Bonds, Series 2012, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed  29 

$5,700,000; and related matters. 30 

A staff memo from Finance Director Steve Marshall explained that the Municipal Building Authority is a separate 31 
legal entity from Syracuse City Corporation.  It was established in August 2006 to allow the City to streamline the funding 32 
and construction of City facilities.  The MBA borrows funding, constructs facilities, and leases them to the City.  The lease 33 
payments made by the City provide the revenue for the MBA to make the debt payments.  Eventually the debt will be paid 34 
off and the properties will be deeded to the City.  The executive board of the MBA is comprised of the Mayor and 35 
Councilmembers of Syracuse City.  Since the MBA and Syracuse City are two separate legal entities, it will be necessary to 36 
adopt two separate resolutions – one for Syracuse City and the other for the MBA. Staff is anticipating an annual savings of 37 
$15,700 or a total savings over the life of the bond of $206,000.    38 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 11

Mr. Marshall approached the Council and summarized his staff memo.   1 
Councilmember Johnson inquired about the reference to the maximum rate of five percent.  Mr. Marshall stated that 2 

the agreement includes parameters because it is not known what the final price or final interest rate will be.  He stated that the 3 
Resolution say that the rate will not exceed five percent, but in reality the rate will likely be much less than that.  He stated 4 
that staff is considering a couple of different financing options; fixed versus a step-up rate.  He stated that with a step-up rate 5 
the interest rate is two percent at the beginning and it gradually increases until it is four percent at the end of the term.  He 6 
stated that he is trying to find a balance that will provide the best cost savings.  He stated that upon approval of Council the 7 
City will seek bids for the best pricing.   8 

 9 
COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-08 OF THE 10 

CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, UTAH, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE BY THE MUNICIPAL 11 
BUILDING AUTHORITY OF SYRACUSE CITY, UTAH, OF ITS LEASE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 12 
2012, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $5,700,000; AND RELATED MATTERS.  13 
COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION.   14 

Councilmember Peterson stated that he had a question and it may be better suited for Jonathan Ward from Zion’s 15 

Bank.  He stated that earlier this evening Lurlen Knight referenced the refinance of the sewer bonds and they got a “steal of a 16 

deal” and they used a competitive bid process.  He stated the amount of the bond was approximately three times more than 17 

the amount being considered tonight, but he asked for Mr. Ward to explain how the City goes about getting the best interest 18 

rate.  Mr. Ward approached the Council and stated that Councilmember Peterson’s question is a good one.  He stated that he 19 

talked with Kevin Cowan, General Manager of the NDSD, about their bond refinance.  He stated that the NDSD has an AA+ 20 

rating, which is one notch lower than the highest possible rating from Standard and Poors, one of the larger rating agencies.  21 

He stated that with that type of a credit rating, bonds ought to be sold on a competitive basis where underwriters from all 22 

across the country are allowed to bid on and buy the bonds.  He stated that he also recommended that they sell the bonds 23 

without a normal function or nuance of revenue bonds since that was a debt service reserve fund.  He stated that makes a lot 24 

of sense from the vantage point of the rate payers and tax payers in the district.  He stated that the Government Finance 25 

Officers Association (GFOA) website has links to best practices under debt management and they say any bond rating in the 26 

A range or above qualifies to be sold via a competitively sold transaction.  He stated that Zion’s Bank has been a real 27 

advocate of competitive transactions where the entity asks the buyers of bonds to compete with each other for the best 28 

interest rate.  He stated that the NDSD was selling around $12 million and that is very enticing to underwriters across the 29 

country that bid on bonds.  He stated the two most prominent bidders in Utah are Piper Jaffrey and JP Morgan Chase and 30 

they have won more transactions than any other underwriter across the country and they do a remarkable job.  He then 31 

referred to the City’s bonds and stated there are a couple of factors to consider.  He stated that a few years ago the City’s 32 

bond rating was downgraded from an A+ to an A, which is one step, in large part due to cash balances on hand.  He stated the 33 

City had expended a lot of cash during the course of the economic recession and there was no plan in site from the 34 

perspective of the rating agencies to try to replenish those cash reserves.  He stated that he was very excited to see the turn 35 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 12

around of the City’s cash status; that is a very positive trend.  He stated that a single A rating makes selling bonds in a 1 

competitive nature a little more tricky, but not impossible.  He stated that there is also a question of how the bonds should be 2 

sold.  He stated the NDSD sold their bonds in the public capital markets, which is a national forum that any particular bond 3 

investor can use to purchase bonds.  He stated that the City’s bonds were structured in 2008 as private placement bonds after 4 

a debate about the options.  He stated that private placement was going to get the City comparable interest rates with lower 5 

upfront costs.  He stated that Wells Fargo purchased the bonds and they offered the flexibility to prepay after five years.  He 6 

stated that the lockout period is typically 10-years.  He stated currently there are buyers in today’s market that are very 7 

aggressive and they want to own the bonds as an investment and they are willing to provide prepayment options, so that when 8 

and if rates drop lower than they are today the City will have the option to refinance again without any sort of penalty.  He 9 

stated that Zion’s Bank will try to find the best option for the City and they are currently soliciting proposals from two 10 

buyers: Bank of Utah and Wells Fargo.  He stated that both are very interested in owning the bonds.  He stated the resolution 11 

that the Council is being asked to adopt tonight will allow them to formalize the refinance process.   12 

Councilmember Shingleton asked if the refinance will take place this year or if the City is required to wait until 13 

2013.  Mr. Ward stated the IRS allows refinancing once in advance of the 2013 date, so this would be the City’s one time 14 

opportunity prior to that time.  He stated that if the new bonds have a prepayment at any time clause, the City could 15 

technically refinance again.  He stated the tricky thing is that in order to prepay the bonds, Wells Fargo has a protection 16 

through 2013, so Wells Fargo will be paid all the interest that is owed to them through 2013, but the City has the opportunity 17 

to refinance at lower rates and put the new bond proceeds in an interest bearing account through 2013 and the costs to do that 18 

are relatively low compared to what the City is actually going to save.   19 

Councilmember Peterson referred to Councilmember Johnson’s question about the maximum rate of five percent 20 

and he asked what interest rate was used to calculate the savings amounts that were provided to the Council.  Mr. Ward stated 21 

that if the City were to sell the bond right now in the public capital market the true interest cost would be around 2.83 22 

percent.  He stated that as Mr. Marshall indicated, bonds sold in the public markets are sold with a serialized structure and 23 

there is a different interest rate every year.  He stated that the true interest cost is arrived at by averaging all the rates, but in 24 

addition to the interest rate there are a lot of upfront fees.  He then stated that on the private placement market the all 25 

inclusive rate would be approximately 3.16 percent.  He stated that he is trying to gauge which market is currently better.  26 

Councilmember Peterson inquired as to the City’s current interest rate.  Mr. Ward stated it is 4.13 percent, which is not a bad 27 

rate, but it is set for a 16 year period and if it can be lowered the City can save a lot of money over time.   28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 13

There being no further discussion regarding the proposed resolution Mayor Nagle called for a vote.  ALL VOTED 1 

IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION TO ADOPT.   2 

 3 

8.  Councilmember Reports.   4 

 Councilmember Johnson stated that he attended his first Utah League of Cities and Towns (ULCT) meeting to try to 5 

get his feet wet.  He stated it was a good experience and he enjoyed meeting other people in the same situation as him.  He 6 

then stated that he wanted to wish former-Councilmember Kimmel the best of luck in his new endeavors and he will be 7 

sorely missed on the Council and throughout the City.  He stated he appreciates what Mr. Kimmel did in standing up for his 8 

principals and what he thought was best for the City.  He then stated that he went on a ride-along with the Police Department 9 

recently and that was really good.  Councilmember Peterson stated that he heard that the Police Dog attached Councilmember 10 

Johnson.  Councilmember Johnson stated that he did let the drug sniffing dog attack him. 11 

 Councilmember Shingleton stated that there seemed to be some misconceptions at the last special meeting of the 12 

City Council about the appointment of the Fire Chief.  He stated that the reason the Council tabled the appointment was 13 

because they were carrying out their fiduciary responsibility of taking a look at things; it was nothing against the Fire Chief 14 

as he is qualified in all aspects of firefighting.  He stated that some accusations have been made and some heated words 15 

spoken and he feels that people need to take a look at what was said in the minutes of the meeting because there was nothing 16 

inflammatory said.  He stated that he also wanted to wish Mr. Kimmel the best on his new adventure in Oklahoma and then 17 

Canada opening some restaurants for his employer.  He then noted a job well done on the budget opening.  He stated “we” 18 

have been able to save money and take money that was previously spent on wages and reassign it to the Class C Road Funds 19 

account.  He stated he wanted to compliment the staff on their efforts.  20 

 Councilmember Peterson stated that he also went on a ride-along with the Police Department and he wanted to 21 

mention a couple of things from that.  He stated that Officer Steele and the police dog Drake do an awesome job; the dog is 22 

very impressive and Officer Steele is great at handling him.  He stated he was also with Officer Rowley and they responded 23 

to a variety of different things that night; a couple of them were serious medical calls and he thought the public safety 24 

responders worked so well together.  He stated that he believed that in both cases the Syracuse City officers were the first on 25 

scene with the Fire Department very close behind them.  He stated Davis County Sheriff’s paramedics were pretty close 26 

behind as well.  He stated they all worked together very professionally.  He then stated that, as was mentioned before, the 27 

NDSD did refinance their $15 million bond and they will save $2 million over the life of the bond.  He stated that the money 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 14

will be used to pay off two smaller bonds.  He then stated that tomorrow the Davis School District Superintendent is hosting 1 

a lunch that the Council and Mayor have been invited to.  He stated he looks forward to attending that.  Councilmember 2 

Johnson asked what time the lunch will be held.  Councilmember Peterson stated it is at noon at Syracuse Elementary.   3 

 Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she wanted to explain that she has a very bad infection tonight and if she came 4 

across as abrasive during tonight’s work session she wanted to apologize to all involved.  She stated that she appreciates 5 

everything that the staff does and they have displayed the utmost in professionalism in answering questions and putting forth 6 

their ideas.  She then stated she is excited for Mr. Kimmel to have the opportunities that he is having and she wishes him the 7 

best in Oklahoma and Canada.  She stated that will be an adventure for their family and she appreciates all that he did for the 8 

City while he served.   9 

 10 

9.  Mayor Report. 11 

Mayor Nagle stated she would like to congratulate the Syracuse High School Lady Titans basketball team; they 12 

recently beat the Layton High School team, who was second place in the state, by a score of 52 to 37.  She stated it was a 13 

very respectable win.  She then stated that she wants to officially welcome Chief Froerer to the City staff; the employees at 14 

the Fire Department are very happy to have him.  She then stated that at the last meeting she talked at length about the efforts 15 

that the Council of Governments (COG) was taking to look at ways to reduce the policing fees that each city pays as well as 16 

how different entities can work together.  She stated that COG formed a task force and she was sorry that she did not know 17 

that the other Chiefs were participating until she arrived at the meeting so she apologized to Chief Wallace.  She stated that 18 

the proposal that will be taken to COG deals with roadblocks that must be overcome in trying to consolidate services.  She 19 

stated there has been a lot of distrust in the past and that was actually increased after what recently happened in Syracuse 20 

City.  She stated there was a lot of talk about how the other members of COG thought that Syracuse was negotiating with the 21 

Sheriff’s Office and that the City would go the way of West Point.  She stated that the fees that are in place are the same fees 22 

that were assessed in 1984 and no one really know who had the authority to increase those fees; so each City would pay $.50 23 

per individual into the task force.  She stated that some cities that are like size as Syracuse were paying approximately $4,000 24 

into the task force, but the task force needs more than 11 officers to function and that amount of money does not parlay into 25 

enough for the necessary number of officers.  She stated that as a result, some entities have been donating a full time officer 26 

and Syracuse City is one of those entities.  She stated that equates to a little over $80,000.  She stated that the proposal that 27 

will be taken to COG will be to even out the costs that each entity is paying.  She stated the breakeven point seems to be 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 15

$2.50 per resident per City.  She stated that 10 of the 15 Mayor were in attendance and they all bought off on that increase 1 

that will take place over the next five years.  She stated that at that point in time the task force can have another conversation 2 

about whether to pay the fee or donate an officer and pay their wages.  She stated it is a great start and it was a big leap of 3 

faith for a lot of cities.  She then stated she is very excited about the Class C Road funds being donated back to road repairs 4 

rather than salaries.  She stated that road problems are the biggest issue the City is facing and she appreciates Mr. Rice’s 5 

efforts to make those positive changes.   6 

 7 

10.  City Manager Report. 8 

 Mr. Rice stated that today the Parks and Recreation Department staff and he briefed the Davis County Gala 9 

Committee hoping to be awarded the Gala for 2012 in order to earn donations for Chloe’s Sunshine Park.  He stated that the 10 

goal of the Gala each year is to raise $25,000 and find a worthy charity or project to benefit from that money.  He stated there 11 

were three groups that briefed today and Syracuse did a great job and he should be notified within the next few days as to 12 

whether the City has been selected to be the recipient of the Gala proceeds. 13 

 14 

11.  Consideration of adjourning into Closed Executive Session  15 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 52-4-205 of the Open  16 

and Public Meetings Law for the purpose of discussing the character,  17 

professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual;  18 

pending or reasonably imminent litigation; or the purchase, exchange,  19 

or lease of real property 20 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MOVED THE COUNCIL ADJOURN INTO A CLOSED EXECUTIVE 21 

SESSION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 52-4-205 OF THE OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS LAW 22 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING THE CHARACTER, PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE, OR PHYSICAL OR 23 

MENTAL HEALTH OF AN INDIVIDUAL.  COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON SECONDED THE MOTION, WITH THE 24 

FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:  VOTING “AYE” – COUNCILMEMBERS JOHNSON, KIMMEL, LISONBEE, 25 

PETERSON, AND SHINGLETON.  VOTING “NO” – NONE.     26 

 The meeting adjourned into Closed Executive Session at 8:35 p.m. 27 

 The meeting reconvened at 9:35 p.m. 28 



City Council Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

 16

 1 

 At 9:36 p.m. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN.  COUNCILMEMBER 2 

JOHNSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   3 

 4 

 5 

______________________________   __________________________________ 6 
Jamie Nagle      Cassie Z. Brown, CMC  7 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 8 
 9 
Date approved: _________________ 10 



Minutes of the Syracuse City Council Special Meeting, March 14, 2012.     1 
   2 

Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Syracuse City Council held on March 14, 2012, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council 3 
Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 4 
 5 

Present:  Councilmembers: Brian Duncan 6 
 Craig A. Johnson 7 
 Karianne Lisonbee 8 

                            Douglas Peterson  9 
     Larry D. Shingleton 10 
   11 
  Mayor Jamie Nagle 12 
  City Manager Robert Rice 13 
  City Recorder Cassie Z. Brown 14 
   15 
City Employees Present:  16 
  Police Chief Brian Wallace 17 
  Fire Chief Eric Froerer 18 

Finance Manager Steve Marshall 19 
City Attorney Will Carlson 20 
Recreation Director Kresta Robinson 21 
Community Development Director Mike Eggett 22 
City Planner Kent Andersen 23 

            24 
Visitors Present: Joe Levi   Shelbey Hartman  Jeremiah Zohner 25 
  Ray Zaugg  Rob Ortega  Bob VanVelkinburgh 26 
  Jeanne VanVelkinburgh 27 
        28 

1.  Meeting Called to Order/Adopt Agenda 29 

Mayor Nagle called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. as a regularly scheduled meeting, with notice of time, place, 30 

and agenda provided 24 hours in advance to the newspaper and each Councilmember.  She asked all visitors present if any 31 

wished to provide an invocation or thought; Councilmember Duncan provided an invocation.  Boy Scouts Justin Brown and 32 

Jet Hunsaker, representing Troop 468, then led all present in the Pledge of Allegiance.   33 

COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE AGENDA.  COUNCILMEMBER 34 

LISONBEE SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   35 

 36 

2.  Presentation of the Syracuse City and Wendy’s “Award for Excellence”  37 

to Hunter Dimick and Takenna Hamblin 38 

The City wishes to recognize citizens who strive for excellence in athletics, academics, arts and/or community 39 

service. To that end, in an effort to recognize students and individuals residing in the City, the Community and Economic 40 

Development, in conjunction with Jeff Gibson, present the recipients for the “Syracuse City & Wendy’s Award for 41 

Excellence”.  This monthly award recognizes the outstanding performance of a male and female who excel in athletics, 42 

academics, arts, and/or community service.  The monthly award recipients will each receive a certificate and be recognized at 43 

a City Council meeting; have their photograph placed at City Hall and the Community Center; be written about in the City 44 

DRAFT 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 2

Newsletter, City’s Facebook and Twitter Feed, and City’s website; be featured on the Wendy’s product television; and 1 

receive a $10 gift certificate to Wendy’s.   2 

Mayor Nagle stated that this month the nominees are Hunter Dimmick and Takenna Hamblin.  She stated that she 3 

wanted to salute both students for their accomplishments and commitment.  She stated there are great youth in the City and 4 

the Council is proud to salute them.  Mr. Dimick and Ms. Hamblin approached and shook the hands of each Councilmember; 5 

they also received a round of applause from those in attendance.   6 

 7 

3.  Approval of Minutes 8 

The minutes of the Special Meeting of November 15, 2011 were reviewed.   9 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 10 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 15, 2011 AS PRESENTED.  COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONDED THE 11 

MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   12 

The minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 13, 2011 were reviewed.   13 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 14 

MEETING OF DECEMBER 13, 2011 AS PRESENTED.  COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONDED THE 15 

MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   16 

The minutes of the Special Meeting of December 29, 2011 were reviewed.   17 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 18 

MEETING OF DECEMBER 29, 2011 AS PRESENTED.  COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONDED THE 19 

MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   20 

The minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 10, 2012 were reviewed.   21 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO TABLE APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE 22 

REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 10, 2012 AS PRESENTED.  COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONDED 23 

THE MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   24 

 25 

4.  Public Comments  26 

Douglas Merrill, no address given, stated that he has lived by a neighbor who owned two small dogs and one large 27 

dog for many years and he is here tonight to request additional conditions to the proposal to allow up to four dogs with a 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 3

residential kennel permit. He asked the Council to keep in mind that small dogs are just as much of an impact to adjacent 1 

property owners as large dogs. He noted that the City finally prohibited roosters in all residential zones because of the noise 2 

impact they had on nearby homeowners; some dogs are just as much of a nuisance as roosters.  He stated that there are many 3 

who will say that the government should not have the right to limit what property owners do on their own land and this view 4 

is often used in an effort to circumvent the greater good that results from appropriate discipline and community cohesion, and 5 

is frequently used to dispute any law of the land.  He stated that people enjoy freedoms in American society because of laws 6 

and ordinances.   He stated that many take advantage of loopholes or relaxed rules governing municipalities, so some 7 

ordinances simply have to be what may be called ‘overly restrictive’ in order to protect everyone from those who delight in 8 

annoying others whom they perceive as undeserving of their respect.  He then stated that dogs are protective of their 9 

surroundings, and set their own boundaries and, therefore he would like to respectfully ask that City Councilmembers 10 

consider requiring 6-foot privacy fences for residential kennels. He stated hat privacy fences would limit the dog’s ability to 11 

see into neighboring properties and bark in defense of land they do not need to protect.  He stated that since the City only 12 

handles disturbing the peace issues during nighttime hours, it would also benefit the community if language were added to 13 

Title Six of the Syracuse City Code establishing a process for the City to partner with the Davis County Animal Control in 14 

taking steps towards controlling nuisance dogs based on barking.  He stated that barking dogs can be a major issue for the 15 

many residents in Syracuse; those who work nights and must try to sleep during daylight hours, or those who enjoy 16 

gardening, a family barbeque, or backyard reading – many of these residents end up retreating to their homes after enduring 17 

nonstop barking from the other side of the fence.  He then stated that his final request would be to require service animals to 18 

comply with some of the same conditions as residential kennels if there were more than two dogs at the home or, at 19 

minimum, after the City became aware of issues created by so many dogs on one lot. He stated that if there is no limit on 20 

service animals, a resident in need of multiple dogs could create a major impact on adjacent property owners and those 21 

neighbors would have absolutely no recourse, simply because the dogs provided a service. He asked the Council to consider 22 

language that would allow the City to address problems brought before them from situations such as these and to then be able 23 

to require a minor conditional use permit and application of the same conditions as a residential kennel but without the limit 24 

to the number of dogs. 25 

 Joe Levi, 1844 W. 1975 S., stated that he was present at a City Council meeting held November 15 where staff 26 

attempted to create a position and add it to the City’s wage scale.  He stated the position was a marketing specialist and it was 27 

someone who was going to take care of the online marketing needs of the City.  He stated that at that meeting, by a vote of 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 4

three to two, the creation of the position was tabled rather than created.  He asked the Council to imagine how concerned and 1 

confused he was when recently there was a job posting on the City website for a Planner 1that had exact same job description 2 

as the position that had been rejected by the City Council.  He stated that he asked the Council some questions about the issue 3 

and he received some good feedback from the Mayor who explained that the position is a replacement of another position.  4 

He stated, however, that the duties were not approved by the City Council and that gives him the impression that someone 5 

was trying to circumvent the Council.  He stated that if the position and the associated duties are truly necessary, it would be 6 

appropriate to bring that issue to the City Council and allow whoever feels that the position is necessary make an argument 7 

for their case.  He asked why the position is necessary.  He stated that after reading the minutes from the November 2011 8 

meeting he feels that the position is not necessary.  He stated that he would like to know – and he still has not gotten an 9 

answer to his question – who thought that the position was important enough to ‘skirt’ the issue under the nose of the City 10 

Council and create the same position with a different title.  He stated that it seems like that person, whoever it may be, is 11 

undermining the authority of the entire Governing Body.  He asked if anyone could tell him who was responsible.  Mayor 12 

Nagle stated that she did answer Mr. Levi’s question via email and she would be happy to continue to meet with him after the 13 

meeting for further discussion.  She invited him to listen to the discussion during tonight’s meeting and if he still has 14 

questions she can try to address them after the meeting.  Mr. Levi stated that he would like to suggest that the creation of a 15 

position that has the same title as an existing position, but different duties and responsibilities, is just a way to circumvent the 16 

appropriate way of creating the position.  He stated that it avoids the transparency that the Council has committed to.   17 

 Gary Pratt, 2619 S. 575 W., stated that he wanted to address the Council about the street lighting project and the 18 

conversion to LED bulbs.  He stated that he does commend the Council for making efforts to save energy, but his experience 19 

with other cities in the past has been that being an ‘early adopter’ of a program is not always the wisest thing when it comes 20 

to money.  He stated that Syracuse does not have a lot of money and this is not the position that Syracuse should take 21 

especially when considering the costs of being an ‘early adopter’ even when other companies are willing to pay part of the 22 

costs.  He asked the Council to take a more careful approach.  He then stated that he wanted to talk about the animal 23 

ordinance since he is on the Planning Commission.  He stated that body spent a lot of time on their recommendation and they 24 

liberalized the current ordinance and it is misunderstood by a lot of people in the City who believe it is too restrictive.  He 25 

stated that the Planning Commission recommendation is actually more liberal than it has been in the past.  He stated that 26 

“we” forget when “we” talk about lot sizes that those sizes included homes, garages, driveways, etc., which then leaves very 27 

little space for animals.  He stated that he would like the Council to take that into consideration.  He then stated that in 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 5

regards to the number of animals, the Planning Commission is not trying to limit the number of animals because people can 1 

apply for conditional use permits to have more animals on the property.  He stated that he is simply asking that the Council 2 

adopt the ordinance as written with the one change that he recommended when the Planning Commission voted on their 3 

proposal.  He stated that the Planning Commission has held public hearings regarding the ordinance and he thinks it has 4 

provided for a well rounded ordinance.   5 

 TJ Jensen, 3242 S. 1000 W., stated that there was a discussion about the filling of vacant Council assignments and 6 

positions and the City’s position on the North Davis Sewer District (NDSD) was discussed at length.  He stated his 7 

suggestion would be that when the City notices the vacancy of the position on the Wasatch Integrated Waste Management 8 

District (WIWMD) due to the fact that Mayor Nagle will be resigning and she would like Councilmember Shingleton to take 9 

her place, that the notice should also include some language about confirming Councilmember Peterson as the City’s 10 

representative on the NDSD.  He stated that will give the public two weeks to speak against that confirmation, though he 11 

does not think that will happen.  He then stated that he wanted to address the animal ordinance.  He stated that he talked to 12 

the Standard-Examiner reporter earlier about an article that was in the newspaper that seemed to imply that the point system 13 

that the Council is looking to adopt is a new concept.  He stated that the point system has actually been around for about a 14 

decade and, as Mr. Pratt pointed out earlier, the Planning Commission has actually relaxed the point system to allow more 15 

animals in certain situations.  He stated that he wanted to make it clear for the public record that this is not a new ordinance; 16 

the Planning Commission has reviewed the existing ordinance and considered updates to make it more flexible.  He stated 17 

that the third item he wanted to talk about it the fact that there are a lot of residents on 700 South that are very concerned 18 

about potential development and there has been a lot of data presented to make the residents feel that the project will be good 19 

for the City and will create new revenue and taxes.  He stated that he thinks that what would be more helpful to the residents 20 

would be to show where the City’s resources need to be allocated.  He stated, for example, that the City has an $11 million 21 

deficit in relation to road projects, even though the City has managed to ‘scrape together’ $1 million for road projects this 22 

year.  He stated that the City does have an aging water infrastructure and Public Works Director Whiteley informed him that 23 

there is approximately 100 miles of water line in the City and there is at least eight miles that is constructed of the iron pipe, 24 

which is over 40 years old.  He stated that the pipe is rusting and the result if multiple ruptures.  He stated that on his street 25 

there have been three ruptures in the last year.  He stated that he asked Mr. Whiteley for estimated for replacing the 26 

infrastructure and, though it is hard to determine those costs, he was told that $80 to $100 foot is a good starting point.  He 27 

stated that would be $4 million to replace all of the water lines that are over 40 years old.  He stated that he thinks that if the 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 6

City can make a stronger case for what needs to be done and why the revenue from the development project is needed that 1 

information would be helpful to the residents.    2 

 Matt Kimmel, 1218 S. 4050 W., stated that he knows he has three minutes to address the Council and he wanted to 3 

talk about a couple of things.  He stated that he wanted to provide the Council with a quick recap of what their job is.  He 4 

stated that the Council swore an oath to their office and their job is to support, uphold, and defend the constitution.  He stated 5 

that the Council must defend all the citizens’ rights, including his and everyone else in the room.  He stated that by doing that 6 

the Council gives the citizens what they are secured in via the founding principles, and those are life, liberty, and the pursuit 7 

of happiness.  He stated the pursuit of happiness is the ability to own and control property – that is the only way “you” can 8 

pursue happiness.  He then stated that to defend, support, and uphold the constitution and defend Mr. Kimmel’s rights and 9 

allow him to own and control his property would give him the ability to have the pursuit of happiness and control his 10 

property.  He stated residents should have the ability to choose how they want to control their property so long as they do not 11 

violate the rights of others.  He stated that there will be discussion about this tonight relative to the animal regulations 12 

included under agenda item number six.  He stated that he hoped that the Council would lend and tend to the side of freedom 13 

and liberty and the pursuit of happiness and that they will give freedom a change.  He asked that they give residents in the 14 

community a chance to control their property and see what happens.  He stated that it is a dangerous subject – freedom.  He 15 

stated it has barely happened in the history of humankind.  He asked the Council to give it is a chance and see what happens 16 

and see if the phones aren’t banked with complaints because someone has a rooster on their property.  He referenced dogs 17 

and children and stated that he could name a lot of things that are stinky and loud and could probably bother a neighbor.  He 18 

stated he does not think a rooster is much louder than a dog or some children or grown adults that live by him.  He reiterated 19 

his challenge to give freedom a chance and see what happens.  He suggested giving it a year or two and give the citizens a 20 

chance to control their property to pursue their happiness the way they see fit.   21 

 Pat Zaugg, 1593 W. 700 S., stated that she wanted to give kudos to the Parks and Recreation Department.  She 22 

stated that she recently had an issue with an Eagle Scout project that was in the cemetery that was blocking the access to the 23 

gravesite of her triplet grandsons.  She stated that she called Parks Superintendent Ben Liegert who worked with the Director 24 

Kresta Robinson and this week they resolved the problem.  She stated that she wanted to publicly thank them for responding 25 

to her concern and moving it to a much more pleasant portion of the cemetery.   26 

  27 

5.  Proposed Ordinance 12-02 amending various provisions of Title 10,  28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 7

The Land Use Ordinance, relating to administrative review and development  1 

review procedures – Conditional Use Permits. 2 

 A memo from the Community Development Director, Mike Eggett explained that during staff assessment of the 3 

current Title 10, and more specifically the zoning language, the Title was not sufficiently clear on the application of 4 

conditional uses permits. Therefore, staff has bolstered the existing language to clarify how to approve, suspend, or deny 5 

conditional use permits. Additional items are also included, such as the requirement of the Building Inspector to evaluate 6 

conditional use permit compliance and an amended review procedure for conditional use permit suspension or revocation. 7 

On February 7, 2012, the Syracuse City Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding the proposed 8 

amendments to the Conditional Use Permits, in which no comments were received.  On February 7, 2012, the Syracuse City 9 

Planning Commission approved recommendation to the Syracuse City Council the attached amendments to Title Ten, 10 

Chapter 4, Administrative and Development Review Procedures as it relates to Conditional Use Permits within the Syracuse 11 

City Code. This amendment clarifies the review procedure for revocation of a conditional use permit, enhances conditional 12 

use approval standards, adds the requirement of review by City Building Inspector to evaluate compliance, and states that a 13 

conditional use permit for a nonphysical structure is not transferrable upon termination of permittee’s residency.  14 

Additionally, after Planning Commission recommendation for approval, City Attorney Will Carlson made some additional 15 

recommendations.  16 

The Community & Economic Development Department hereby recommends, following recommendation from the 17 

Syracuse City Planning Commission and City Attorney, that the Mayor and City Council amend Title Ten, Chapter Four, 18 

Administrative and Development Review Procedures as it relates to Conditional Use Permits within the Syracuse City Code. 19 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED ORDINANCE 12-02 20 

AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF TITLE TEN, LAND USE ORDINANCE, RELATING TO 21 

ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES.  COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON 22 

SECONED THE MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   23 

  24 

6.  Proposed Ordinance 12-03 amending various provisions of Title 10,  25 

The Land Use Ordinance, relating to animals. 26 

 A memo from the Community Development Department explained that on September 27, 2011, staff presented a 27 

recommendation to the City Council for approval from the Planning Commission for an amendment to the Animal Ordinance 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 8

to include pigeons in the point table as well as a small language change. At the September 27 meeting, City Council 1 

discussion moved beyond the changes presented and requested that staff and Planning Commission include additional 2 

changes such as a point allocation for quarter-acre lots, an example of the use of the point system, etc.  During the period in 3 

which staff and Planning Commission was formulating additional recommendations to the Animal Ordinance, Davis County 4 

informed staff that the County was considering making changes to the County Animal Ordinance. Davis County requested 5 

City staff to hold onto any changes to the Syracuse Animal Ordinance until Davis County was able to make their changes. 6 

Davis County also requested that Syracuse amend the Animal Ordinance to mirror the County Ordinance to ease the burden 7 

on County animal enforcement officers of knowing every city animal ordinance. Syracuse City is under no obligation to 8 

make this change and Davis County has reflected that they will continue to enforce our ordinance as written. On January 3, 9 

2012, Davis County Commissioners approved the attached amendment to the County Animal Control Ordinance, which went 10 

into effect on January 24, 2012. Primary changes includes: addition of cat registering and licensing requirements, allowance 11 

of maximum of three cats and dogs in any combination, if a third dog is owned the dog must be acquired from a legitimate 12 

animal shelter, etc. If the Syracuse City Ordinance does not address a specific issue, then the County Ordinance then the State 13 

Ordinance is applicable. 14 

On February 7, 2012, the Syracuse City Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding the proposed 15 

amendments to the Animal ordinance, in which comments were received. At that time, the Syracuse City Planning 16 

Commission chose to table the approval of the animal ordinance so that additional changes could be included. On February 17 

22, 2012, the Syracuse City Planning Commission approved recommendation to the Syracuse City Council the attached 18 

amendments to Title Ten, Chapter 6, General Land Use Regulations within the Syracuse City Code.  This amendment 19 

includes the following: addition of a point allocation to lots that are a quarter of an acre or larger, examples of use of the 20 

point system and square footage conversion, reclassification of large animals, addition of a small fowl group in the points 21 

table, maintain that no more than two of the same species for household pets shall be kept, a limit on the maximum number 22 

of dogs a kennel permit allows, an additional exception to the point system, language regarding the harvesting of farm 23 

animals, the exemption of service animals from number of animals allowed through the use of a minor conditional use 24 

permit, a few definition changes, and other minor changes. Two dissenting opinions from Syracuse City Planning 25 

Commissioners have also been provided and are subsequently attached.  At the February 28, 2012 City Council Work 26 

Session, additional comments were received. Therefore, these additional changes are highlighted in yellow in the attached 27 

proposed changes. 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 9

The Community & Economic Development Department hereby recommends, following recommendation from the 1 

Syracuse City Planning Commission, that the Mayor and City Council amend Title Ten, Chapter Six General Land Use 2 

Regulations - Animals within the Syracuse City Code to reflect attached Ordinance No. 12-03. 3 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO TABLE ADOPTION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 4 

12-03  AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF TITLE TEN, LAND USE ORDINANCE, RELATING TO ANIMALS. 5 

Councilmember Lisonbee’s motion died for lack of a second. 6 

  COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED ORDINANCE 12-03 7 

AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF TITLE TEN, LAND USE ORDINANCE, RELATING TO ANIMALS.  8 

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON SECONED THE MOTION.   9 

 Councilmember Johnson stated he wanted to continue the discussion that the Council had during tonight’s work 10 

session concerning cats.  He stated that he wanted to make some amendments to the proposed document.  He stated that he 11 

wanted to strike (E)(2), which reads “no more than two of the same species shall be kept excluding dependent young”.  He 12 

stated that he also wanted to allow up to four dogs or cats.  He stated he also wanted to remove item four so that people are 13 

not required to obtain a conditional use permit.  Mayor Nagle asked Councilmember Johnson if he wanted to make the 14 

change to dictate that cats must not be licensed or registered through Davis County.  Councilmember Peterson stated that he 15 

agrees with Councilmember Johnson’s suggestions, except regarding the issue of four dogs.  Councilmember Johnson stated 16 

that there are still kennel regulations and someone would be required to get a kennel license if they have three or more dogs.  17 

Councilmember Peterson asked Planner Andersen to make sure that the wording reflected that desire.  Mr. Andersen stated 18 

that the language can state that up to four cats will be allowed as will up to four dogs, but keeping more than two dogs 19 

requires the owner to obtain a dog kennel permit.   20 

 Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she sent an email to Mr. Andersen prior to this meeting and she asked him if he 21 

had received it.  Mr. Andersen stated that he did receive the email and he provided a copy to City Attorney Carlson so that he 22 

could share his opinion as well.  He stated that they have come up with draft language on page three of the document under 23 

(C)(e) and there is a reference to State Code for additional laws regulating harvesting of livestock and noncommercial 24 

slaughter.  He read the language to be included for the record.  Councilmember Peterson inquired as to the purpose of that 25 

new language.  He asked if it is a copy and paste of State Code language rather than a reference to the State Code.  26 

Councilmember Lisonbee answered yes and stated that the language counteracts the explicit language in the Davis County 27 

ordinance that states that it is animal cruelty to cause pain, harm, or death to any fowl or animal.  She stated that there is no 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 10

exclusion to that language for animal husbandry, so in order to protect the citizens of Syracuse she is asking for this language 1 

to be added.  She stated it will allow farmers to harvest their animals.  Councilmember Peterson stated that the language 2 

included camels and bison.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated the word used is the Latin word for the family of camels, so it 3 

includes llamas and other types of animals.  Councilmember Peterson stated that some people might interpret that to mean 4 

that they can keep a bison in a residential area of the City.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that is a good point.  Mr. 5 

Andersen stated that bison would be classified as a large animal and someone would be required to have 20 points to keep 6 

one on their property.  Councilmember Lisonbee then stated that she would also like for Mr. Carlson to make note that when 7 

Title Six is amended in the future she would like to include language that she provided to Mr. Carlson in her email.  Mr. 8 

Carlson stated that this issue was presented to the Planning Commission and they declined including it in the ordinance 9 

because right now there are two animal cruelty laws that apply to Syracuse; one is Davis County because the City has given 10 

authority to Davis County to provide animal control.  He stated the second law is a State statute addressing animal cruelty 11 

and it exempts livestock as long as one complies with husbandry practices.  He wanted to assure the Council that he will not 12 

be prosecuting famers for harvesting their animals.  He then stated that his recommendation to Councilmember Lisonbee and 13 

the rest of the Council is to include any additional language about animal cruelty in Title Six rather than Title Ten, because it 14 

is not a land use issue.  He stated he is concerned about placing it in Title Ten because there will be two relevant laws from 15 

Davis County; one says that injury or death to an animal is animal cruelty and the other says that animals must be slaughtered 16 

in a backyard or a side lot.  He stated that the fact that this limits where slaughter occurs does not necessarily immunize 17 

someone from the animal cruelty ordinance, though he thinks that was goal of the addition of the language.  He stated that 18 

Planning Commissioner Tyler Bodrero mentioned to him that he reason they declined to include that language in the proposal 19 

is because they believe the fact that the exemption to livestock in the State Code is sufficient.  Councilmember Lisonbee 20 

stated that at the last meeting Mr. Carlson told her that he wanted to assure her that he would not prosecute people according 21 

to Davis County ordinance, but that he would prosecute based on State law and in the Council packet it says that if the 22 

Council does not address specific language in the County ordinance the City will be required to abide by the County 23 

ordinance or the State law.  She stated that means it is left up to the City Attorney or prosecutor to decide on prosecution.  24 

She stated that is a dangerous precedent for her; not protecting the citizens of Syracuse with specific language.  She stated the 25 

document includes the language that Syracuse City refers to State Code for additional laws regulating harvesting.  She stated 26 

this has everything to do with animal husbandry and animal keeping and it is not a public nuisance in her opinion.  She stated 27 

she thinks it is important to include the language in this ordinance.  She stated that the City Attorney will be the one making a 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 11

decision on prosecution based on whatever law they decide to consider and that exposes the citizens of Syracuse who have 1 

farm animals and choose to harvest them.  She stated a resident from Weber County was exposed in the same way and was 2 

prosecuted for violation of the State Law for protecting himself against a feral cat.  She stated that is an issue that, as a 3 

citizen, she wants to prevent from happening.  She stated that she wants to be protected and she wants other residents to be 4 

protected by including this language in Title Ten in the section dealing with animal keeping.  Mr. Carlson stated that he is not 5 

disputing the policy decision of the Council and he is assuming that the goal of making livestock exempt is the goal that the 6 

Council wants to achieve.  He stated that his only concern is about placing language in Title Ten about where on a person’s 7 

property to slaughter animals.  He stated that may not help in achieving that goal.  Councilmember Peterson asked if adding 8 

the language to Title Six would achieve that goal.  Mr. Carlson answered yes.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that the 9 

language in Title Ten about where to slaughter animals was actually added by the Planning Commission.  She stated that she 10 

added language that refers to State Code.  She stated that Mr. Carlson has recommended some language to be added to Title 11 

Six in the future and she feels they are important additions because they help to achieve the same thing she is trying to 12 

achieve.  Mr. Carlson stated that he simply wanted to emphasize that Title Ten addresses land use in the City.  He stated it 13 

appropriately addresses where an animal would be slaughtered, but what it does not effectively do is exempt the killing of an 14 

animal for the purpose of eating it.  He stated that prosecution for something like that would come through Title Six of the 15 

City Code.  He stated that if the goal is to make sure that the City Attorney does not prosecute a farmer for killing a chicken, 16 

it is appropriate to include language exempting livestock in Title Six.  He stated the current language about livestock in Title 17 

Ten only talks about where the slaughter will occur but it does not exempt farmers from being prosecuted according to the 18 

County ordinance.  Councilmember Lisonbee asked if the statement that “Syracuse City refers to State Code for additional 19 

laws regarding harvesting” does not exempt a farmer.  Mr. Carlson answered yes and stated there is no language regarding 20 

harvesting in the State Code.  Councilmember Lisonbee suggested changing the language to refer to the animal cruelty 21 

amendment in the State Code.  She stated that Mr. Carlson told her, via email, that it did not make any difference where the 22 

language was included in the Code; as long as it was somewhere, it would provide protection.  Mr. Carlson stated that is not 23 

what he said.  He stated that Councilmember Lisonbee asked if the language had the full force of law.  Mr. Carlson stated that 24 

it will have full force of law no matter where in the Code it is included, but if a defense attorney, or Police Officer, or 25 

prosecutor cannot find the regulation in the Code it will not be effective.  He stated a law is only effective as its ability to be 26 

applied.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that all other animal ordinances are contained in Title Ten and she feels that is the 27 

appropriate place to add the language she is suggesting regarding harvesting or non-commercial slaughter of animals.  She 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 12

stated that if the State Code reference does not apply because there are no state code laws regarding harvesting, then she 1 

would like to see language added to address that.  She stated that is why she wanted this item to be tabled; she has other 2 

concerns that are not related to animal harvesting that the Council has not gotten to yet.   3 

 COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO AMEND PROPOSED ORDINANCE 12-03 4 

AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF TITLE TEN, LAND USE ORDINANCE, RELATING TO ANIMALS, AS 5 

FOLLOWS:  6 

• STRIKE SECTION 10-6-040(E)(2), WHICH READS: NO MORE THAN TWO (2) OF THE SAME SPECIES 7 

SHALL BE KEPT, EXCLUDING DEPENDENT YOUNG; 8 

• INCLUDE LANGUAGE THAT WILL ALLOW RESIDENTS TO KEEP UP TO FOUR CATS OR DOGS; 9 

• STRIKE SECTION 10-6-040(E)(4), WHICH READS: TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR MORE THAN TWO (2) CATS, UP 10 

TO A MAXIMUM OF FOUR (4), THE CATS’ OWNER(S) SHALL ACQUIRE APPROVAL FOR A MINOR 11 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT. HOWEVER, IN NO CASE SHALL A CATS’ OWNER(S) BE ALLOWED A 12 

RESIDENTIAL KENNEL PERMIT [THREE (3) TO FOUR (4) DOGS] AND A MINOR CONDITIONAL USE 13 

PERMIT FOR MORE THAN TWO (2) CATS 14 

• INCLUDE LANGUAGE THAT STATES THAT RESIDENTS ARE NOT REQUIRED TO LICENSE OR 15 

REGISTER A CAT THROUGH DAVIS COUNTY. 16 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE SECONDED THE MOTION.   17 

Mayor Nagle asked if anyone wants to amend Councilmember Johnson’s amendment.  Councilmember Peterson 18 

stated he wanted to suggest a cleaner option; he wanted to have a conversation about all the recommended changes and ask 19 

for one motion at the end of the conversation.  20 

Councilmember Duncan stated that maybe it will be necessary to table the item because further discussion is needed.  21 

He stated that he has some of the same concerns as Councilmember Lisonbee regarding whether the language should be 22 

placed in Title Ten or Title Six.   23 

Mr. Carlson stated that there are currently two open motions; a motion to adopt the ordinance and a motion to amend 24 

and adopt.  He stated both motions have been seconded and if the Council moves to table at this point in time, they will be 25 

moving to table the amendment.  He suggested voting on the amendment.  Councilmember Lisonbee asked what would 26 

happen if the Council voted on the amendment.  Mr. Carlson stated they would not necessarily be voting to pass the 27 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 13

ordinance, but they would be voting to amend it as it is currently written.  Councilmember Peterson suggested continuing the 1 

discussion until the Council is comfortable adopting.   2 

Mayor Nagle stated there is a motion and a second to amend the ordinance as written; she called for a vote.  ALL 3 

VOTED IN FAVOR.   4 

Councilmember Lisonbee then stated that during the work session held this evening she brought up the 10-6-5 

040(H)(4) language regarding roosters.  She stated that it says that roosters are not permitted in any residential zones.  She 6 

stated, however, that there are a lot of large lots in Syracuse that are in residential zones; people keep farm animals on those 7 

lots and they would like to have roosters as well.  She stated that she would like to have some discussion on that issue.  8 

Councilmember Peterson stated that he agrees with Councilmember Lisonbee to an extent; he wanted to have a discussion 9 

about the minimum lot size that a rooster would be allowed on.  He stated that he thinks that half-acre lots are too small.  10 

Councilmember Shingleton asked if Councilmember Peterson would be comfortable with declaring three-quarters of an acre 11 

the minimum lot size.  Councilmember Lisonbee asked Mr. Andersen how many three-quarter acre lots currently exist in 12 

Syracuse.  Mr. Andersen stated he would have to conduct some research to answer that question.  Councilmember Lisonbee 13 

stated that she does not think there are a lot; she knows there are a lot of half-acres and a lot of acre lots, but she does not 14 

think there are many in between.  Councilmember Duncan stated that he agrees with Councilmember Lisonbee as well as 15 

Councilmember Peterson on this issue.  He stated that he would not want a rooster located right next to his bedroom window.  16 

He stated it is important to determine the minimum lot size.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that is why she suggested half-17 

acre as being the minimum lot size.  She stated that it seems that people living on that lot size would have farm animals.  She 18 

stated that in the past the minimum size was a half-acre to qualify to use the point system.  She asked Councilmember 19 

Duncan if there are half-acre lots near him.  Mayor Nagle stated that there are half-acre lots located throughout her 20 

neighborhood.  Councilmember Duncan stated that he is considering what would be best for the citizens, not for himself.  Mr. 21 

Andersen stated that it may be appropriate to state that roosters are allowed on minimum lots sizes in R-1 and A-1 zones 22 

throughout the City rather than in any residential zone in the City.  He stated that farm animal keeping is currently allowed in 23 

those zones in the City.  Councilmember Peterson asked Mr. Andersen to describe what would be found in an R-1 zone.  Mr. 24 

Andersen stated there is a minimum lot size, but not a maximum; the minimum is 10,000 square feet, or a quarter-acre.  25 

Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she is in an R-1 zone and she lives on an acre and there are several larger lots close to 26 

where she lives. She asked if the following language would be appropriate: “roosters are not permitted in any residential 27 

zones except A-1 and R-1 with a minimum lot size of half-acre”.  Councilmember Peterson stated that he is in favor of tying 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 14

the restriction to a zone rather than lot size, but he is concerned by the fact that quarter-acre lots are allowed in R-1 zones.  1 

Councilmember Lisonbee stated that is why she suggested restricting the allowance to half acre-lots.  Councilmember 2 

Peterson stated that there will still be the instance where there is a mix of lot sizes in a subdivision and a half-acre lot may 3 

abut a quarter acre or third-acre lot.  Mr. Andersen stated that there could be an R-2 or R-3 zone adjacent to an R-1 zone and 4 

those zones allow for higher density.   5 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the animal husbandry issue has been resolved and if a decision has been made 6 

regarding whether the language should be included in Title Ten or Title Six.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that is one of 7 

the reasons she wanted to table the ordinance this evening.  She stated that she is not comfortable with that issue and she 8 

would like to continue to explore it.  She asked if there is any reason that this ordinance must be adopted tonight.  Mr. 9 

Andersen stated it has been in process for six months and a couple of additional weeks will not be too damaging.  10 

Councilmember Peterson stated that he supports Councilmember Lisonbee’s purpose, but he has heard from the City 11 

Attorney that it is more appropriate to include the language in Title Six and he is in support of that as well.  He stated that 12 

changes to Title Six could be changed at the next Council meeting.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that there are several 13 

items in Title Ten that deal with animals that are not really related to Land Use and she asked if all of those would be moved 14 

to Title Six as well.  Mr. Carlson stated this is an inherent problem in granting law making authority to another body.  He 15 

stated that as soon as Davis County changed their laws, the City’s laws changed as well.  He stated that if the Council wants 16 

to be making changes to the Davis County ordinance, his recommendation is that those changes be included in the same spot 17 

of the City Code that gives authority to Davis County.  He stated that will simplify and streamline the review process as 18 

much as possible.  He stated that Title Six is the spot in the City Code where animal control authority is granted to Davis 19 

County.  Councilmember Duncan asked if there is anything wrong with having the language in both Title Six and Title Ten 20 

with a reference to both included in each respective Title.  Mr. Carlson stated that redundancy is fine.  Councilmember 21 

Peterson asked if that will lend itself to having very muttled ordinances.  City Recorder Brown stated that she is concerned 22 

about including the same language in two different Titles of the City Code because a future City Council may make a change 23 

to one Title without being aware that the same language exists in another Title and the result will be that there will be two 24 

conflicting sections of the City Code.   25 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO TABLE CONSIDERATION PROPOSED 26 

ORDINANCE 12-03 AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF TITLE TEN, LAND USE ORDINANCE, RELATING TO 27 

ANIMALS.  COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN SECONDED THE MOTION. 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 15

Mr. Andersen asked if the Council had any further direction for him so that he could be prepared to provide an 1 

updated document at the next Council meeting.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she would like to include references to 2 

Title Ten after where the language being recommended by Mr. Carlson will be added.  She stated the language is very 3 

pertinent and she would just like to add a reference to the animal keeping ordinance to it.  She stated if she were looking for 4 

information about slaughtering animals she would look in the animal keeping ordinance, which is located in Title Ten.  She 5 

stated she would not first look in Title Six because it is an administrative ordinance.  Mr. Carlson stated that he wanted to 6 

offer some clarification.  He stated that proposed ordinance 12-03, which the Council is considering tonight, would only 7 

make changes to Title Ten; it will not make changes to Title Six.  He stated that the Council can talk about amending Title 8 

Six at some time in the future.   9 

Mayor Nagle asked Mr. Andersen to work on amendments to the ordinance based on the discussion that the Council 10 

has had tonight.  She then stated there is a motion and a second regarding tabling consideration of the proposed ordinance.  11 

She called for a vote.  VOTING “AYE”: COUNCILMEMBERS DUNCAN, JOHNSON, LISONBEE, AND SHINGLETON.  12 

VOTING “NO” COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON. 13 

Councilmember Peterson stated he voted in opposition to the motion because he felt the Council should try to finish 14 

their discussion about the ordinance tonight.   15 

 16 

7.  Proposed Resolution R12-11 appointing City Councilmembers  17 

to various committee positions and assignments. 18 

With the recent resignation of past Councilmember Kimmel, it is necessary to review the assignments that he held 19 

and consider appointing someone to fill those vacancies. Attached is Proposed Resolution R12-11, which allows the council 20 

to do so.  21 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-11 22 

APPOINTING CITY COUNCILMEMBERS TO VARIOUS COMMITTEE POSITIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS, WITH 23 

THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS: 24 

• STRIKE ITEM A, THE APPOINTMENT TO THE WASATCH INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT 25 

DISTRICT CONTROL BOARD. 26 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 16

• FILL IN BLANKS THROUGHOUT THE RESOLUTION WITH THE INFORMATION DISCUSSED DURING 1 

THE MARCH 14 WORK SESSION. 2 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   3 

 4 

8.  Proposed Resolution R12-12 appointing Councilmember Shingleton  5 

to the Wasatch Integrated Waste Management District (WIWMD)  6 

Administrative Control Board. 7 

Councilmember Lisonbee stated that the Council had a discussion regarding this item during the work session that 8 

preceded this meeting.  She stated that the resolution should be tabled in light of that discussion and due to regulations 9 

included in State Law 20A-1-512 requiring a two week notice of vacancy period before appointing for a mid-term vacancy to 10 

any local district board.     11 

COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE MADE A MOTION TO TABLE PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-12 12 

APPOINTING COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON TO THE WASATCH INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT 13 

DISTRICT (WIWMD) ADMINISTRATIVE CONTROL BOARD.  COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN SECONDED THE 14 

MOTION.  VOTING “AYE”: COUNCILMEMBERS DUNCAN, JOHNSON, LISONBEE, AND SHINGLETON.  VOTING 15 

“NO” COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON.   16 

Councilmember Peterson stated he voted in opposition because he feels that the Council needs to quit tabling so 17 

many items and try to have a discussion to reach a resolution.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that the issue is being 18 

addressed and the Council must follow the law, which is why she referenced the law.  Mayor Nagle stated the City Attorney 19 

actually advised the Council that they could have taken care of the appointment this evening, but the motion to table is 20 

approved.   21 

 22 

9.  Proposed Resolution R12-09 appointing a representative(s) to serve as  23 

Syracuse City’s appointee(s) on the Taxing Entity Committee (TEC) for the  24 

Redevelopment Agency (RDA) of Syracuse City. 25 

A staff memo provided by the Community Development Department provided a list of the likely Taxing Entity 26 

Committee membership for Syracuse City as it relates to the EDA and CDA areas.  Interesting to note is that the model, as 27 

represented by Davis County School District and Davis County, seems to reflect a membership of one non-elected member 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 17

and one elected member to participate on this board for each respective organization.  Another interesting thing to note is that 1 

there are only, at current time (minus Matt Kimmel), three elected officials that would participate on this board as is reflected 2 

on the attached document. 3 

Syracuse City Taxing Entity Committee (TEC) Membership 4 

Davis County 5 

Kent Sulser – Economic Development Director 6 

Steve Rawlings – Elected Representative, County Auditor 7 

All Other Taxing Entities Representative 8 

  Tage Flint – Weber Basin Water Conservancy District Manager 9 

Davis County School District 10 

  Craig Carter – County Business Administrator 11 

  Elected Representative from the County School Board 12 

Utah State Office of Education 13 

Larry Newton – Director of Finance 14 

(Alternate) Cathy Dudley – MSP Budget and Property Tax Specialist 15 

Syracuse City 16 

  Mayor Jamie Nagle – Elected Representative 17 

  Vacant Seat – previously held by Matthew Kimmel  18 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-09 19 

APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE(S) TO SERVE AS SYRACUSE CITY’S APPOINTEE(S) ON THE TAXING 20 

ENTITY COMMITTEE (TEC) FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (RDA) OF SYRACUSE CITY.  Councilmember 21 

Peterson’s motion died for a lack of a second. 22 

Councilmember Johnson asked for clarification.  He asked if the Council could appoint another elected official to 23 

the committee.  Mr. Carlson stated that the Council is only required to appoint a person; beyond that requirement it is up to 24 

the discretion of the Council.  Councilmember Lisonbee noted that the Legislative Body is responsible to make the 25 

appointment.  Mr. Carlson stated that is correct.   26 

Councilmember Peterson stated that he understands the desire to only appoint elected officials to this committee.  27 

He stated there is already an elected official appointed to the committee and that is Mayor Nagle.  He referred to the staff 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 18

memo and noted that all other entities that are represented have appointed one elected official and a staff person who knows 1 

the innerworkings of the entity.  He stated the City could do the same by appointing Mr. Rice to serve alongside Mayor 2 

Nagle.  He stated that Mr. Rice has all the answers and the Mayor would be present as the elected representative and he feels 3 

they are the perfect pair to represent the City on this committee.  Councilmember Duncan stated that he has some concerns 4 

about that.  He stated that the City is bound by the decisions made by the TEC and he does think that the citizens should be 5 

represented by an elected person.  He then stated that he has noticed in the past that the City has consistently raised taxes, 6 

bonding, etc. and he is concerned that the same thing could happen with the TEC and the citizens will be paying higher taxes 7 

as a result and he thinks that the person appointed should have a more conservative approach.  He stated that once someone is 8 

appointed to the committee the Council loses control over it.  Councilmember Peterson stated this is the TEC of the RDA and 9 

the RDA consists of the City Councilmembers.  Mr. Rice stated that is correct and he noted that the TEC represents all the 10 

taxing entities that get a vote on how to provide tax increment benefits to developers as a project goes forward.  He stated no 11 

decision made by the TEC would impact property taxes of the citizens of Syracuse.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated with 12 

any development there is a baseline and then an increase in the tax revenue created by the development and supposedly that 13 

increased amount can be gauged.  He stated that the TEC decides what portion, according to State Law, they are going to take 14 

and reinvest into the EDA or CDA or RDA area.  She stated that in this case that portion cannot be 100 percent, but it can be 15 

anywhere between zero and 80 percent of the increased tax revenue.  She stated that a developer can essentially benefit from 16 

tax dollars.  She stated that it is something that the Council is answerable to the citizens for and she thinks it is important for 17 

an elected official to be appointed to the TEC.  Councilmember Peterson stated that he agrees that the Council is answerable, 18 

but the point he is trying to make is that those decisions will still be forwarded to the RDA for final approval.  Mr. Rice stated 19 

that the TEC will actually decide how much increment will be held for development of the project.  Councilmember Duncan 20 

stated that decision will be binding on the City and it will not be referred to the RDA or any other board made up of elected 21 

officials for a final decision.  Councilmember Lisonbee agreed.  Community Development Director Eggett stated that is not 22 

entirely accurate.  He stated that the TEC will review and adopt a budget and it will then be brought to the RDA board for 23 

final resolution.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that State Code actually gives the TEC the authority to decide the 24 

proportions of tax increment that is withheld and that is not a decision that is brought to the RDA for approval.  Mr. Eggett 25 

stated the proportions will be negotiated as part of the budget and the TEC then brings a recommendation to the RDA board 26 

for approval.  He stated that the TEC representatives still must appear before the RDA.  Councilmember Peterson stated that 27 

he stands by his recommendation that Mr. Rice be the appointee and that recommendation has been reinforced by what Mr. 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 19

Eggett said.  He stated that he trusts Mr. Rice and he thinks that he will carry out the Council’s wishes, but if he does not do 1 

that, the Council has control over Mr. Rice’s employment with the City.  He stated there are two ways in which the RDA will 2 

still have some control over what Mr. Rice would do as a member of the TEC.  He stated the City will be represented by 3 

someone who knows the inner workings of the City as well as an elected official in Mayor Nagle.   4 

Mayor Nagle stated that she wanted to point out that the meetings of the TEC are held during daytime hours.  She 5 

stated that she has extended an offer on several occasions to members of the Council to come to City Hall and acquaint 6 

themselves with how the City functions so that they can be prepared for the budget preparation season.  She stated that the 7 

Councilmembers are very busy during the day and they have yet to take advantage of those offers and the budget season is 8 

now upon the City.  She stated that everyone has made so many commitments, but some of the Councilmembers are not 9 

honoring the commitment they made when they chose to be a Councilmember.  She stated that this seems to be a little bit of 10 

posturing and grandstanding; she agrees that there needs to be accountability in this situation, but there needs to be 11 

accountability in all areas and the Council is not taking the initiative to become educated during the day because their other 12 

commitments are keeping them so busy.  She stated she would suggest that the taxpayers would want the Council to know 13 

exactly how the City works before they begin working on a budget so that they can intelligently make decisions.  She asked 14 

how this committee will be any different.  She stated that she understands the commitment issue, but she feels that needs to 15 

parlay into other areas of responsibility of the Council.  She stated that Mr. Rice is present day to day and it is job to answer 16 

to and carry out the wishes of the Council.  She stated that she is frustrated; she understands the reasoning behind this 17 

discussion, but it cannot be part and parcel.  She stated that if the Council wants to be so committed to the taxpayers and their 18 

dollars, she would say that the Council should be doing that in all areas.  She asked how many of them have visited the Fire 19 

Department, Police Department, or Recreation Department to try to understand their inner workings.  Councilmember 20 

Lisonbee called for a point of order.  She stated that she appreciates Mayor Nagle’s sentiments, but she thinks there is a fine 21 

line that she is toeing between making a personal attack and comments that are actually germane to the discussion.  Mayor 22 

Nagle stated she is not making a personal attack; rather, she is stating factual information.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated 23 

that she has received emails from the citizens saying they would prefer to have another elected official appointed to this 24 

committee.  She stated that does not mean that Mr. Rice would not do a fantastic job because she believes that he would.  She 25 

stated that she does not feel that Mr. Rice should be the appointee.  She stated that she agrees with the citizens that have told 26 

her that the appointee should be an elected official.   27 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 20

Councilmember Shingleton stated that when this issue was initially raised, the City Council at that time also felt 1 

very strongly that both of the appointees should be elected officials.   2 

Councilmember Johnson asked if anyone has the desire to be appointed.  Councilmember Peterson stated that the 3 

person selected also must be able to attend daytime meetings.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she does not have a 4 

desire to be appointed, but if no one else will do it, she would be happy to do it for the taxpayers and she would be able to 5 

attend daytime meetings.  Councilmember Peterson asked why Councilmember Lisonbee does not have a desire to be 6 

appointed.  He stated that, as a taxpayer, that would concern him.  Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she is not chomping 7 

at the bit to participate in anything that takes her away from her kids during the day, but she sought election to this office and 8 

she was elected by the taxpayers and she thinks that it is her duty and she will do her very best in everything that she does.  9 

She stated that she will step forward as a person that does not have a job during the day and do this for the citizens of 10 

Syracuse.   11 

  COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-09 12 

APPOINTING COUNCILMEMBER LISONBEE AS SYRACUSE CITY’S APPOINTEE ON THE TAXING ENTITY 13 

COMMITTEE FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SYRACUSE CITY.  COUNCILMEMBER DUNCAN 14 

SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   15 

Councilmember Peterson stated that he voted in favor of appointing Councilmember Lisonbee and he wants to 16 

support her in that position, but he wanted to reiterate that he felt that Mr. Rice was the best choice for the position.   17 

 18 

10.  Proposed Resolution R12-10 amending the Syracuse City Wage Scale  19 

by reclassifying the position of Deputy Fire Chief to a full-time position, and  20 

by making other minor adjustments throughout. 21 

A staff memo from Finance Director Steve Marshall explained that the changes to the wage scale are reflected in the 22 

“recommended change” column and are highlighted in yellow.  It is important to note that no changes were made to the 23 

actual wages or ranges for any position with the exception of the proposed full-time deputy fire chief (discussed below in 24 

detail).   Most of the changes are minor.  For example: 25 

 26 

o City Administrator was changed to City Manager. 27 

o Recreation Director was changed to Parks & Recreation Director. 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 21

o Utility Billing Clerk was changed to Utilities Billing Clerk. 1 

o Administrative Secretary was changed to Administrative Professional. 2 

o Secretary I & II were changed to Administrative Assistant I & II. 3 

o Several positions are recommended to be deleted from the wage scale since they are now obsolete.  4 

o The bailiff position was changed from a full-time position to a part-time position in the wage scale.  It was 5 

input as a full-time position in error when it was originally approved. 6 

The one major change to the wage scale is a recommendation to convert the part-time Fire Chief to a full-time 7 

Deputy Fire Chief.  There are several reasons for this recommendation.  The Fire Department has operated with a part-time 8 

Fire Chief for the past several years.   However, with the retirement of our Assistant Fire Chief, the new Fire Chief has taken 9 

on the task of evaluating the Fire Department structure as a whole to see what will be the best model to move forward with in 10 

the future.   11 

In benchmarking against other cities of comparable size and also fire districts, it was important to note that all of 12 

them had a full-time Fire Chief and a full-time or equivalent Deputy Fire Chief.  Most of the entities of our size also had a 13 

full-time Fire Marshal.  With this proposal to move to a full-time Deputy Fire Chief it is our recommendation that this 14 

position would take on the additional duties of a Fire Marshal for the City.  What will it cost the city to make this change?  I 15 

have performed a benchmark study to other cities of comparable size and/or location for a full-time Deputy Fire Chief and 16 

determined that the pay range would best fit in our wage scale at grade 321 with a range from $27.90 per hour to $40.46.  We 17 

can minimize the increase in cost to the City by promoting employees from within.  My estimate shows that if we promote 18 

from within, the net increase to the salaries and benefits for the fire department is approximately $35,000.  This increase in 19 

cost is primarily from adding benefits to a full-time position.  Mr. Marshall’s memo also stated that his recommendation is to 20 

move forward with converting the Deputy Fire Chief position to a full-time position.   21 

COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED RESOLUTION R12-10 22 

AMENDING THE SYRACUSE CITY WAGE SCALE BY RECLASSIFYING THE POSITION OF DEPUTY FIRE CHIEF 23 

TO A FULL-TIME POSITION, AND BY MAKING OTHER MINOR ADJUSTMENTS THROUGHOUT.  24 

COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONED THE MOTION.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. 25 

 26 

11.  Proposed Ordinance 12-04 approving General Plan updates specific to  27 

the Trail System Master Plan. 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 22

A staff memo from the Community Development Department explained that in an ongoing effort to update the 1 

Syracuse City General Plan, the Syracuse City Planning Commission created a Transportation Subcommittee to examine and 2 

update the transportation section of the General Plan. As a key item of the Transportation Subcommittee review, a selection 3 

of Planning Commissioners, a Councilmember, City staff, and members of the public, chose to examine the trails component 4 

of the General Plan. The proposed amendment to the trails component is significant, as the existing trails component within 5 

the General Plan does not involve much detail and guidance. 6 

On February 7, 2012, the Syracuse City Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding the proposed 7 

amendments to the General Plan, specific to the Trail System Master Plan, in which one comment was received regarding 8 

implications to the West Davis Corridor. On February 7, 2012, the Syracuse City Planning Commission approved 9 

recommendation to the Syracuse City Council the attached amendments to the Syracuse City General Plan, Trail System 10 

Master Plan. This amendment includes the omission of the Trails portion of the General Plan, revised to reference Appendix 11 

1, which is the new Trail System Master Plan. Also included is a Syracuse City Trails Master Plan map. 12 

The Community & Economic Development Department hereby recommends, following recommendation from the 13 

Syracuse City Planning Commission, that the Mayor and City Council amend the Syracuse City General Plan – Trail System 14 

Master Plan. 15 

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT PROPOSED PROPOSED ORDINANCE 12-04 16 

APPROVING THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATES SPECIFIC TO THE TRAIL SYSTEM MASTER PLAN.  17 

COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   18 

 19 

12.  Councilmember reports. 20 

 Councilmember Lisonbee stated that she had nothing to report. 21 

 Councilmember Shingleton stated that he wanted to comment on the Trail System Master Plan.  He stated that a 22 

couple of Councilmembers were invited to participate in the subcommittee that worked on the updates and he was able to 23 

attend some of the meetings held by that body.  He stated that the subcommittee did a very good job.  He stated there was a 24 

lot of good discussion.  He stated that he also wanted to compliment the staff that worked on the Plan as well; it is very 25 

comprehensive and makes for a great system.  He stated that he would also like to congratulate the Syracuse High School 26 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 23

girl’s basketball team who recently won the State Title for the second time in three years.  He stated they are to be 1 

commended for that accomplishment.   2 

 Councilmember Peterson stated that there are a couple of significant things happening at the North Davis Sewer 3 

District.  He stated that they are in the process of trying to sell all of their bio-solids to a big agricultural user and, therefore, it 4 

will not be available for pick-up by residents.  He stated the advantage to that is that the District does not have to process the 5 

solids to an acceptable point for use on residential gardens; rather, they can process it less and it can still be used in larger 6 

agricultural applications.  He stated that it will save the District a significant amount of money, but the downside is that 7 

residents will no longer be able to pick it up on their own.  He then reported that the District was able to pay off a small bond 8 

that will save $40,000 in interest; it was not big as the last bond amount that was paid off, but it was paid off early to save 9 

interest costs.   10 

  Councilmember Johnson stated that he attended the Syracuse Elementary Community Council meeting and they 11 

have a lot of concern for the safety of their students; they also are very interested in helping students succeed.  He stated that 12 

it was a very good meeting.  He then stated that he agreed with Councilmember Shingleton that the Trails Master Plan is 13 

great; he was involved in developing it before he was elected to the City Council.  He then stated that he wanted to reiterate 14 

that the budget season has begun and he is looking forward to the discussions that the Council will have, beginning with the 15 

budget retreat scheduled for the end of March.  He stated that he wanted to express that he is hoping to see that it will be 16 

possible to maintain roads as well as the Police and Fire Departments while finding cuts wherever necessary in order to 17 

balance the budget and prevent the need to go to the citizens and ask for extra in taxes.  He stated that citizens have suggested 18 

that the Council review all programs in the City, such as the senior program, to see where the programs can be improved.  He 19 

stated that one resident told him that they feel like they are being left out of the Senior Program; there are so many youth 20 

programs, but not much for the seniors.  He then stated that he feels that if the Council is conservative it will be possible o 21 

have a great budget season.  He stated he is not sure what the City’s rainy day fund looks like, but he hoped that the staff can 22 

be conservative in revenue estimates and put some money aside for a rainy day.   23 

 Councilmember Duncan stated that he also wanted to reflect on the budget; he reiterated that the budget season has 24 

begun.  He stated it was not too long ago that he was sitting in the audience as a citizen expressing his concerns about the 25 

City’s finances.  He stated that there were concerns about whether the City was going to bond or raise taxes and he thinks that 26 

“we” heard loud and clear from the citizens that they did not want the City to do either.  He stated that the Council can look 27 

for cuts, but he is not an expert on City budgets and he needs to figure out how budget works.  He stated that he would 28 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 24

encourage the citizens to participate because tough decisions will need to be made and they should be made together.  He 1 

stated that if the Council is serious about no new taxes or bonding, he would put oweness on them to let the Council know 2 

what should be done instead.  He stated that if revenues continue to lag and the City cannot afford to continue to provide 3 

services, it will be necessary to start reviewing options.  He stated he would encourage the citizens to provide meaningful 4 

suggestions.  He then stated that  5 

   6 

13.  Mayor report. 7 

 Mayor Nagle stated that she wanted to welcome Councilmember Duncan to his first meeting and she looks forward 8 

to working with him as a Councilmember.  She then stated that she has some sad news; the sister of the City’s IT Director 9 

was the person whose home burned to the ground in West Point.  She stated that the family’s home was a total loss and they 10 

are now staying with Mr. Peace.  She stated there has been an account set up for the family at America First Credit Union 11 

under the name Brody Poulsen if anyone is interested in donating.  She is sure that the family could use some help during this 12 

difficult time.  She stated that some of the City’s public safety employees were the first responders to the fire.  She stated that 13 

Syracuse City has some of the best first responders and she is in awe of the job they do.  She stated that she also wanted to 14 

address the comments about the City’s rainy day fund.  She stated tremendous strides have been made in that area of City 15 

budgeting.  She stated that two years ago the City had the lowest allowable limit according to State Law and that amount has 16 

since been tripled.  She stated the fund is very healthy and that was one of the priorities she had along with staff because she 17 

wants to be able to pay for things with cash whenever possible.  She then stated that she has been invited to be an honorary 18 

commander of the 388
th

 EMS Squadron from Hill Air Force Base and she would like to ask the City to partner with them.  19 

She stated she was talking with their Colonel and he would love to have a part at Jensen Park for his squadron in May.  She 20 

stated that they will be coming home from a deployment as well as being released from a major drill and she wanted to 21 

encourage the City Council and staff to be involved in that.  She stated that a barbeque can be held in conjunction with the 22 

party.  She stated the date of the party will be May 19.  She then reported that at the next meeting there will be a proclamation 23 

on the agenda to recognize the Syracuse High School girl’s basketball team for their great achievement.  She stated that the 24 

team and their coach have been invited to attend.   25 

 26 

14.  City Manager report. 27 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 25

 Mr. Rice then stated he wanted to respond to some of the comments made about the budget.  He stated that during 1 

the retreat staff will address the projections for revenues and expenses and the Council will have the opportunity to help 2 

shape that data.  He then stated that last year the City had a fund balance of nine percent and the State requires the reserve to 3 

be anywhere between five and 18 percent.  He stated that the current reserve amount is 14.5 percent.  He stated that in 4 

January of 2011 there was approximately $5.1 million in cash reserves and now the City has approximately $7.1 million.  He 5 

stated that some of those monies are restricted for different uses, but it communicates that the City is doing well financially.  6 

He stated that that is why staff asked the Council to approve the dedication of $1.1 million of that cash to a couple of road 7 

improvement projects through the end of the fiscal year.  He then stated that at the last Council meeting he briefed the 8 

Council about an ongoing audit, which is still underway.  He stated that staff has no idea how long the audit will take, but Mr. 9 

Marshall is spending a good portion of his day interacting with the auditors and sending any information they ask for.   10 

 11 

15.  Consideration of adjourning into Closed Executive Session  12 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 52-4-205 of the Open  13 

and Public Meetings Law for the purpose of discussing the character,  14 

professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual;  15 

pending or reasonably imminent litigation; or the purchase, exchange,  16 

or lease of real property 17 

COUNCILMEMBER SHINGLETON MOVED THE COUNCIL ADJOURN INTO A CLOSED EXECUTIVE 18 

SESSION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 52-4-205 OF THE OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS LAW 19 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING THE CHARACTER, PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE, OR PHYSICAL OR 20 

MENTAL HEALTH OF AN INDIVIDUAL.  COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON SECONDED THE MOTION, WITH THE 21 

FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:  VOTING “AYE” – COUNCILMEMBERS DUNCAN, JOHNSON, LISONBEE, 22 

PETERSON, AND SHINGLETON.  VOTING “NO” – NONE.     23 

 The meeting adjourned into Closed Executive Session at 8:36 p.m. 24 

 The meeting reconvened at 9:30 p.m. 25 

   26 

 27 



City Council Special Meeting 

March 14, 2012 

 

 26

 At 9:31 p.m. COUNCILMEMBER PETERSON MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN.  COUNCILMEMBER 1 

SHINGLETON SECONDED THE MOTION; ALL VOTED IN FAVOR.   2 

 3 

______________________________   __________________________________ 4 
Jamie Nagle      Cassie Z. Brown, CMC  5 
Mayor                                  City Recorder 6 
 7 
Date approved: _________________ 8 



  
 

Agenda Item #5 Public Hearing – Proposed Resolution R12-19 

amending the Syracuse City Consolidated Fee 

Schedule by making adjustments throughout. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Finance Director 

Stephen Marshall. 

 

• Staff has found and recommended several changes to the fee schedule that are 

considered necessary. Most changes are minor while some are more significant. 

 

•  The items in red are either new fees being proposed or changes to existing fees in 

the fee schedule. 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation 

• Adopt proposed resolution R12-19 amending the Syracuse City Consolidated 

Fee Schedule by making changes throughout. 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



RESOLUTION NO. R-12-19   

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL UPDATING AND 

AMENDING THE CONSOLIDATED SYRACUSE CITY FEE SCHEDULE 

BY MAKING ADJUSTMENTS THROUGHOUT. 

 

 

WHEREAS, Syracuse City Staff has reviewed and analyzed the fees charged by 
the City for various services, permits and procedures and has recommended various 
changes to such fees as more particularly provided in the attached consolidated 
Syracuse City Fee Schedule; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the revised Syracuse City Fee 

Schedule as recommended by Staff and as more particularly provided herein; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE 

CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Amendment. The Syracuse City Fee Schedule is hereby updated 
and amended to read in its entirety as set forth in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of this 

Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution shall be severable. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, STATE 

OF UTAH, THIS 10
th

 DAY OF JULY, 2012. 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Jamie Nagle, Mayor 

 





































  
 

Agenda Item #6 Authorize Mayor Nagle to execute the Interlocal 

Agreement for Metro S.W.A.T. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Police Chief Brian 

Wallace 

• Please see attached the Interlocal Agreement.  

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 















  
 

Agenda Item #7 Proposed Ordinance No. 12-19, granting the local 

Fire Official the authority to prohibit the use of 

any ignition source, including fireworks, lighters, 

matches, and smoking materials within the city – 

and penalty. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at Fire Chief Eric 

Froerer. 

• Please see attached Proposed Ordinance No. 12-19.  

 

Memorandum 
In the event that we continue to experience hot and dry weather that results in 

extreme hazardous fire conditions, this proposed ordinance will give our jurisdiction 

the authority to take appropriate measures to restrict or ban fireworks in Syracuse 

City.  This is a proactive step if restrictions become necessary for the July 21-27 

fireworks holiday. 

 

 Eric Froerer 

Syracuse City Fire Chief 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



ORDINANCE NO. 12-19 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING THE LOCAL FIRE OFFICIAL THE 

AUTHORITY TO PROHIBIT THE USE OF ANY IGNITION SOURCE, 

INCLUDING FIREWORKS, LIGHTERS, MATCHES, AND SMOKING 

MATERIALS WITHIN THE CITY – AND PENALTY 

 

Whereas, local fire officials are authorized to enforce the state fire code, pursuant to 

Utah Code Annotated § 53-7-104; and 

 

Whereas, local fire officials may prohibit the use of fireworks and other ignition sources 

when hazardous environmental conditions necessitate controlled use, pursuant to Utah Code 

Annotated § 15A-5-202(3)(b) which amends the 2009 International Fire Code; and 

 

Whereas, the Governor of the State of Utah has recommended that Cities and Town 

consider banning certain fireworks, open fires and other potential sources of fire within areas of 

the City or Town. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  PURPOSE.  This ordinance authorizes the fire chief as the local fire official 

for this municipality to prohibit open fires and the use of any ignition source, including 

fireworks, lighters, matches, and smoking materials, when hazardous environmental conditions 

necessitate controlling the use thereof. 

 

Section 2. DEFINITIONS.  “Hazardous environmental conditions” means extreme 

dryness or lack of moisture, windy conditions, the presence of dry weeds and other vegetation 

and any combination thereof. 

“Ignition source” means fireworks, lighters, matches, smoking materials, and similar 

means used to ignite fire. 

“Fireworks” shall have the same meaning as found in Title 53, Chapter 7 of the Utah 

Code. 

 

Section 3. AUTHORITY OF LOCAL FIRE OFFICIAL TO ISSUE ORDERS.  The 

local fire official is hereby authorized to issue orders prohibiting open burning, open fires,  the 

use of any ignition source, including fireworks, lighters, matches, and smoking materials in any 

area of the municipality when the local fire official determines that hazardous environmental 

conditions necessitate controlling or prohibiting the use thereof. 

 



  Section 4. AREAS AFFECTED.  The local fire official shall determine what areas are 

subject to prohibition and the extent of the prohibition and shall identify the same in a written 

order. The order may also include a map outlining affected areas.   

 

   Section 5. PUBLIC NOTICE.  The municipality shall immediately post copies of the 

written order of the local fire official in at least three public placing within the City/town;  post a 

copy of the order on the official municipal website; inform all local news media outlets of the 

order and provide a copy of the order thereto.  

 

  Section 6. PENALTY.  Any person who intentionally or knowing violates an order of 

the fire chief issued pursuant to this ordinance is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.  

 

Section 7. ENFORCEMENT.   Every officer charged with enforcement of State and 

municipal laws within the jurisdiction of this municipality, including the Fire Marshal is hereby 

charged with the responsibility to enforce this ordinance. 

 

  Section 8. REPEAL AND SEVERABILITY.  If any section, phrase, sentence or 

portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court or 

competent jurisdiction, such portions shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 

provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

 

Section 9.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately 

upon its passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, 

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 10
th

 DAY OF JULY, 2012. 

 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Jamie Nagle, Mayor 

 

 



  
 

Agenda Item #8 Proposed Resolution R12-20 dictating the format 

of the Syracuse City Council meeting minutes. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Recorder Cassie 

Brown 

• Please see attached Memorandum provided by Cassie Brown 

• Please see attached Proposed Resolution R12-20  

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



City Recorders Office 

Date:  July 2, 2012 

To:  Syracuse City Governing Body 

From:  Cassie Brown – City Recorder 

          RE:           Agenda item to discuss format of City Council minutes.  

 

 

 

 

At the June 26, 2012 work session meeting I discussed with the you all the growing trend 

in Utah in which municipalities are getting away from overly detailed Council meeting minutes 

in favor of a summary document that includes time links to the digital meeting recording when 

any given item was discussed.  I proposed that the Council consider following that trend and 

allow me to provide an action/summary document immediately following a Council meeting.  

That document could also serve as the minutes of record if time links are included.  Utah Law 

previously dictated that audio recordings of meetings were only to be kept for one year after 

approval of the written minutes.  The same law was recently changed to dictate that audio 

recordings must be kept for three years after minutes are approved.  Several cities have adopted a 

policy that is more strict that State Law whereby they will retain the digital recordings 

permanently so that they can be included in the minutes of record.   

At the conclusion of the discussion several comments were made by the Council in favor 

of the proposal.  I was directed to prepare a resolution for the Council to consider that would 

communicate the direction that the City will be taking relative to transcription of minutes of 

Council meetings.  That resolution has been prepared and included in your packet for review and 

consideration. 

I am happy to discuss this proposal with the Governing Body and answer any questions 

that anyone may have.   

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R12-20  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL DICTATING 

THE FORMAT OF SYRACUSE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES. 

 

WHEREAS, Syracuse City has previously not had in place a policy dictating the format 

of City Council meeting minutes; and  

WHEREAS, City staff has proposed the Council adopt a resolution selecting an 

appropriate format for Syracuse City Council meeting minutes.  Staff has proposed that instead 

of providing a verbatim record of the meeting, the minutes document will be a basic summary of 

the meeting including time links that will refer the reader to the digital recording of the meeting.  

The summary document will include the time and date of the meeting; a clear description of each 

agenda item; any public comments made regarding any agenda item; any motion made during 

the meeting; and the voting record for any item considered by the Council; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed format of Syracuse City Council meeting minutes complies 

with Section 52-4-203 of the Utah State Code, Open and Public Meetings Act.  One exception 

will be that the City will retain all digital recordings of the meeting on a permanent basis rather 

than destroying all copies three years after the approval of the written minutes.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Adoption.  The Syracuse City Council hereby selects an appropriate 

format for Syracuse City Council meeting minutes.   

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of 

this Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution shall be severable. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, 

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 10
th

 DAY OF JULY, 2012. 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Jamie Nagle, Mayor 

 

 

 



  
 

Agenda Item #9 Proposed Resolution R12-21 rescinding Resolution 

R08-23, which set forth rules for conducting public 

meetings of the City Council and Planning 

Commission using electronic means. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Recorder Cassie 

Brown or City Attorney William Carlson 

• Please see following Memorandum provided by Cassie Brown 

• Please see attached Proposed Resolution R12-21 

 

Memorandum 
This item was added to the agenda as a result of a discussion during a recent review of 

the administrative title of the city code.  

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



RESOLUTION NO. R12-21  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SYRACUSE CITY RESCINDING 

RESOLUTION R08-23, WHICH SET FORTH RULES FOR 

CONDUCTING PUBLIC MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND 

PLANNING COMMISSION USING ELECTRONIC MEANS.   

 

WHEREAS, The Syracuse City Council adopted Resolution R08-23 providing rules for 

conducting public meetings of the City Council and Planning Commission using electronic 

means; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is now desirous of including such rules in Title Two of the 

Syracuse City Code and it is no longer necessary to utilize Resolution R08-23. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Adoption.  The Syracuse City Council hereby adopts a resolution 

rescinding Resolution R08-23. 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of 

this Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution shall be severable. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, 

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 10
th

 DAY OF JULY, 2012. 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ By:____________________________________ 

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder       Jamie Nagle, Mayor 

 

 

 



 

 

Agenda Item “10” Proposed Ordinance 12-18, amending the Syracuse 

City General Plan adopted in 1976, as amended.   
 

 

Factual Summation 

• Any questions regarding this item may be directed at Community and Economic Development 

Director Mike Eggett and representative Planning Commissioners. 

• Please see attached factual summation, memorandum, and supporting documents provided by 

Mike Eggett.   

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

July 10, 2012 



Mayor  
Jamie Nagle  
 
City Council  
Brian Duncan 
Craig Johnson 
Karianne Lisonbee 
Douglas Peterson  
Larry D. Shingleton 
 
City Manager 

Robert D. Rice 

 

 

 

 

 

 
        
 

 

 

Factual Summation 

• Any questions regarding this item may be directed at CED Director Mike Eggett and 

representative Planning Commissioners 

• See attached map showing the recommended Planning Commission General Plan District 

One update 

• See attached supplementary language reflecting proposed Planning Commission 

recommended changes to the General Plan for District One 

• See attached letter from R. Steven Romney with Property Reserve Inc (PRI) 

• See attached letter of dissent from Planning Commissioner TJ Jensen 

• See attached proposed Ordinance No. 12-18 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

 

From: Community and Economic Development Department 

 

Date: July 3, 2012 

 

Subject: Proposed Ordinance 12-18 General Plan Changes for District One 

 

 

Background 

 

District one of the General Plan has been open for quite some time at the Planning Commission 

level for the purposes of debate and discussion.  Many meetings have been held by the Planning 

Commission to discuss this matter.  Further, there have been three public hearings regarding 

General Plan District One wherein the public has been invited to participate and share their 

comments regarding the General Plan opening. 

 

Consideration of the General Plan Update 

 

The Syracuse City Planning Commission has held three public hearings on this matter on the 

following dates: June 7, 2011; December 6, 2011; and December 20, 2011.  Comments from the 

public were received by the Planning Commission at that time as it relates to this General Plan 

district.  On June 19, 2012, the Planning Commission held a work session to discuss in 

specificity district one of the General Plan.  The majority of items discussed in the work session 



are reflected on the attached proposed General Plan update map.  However, during the regular 

session of the Planning Commission a motion was forwarded and additional discussion was 

made regarding updates discussed during the work session, as well as a new discussion regarding 

the PRI properties located between 1000 West and 2000 West and 200 South and 700 South.  

After a period of debate amongst the Planning Commissioners, a motion was approved to 

recommend a proposed General Plan District One update to the City Council for approval.  This 

proposed General Plan District One map update and supplementary language are included for 

your use and discussion. 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Syracuse City Planning Commission hereby recommends that the Mayor and City Council 

review the information provided with this memorandum and discuss the contents of the 

documentation.  Further, the Syracuse City Planning Commission recommends that the City 

Council approve proposed Ordinance 12-18 General Plan Changes for District One. 



Current General Plan – Land Uses Proposed General Plan – Land Uses 

General Plan – Northeast District 1 Proposed Zoning Changes - 7/03/2012 

Legend

A-1 Agriculture

Buisiness Park

Commercial II

General Commercial

Industrial

Institutional

Neighborhood Services

Open Space / Recreational

PRD (8.0 dwellings per net acre)

Professional Office

R-1 (2.90 dwellings per net acre)

R-2 (3.79 dwellings per net acre)

R-3 (5.44 dwellings per net acre)

R-4 (14.52 dwellings per net acre)

Research Park

Zoning Districts

TownCenterOverlayZone

RDA_Boundary



1 

DISTRICT ONE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE – PROPOSED LANGUAGE 

AMENDMENTS 

PLANNING DISTRICTS 

 

In order to permit a more detailed description of the plans for various geographic areas of 

Syracuse, the City has been divided into ten (10) planning districts. The following section 

includes a description of each district, which, together with the accompanying Syracuse General 

Plan Land Use Map, provides a comprehensive set of recommendations for future land use within 

the City. These plans and recommendations provide the specific details of the plan as identified in 

the broader goals and objectives stated in this document. 

District 1 

 

This district is located in the far northeast corner of the City. The northern boundary of this 

district is 200 South and on the south by 1700 South. To the east, the district boundary is the 

same as the municipal boundary between Clearfield and Syracuse. The western boundary of the 

district is 2000 West. As shown on the accompanying map, this district has deliberately included 

a portion of Clearfield City. As Syracuse was evaluating the available land for its existing 

cemetery located at 1030 W 1290 South it was determined that based on the projected population 

growth, the City would eventually require additional land for its cemetery. The City has 

purchased the additional land adjacent to the existing cemetery for a planned future expansion, 

but the land that was purchased is part of Clearfield City. While the City is not in immediate need 

of the land for expansion of the cemetery at this time, Syracuse should continue to pursue 

negotiations with Clearfield City for the eventual annexation of this land into Syracuse City.  

 

There are several general planning areas that are part of this district and each is described briefly 

below. 

Residential Areas 

 

More than two-thirds of the land in District 1 is currently identified for residential development. 

primarily R-2 and R-3 single-family residential uses and most of the residential land identified in 

this area has been developed in accordance with this plan. There is also a section of land 

identified within District 1 for R-1 single family residential uses; this area is encouraged to be 

developed in a clustered fashion as this land develops.  The City should continue to follow the 

current development patterns as outlined in this document and according to the General Plan 

Land Use map. 

2000 West & 700 South Commercial Area 

 

The location of Syracuse High School on the northeast corner of the intersection of 2000 West 

and 700 South has created specialized commercial opportunities such as restaurants and other 

retail and commercial activities. The City has anticipated these opportunities and has identified 

the majority of the land on all four corners of this intersection as either General Commercial or C-

2 (Mixed-Use) Commercial.  There is also a section of land located south of this intersection 

along 2000 West that is anticipated to be utilized as a Neighborhood Services zone as homes 

along 2000 West are redeveloped for other uses.  



2 

200 South Corridor Commercial Area 

 

The area of land between 200 South and 700 South and from 2000 West east to 1000 West has 

been identified as a future C-2 (Mixed Use) GC General Commercial zone, BP Business Park 

zone, and R-1 Residential zone area. There are more than 200 acres of land currently in use as 

agricultural property but it is anticipated that as the 200 South corridor is widened by UDOT (see 

‘Land Use – Commercial’) this area has been identified for future mixed-use development which 

might includeing, housing, retail, commercial and professional office uses. Additionally, 

developers of this area of land are encouraged to work with the City in developing an aquatic 

center recreation facility in adjacency to Syracuse High School.  Planning tools such as 

commercial or mixed-use design guidelines should be developed and the area should be treated as 

a district similar to that created for the City's Town Center. Such a small area plan would allow 

the City to guide and implement distinctive and enhanced development options for commercial 

development in the northeast corner of the City.  

1700 South Commercial Corridor 

 

Part of another large commercial zone has been identified in this district; it is located along 1700 

South. The land along the north side of 1700 South from 1000 West to the corner of 1700 South 

and 2000 West is planned for future General Commercial and Professional Office Neighborhood 

Services development. This particular corridor represents the gateway to Syracuse City and 

ultimately leads to the Syracuse Town Center. 

 

The northwest corner of 1700 South and 1000 West represents part of what can be considered the 

“gateway” to Syracuse City. Three of the corners at this intersection are located within the City 

boundaries. Two of these corners have been developed with General Commercial businesses in 

accordance with this plan. In order to put the best commercial image forward to the public, the 

development of this corner should replicate the type and quality of development that has occurred 

on the southwest and southeast corners of this intersection. Professional office zoning has also 

been identified as a future land use along 1700 south from approximately 1100 West to Marilyn 

Drive. 

 

UDOT is moving forward with improvements and widening of this particular stretch of 1700 

South. As 1700 South is a high traffic arterial class road, commercial enterprises that serve both 

local and region wide needs should be encouraged to develop here. This type of development will 

provide the necessary services and commodities for the City while enhancing the sales tax base.  

 

Founders Park, a City owned and operated park, is located in this district immediately east of the 

Syracuse Elementary school. The plan identifies all of the land in the park to remain as ‘Open 

Space/Recreational” but an eastern portion of the park may also be considered in future for retail 

and commercial development. Any proceeds from the sale of this land for such commercial 

development would be used for the purchase and development of other park lands elsewhere in 

the City. Also located just south of this park is a small general commercial area that has been 

identified as part of the Town Center. The northeast corner of 1700 South and 2000 West should 

be considered as part of the Town Center and the standards established in the Town Center 

Master Plan should apply in this area. 

 

The widening of 1700 South along this corridor will provide much needed relief to traffic 

congestion that has existed for many years. Care should continue to in order to prevent 

unnecessary traffic conflicts as this commercial district area develops further. In addition, 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



3 

sidewalks should be required and provided along 1700 South as shown on the Master 

Transportation Plan.  

 







To: The Syracuse City Council 

From: TJ Jensen 

          Syracuse City Planning Commission 

 

A Dissenting Opinion Regarding the Planning Commission decision on 

changes to District 1 

 

 

Greetings Mayor and Council, 

 

On Tuesday, June 19th, 2012, the Syracuse City Planning Commission voted 

to recommend changes to District 1 of the Syracuse City Master Plan.  

These changes included some changes that incorporated Neighborhood 

Services along 1700 South and 2000 West, and also to the parcel of land 

which lies to the North and East of Syracuse City High School. 

 

This was a 4-2 Decision, with Tyler Bordrero and Myself voting against, 

and Braxton Shenck, Kenneth Hellewell, Gary Pratt, and Greg Day voting in 

the affirmative.  Among other things, the majority of the commission 

wanted closure on the review of this district, as this has been debated 

by our body for about a year now. 

 

While I cannot speak for the minds of the other commissioners, I feel 

that it is important to explain my dissenting vote. 

 

While I am in agreement with the changes to the rest of this district 

(along 2000 West south of the High School, and along 1700 South), I 

dissent with my body over the parcel of land west of the power lines 

currently owned by PRI, of which Ninigret has an option to buy a portion.  

East of the Power Lines, our body recommended changing the master plan to 

Business Park, which will not affect the existing Industrial Zoning on 

that parcel, but does give Ninigret the option for Business Park zoning 

on that piece of land should they wish it (I doubt it, as Industrial is a 

more flexible zone for their purposes). 

 

If you look at the existing Master Plan, you will see that West of the 

power lines and to the North/Northeast of the High School our master plan 

calls for C-2 Commercial.  Several commissioners (including myself) are 

uncomfortable with the existing C-2 zoning language (it is a little too 

loose for our tastes, and has some language which can be interpreted in 

different ways that should be clarified), and we intend to address this 

at some point in the near future.  In the meantime, the Commission voted 

to change the section of this parcel North of the High School to General 

Commercial.  I do not have a problem with this, as this allows most of 

the activities that C-2 allows, hence it maintains the potential value of 

the property. 

 

To the Northeast of the High School, the Commission proposed to change 

the zoning to Business Park.  I am mostly in concurrence with this, as 

this zoning is of similar value to the C-2 Zone currently on the master 

plan.  However, I feel that it is premature to recommend this at this 

juncture, as I feel our body should have waited for the ad hoc committee 

formed by the Council to submit it's opinions and any recommendations 

that may have resulted.  Also, while I am not necessarily opposed to some 



of the uses proposed by Ninigret for this area, I think that the current 

Industrial Zone language (i.e. proposing any additional Industrial west 

of the power lines) would be too impactful to the residents along 700 

South.  While some 'heavier' activities might be acceptable with 

mitigations in place, our current Industrial zone allows most 'heavy' 

activities, and is hence not desirable.  The 200 South Committee also 

noted that the residents in this area were opposed to heavy industrial in 

this area. 

 

 

My biggest issue, however, lies with the section of this parcel which 

lies directly to the east of the High School.  The current master plan 

shows C2 Commercial to the northern half or so of this area, and 

Professional Office along 700 South.  The Planning Commission 

recommendation that was adopted proposes to change this to R1 

Residential, with the possibility of Clustering. 

 

R1 Residential is the lowest class of Residential that our Ordinance 

allows, and is generally used to buffer Agricultural (A1) from heavier 

residential uses.  It was never intended to be a buffer for industrial or 

commercial uses, although several areas of the city (Southwest of Bluff 

Road) do border Commercial.  The Industrial you may have seen south of 

Gentile Street on our master plan is not currently in play, as Nature 

Conservancy/United States owns that land in perpetuity, and hence will 

never be used for said use, per their charter. 

 

Redesignating this land to the east of the High School as R1 lowers the 

highest and best use of this land as it was previously designated on the 

Master Plan (C2 and PO), and significantly lowers the value of this 

property.  Syracuse City should not be in the business of lowering 

people's property values, whether they are a private owner or a 

corporation.  This is just bad practice.  Also, at the time Professional 

Office was adopted by a previous Planning Commission and City Council, 

the area along 700 South made sense for this use, to encourage additional 

medical and to a lesser extent professional uses to complement IHC and 

other operations in this area. 

 

While I feel that PRD along 700 South (Planned Residential Development 

zone, with a 300 foot depth from the north curb of 700 South)  might be 

an appropriate change, as it is regularly used as a buffer between less 

dense residential and Commercial within our city (note the PRD next to 

Smiths and Ace Hardware), it is arguably worth a bit less in property 

values than Professional Office.  However, if used as a buffer between 

700 South and a Business park or slightly heavier use, I think this 

increases the potential value for the PRD, as it provides an effective 

screen for lighter residential.  R-1, on the other hand, is worth quite a 

bit less than Professional Office or C2, hence this will lower our 

potential tax base considerably, and potentially open the city up to 

uncomfortable questions from PRI. 

 

The city should not be in the business of lowering people's potential 

property values.  While the residents along 700 South have put this same 

argument forth in regards to Industrial uses around the high school 

affecting their property values, with PRD acting as a buffer I do not see 



their property values being negatively impacted, at least not any more 

than the Industrial east of the power lines and Freeport Center has 

already done.  If anything, I see their property values increasing 

slightly, as the PRD will increase the value of their neighborhood.  I 

would argue that close proximity to schools and relatively close 

proximity to our city center parks and businesses has a great positive 

effect on said property values, and that Business Park uses are not 

significantly different than PO or C2 uses, said uses already have been 

taken into account for these properties (appraisers take the master plan 

into account when doing appraisals). 

 

Leaving the current designation Professional Office on the master plan in 

place is another option, of course. 

 

Note that the Planning Commission regularly insists on home ownership 

clauses in PRD zones, as this city does not like to see a lot of rentals, 

so I see the PRD as more of a Condo style development, and Condos 

generally retain their values well relative to other residential uses 

(due to the amenities they offer).  There are a lot of controls put in 

place in the Syracuse PRD zone that encourage higher quality 

developments. 

 

 

As for the impact on the high school and the greater community as a 

whole, I see businesses in this area as a benefit to the city, for 

several reasons: 

 

1) Higher tax base.  Keep in mind that businesses pay property, personal 

property, and franchise taxes, a portion of each which go to city 

coffers.  Citizens recently spoke out against higher taxes, and our 

infrastructure continues to crumble.   

 

Any increases to the revenue the city can generate for infrastructure 

repairs are highly useful at this point, because I don't see us catching 

up with our maintenance schedule anytime soon, and water lines continue 

to break and roads continue to fall apart.  Not to mention there are 

several parks that remain unbuilt due to lack of funds. 

 

2) More jobs to the city.  While some residents like to think that 

everyone in Syracuse works at upscale office buildings, the fact is that 

we have employees from all walks of life, from the $8.75/hr public works 

employees that work for our city to said high end jobs.  Many of these 

employees currently commute out of our city for work, and I'm sure they'd 

love the opportunity to work within their own community, given the 

chance.  And by working locally, they better support our local economy, 

and help their own pocketbooks in the process (less gas money for 

commuting).  While very few if any of the larger businesses currently in 

Syracuse are exclusively employed by Syracuse Residents, a percentage of 

their workforces are nontetheless local citizens. 

 

Any jobs we can provide locally are a good thing, and will have a 

positive impact on our local economy, as some of said workforce will shop 

our local businesses and get gas at our local gas stations. 

 



3) Intern opportunities for the High School.  Students that can put 

internships on their resumes for college admissions are generally 

benefitted significantly by such internships.  They learn valuable job 

skills through said internships, and colleges love go getters.  While 

Commercial businesses do provide limited opportunities for internships, 

Business and Industrial uses provide many more.  Said intern 

opportunities may also apply to any college students we have living 

within our city, btw. 

 

4) Potential for new partners for city events and such.  Syracuse City 

has been fortunate to have our local businesses supporting the city when 

they can.  RC Willey and WalMart in particular regularly donate money to 

Heritage Days and other events.  Increasing the city Business base 

increases said opportunities, and large employers are particularly well 

suited to provide such opportunities.  The city has a large network of 

volunteers; it's raising cash that is generally the challenge. 

 

 

So, in short, as one dissentin member of the Syracuse City Planning 

Commission that does not speak for our body as a whole (although I may 

think from P.C. discussions with him that Tyler may agree with the points 

made in this letter, I can't speak for him), I would recommend that the 

City Council hold off on adopting the Planning Commission recommendation 

for the parcel to the north and east of the high school, at least until 

such time as the Ad Hoc Committee is able to submit it's opinions and any 

resulting recommendations.  You should have all of the facts in evidence 

before making radical changes to our Master Plan. 

 

Thank you for your attention, 

TJ Jensen 



ORDINANCE NO. 12-18 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SYRACUSE CITY GENERAL PLAN 

ADOPTED IN 1976, AS AMENDED. 

 

WHEREAS, in 1967 a Syracuse Preliminary Master Plan was prepared for the Syracuse 

Planning Commission as a part of the Davis County Master Plan Program, said preliminary plan 

being prepared by R. Clay Allred and Associates, Planning Consultants; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 1976 a Comprehensive Plan for Syracuse was prepared by the Davis 

County Planning Commission with assistance of Architects/Planners Alliance Planning 

Consultants and Wayne T. Van Wagoner and Associates, Traffic and Transportation Consultants 

which plan was financially aided by a grant from the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development through the Utah State Department of Community Affairs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 1976 Comprehensive Plan was amended in 1988 and the title 

changed to the Syracuse City Master Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Syracuse City  General Plan was again amended in 1996, 1999, 2003, 

2006, 2009, 2011, and 2012 to incorporate appropriate and necessary changes to the General 

Plan as approved at that time; and  

 

WHEREAS, public hearings have been held by the Planning Commission to receive 

public input regarding proposed changes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has proposed amendments to the General 

Plan District 1 that provide development objectives with respect to the most desirable use of land 

within the City for residential, recreational, agricultural, commercial, industrial, and other 

purposes, and which residential areas shall have the most desirable population density in 

the planning districts of the City to benefit the physical, social, economic, and governmental 

development of the City and to promote the general welfare and prosperity of its residents; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. General Plan District 1.  That the Syracuse City General Plan District 1, 

July 2012 revision, attached and reflected hereto as Exhibits A and B, is hereby adopted and any 

ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Resolution is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of 

this Resolution, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Resolution shall be severable. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage. 



PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY, 

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 10
th

 DAY OF JULY, 2012. 

      SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

              

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder   Jamie Nagle, Mayor 



General Plan – Northeast District 1 Proposed Zoning Changes - 7/10/2012 

Legend

A-1 Agriculture

Buisiness Park

Commercial II

General Commercial

Industrial

Institutional

Neighborhood Services

Open Space / Recreational

PRD (8.0 dwellings per net acre)

Professional Office

R-1 (2.90 dwellings per net acre)

R-2 (3.79 dwellings per net acre)

R-3 (5.44 dwellings per net acre)

R-4 (14.52 dwellings per net acre)

Research Park

Zoning Districts

TownCenterOverlayZone

RDA_Boundary

Exhibit A 



1 

EXHIBIT B 

PLANNING DISTRICTS 

 

In order to permit a more detailed description of the plans for various geographic areas of 

Syracuse, the City has been divided into ten (10) planning districts. The following section 

includes a description of each district, which, together with the accompanying Syracuse General 

Plan Land Use Map, provides a comprehensive set of recommendations for future land use within 

the City. These plans and recommendations provide the specific details of the plan as identified in 

the broader goals and objectives stated in this document. 

District 1 

 

This district is located in the far northeast corner of the City. The northern boundary of this 

district is 200 South and on the south by 1700 South. To the east, the district boundary is the 

same as the municipal boundary between Clearfield and Syracuse. The western boundary of the 

district is 2000 West. As shown on the accompanying map, this district has deliberately included 

a portion of Clearfield City. As Syracuse was evaluating the available land for its existing 

cemetery located at 1030 W 1290 South it was determined that based on the projected population 

growth, the City would eventually require additional land for its cemetery. The City has 

purchased the additional land adjacent to the existing cemetery for a planned future expansion, 

but the land that was purchased is part of Clearfield City. While the City is not in immediate need 

of the land for expansion of the cemetery at this time, Syracuse should continue to pursue 

negotiations with Clearfield City for the eventual annexation of this land into Syracuse City.  

 

There are several general planning areas that are part of this district and each is described briefly 

below. 

Residential Areas 

 

More than two-thirds of the land in District 1 is currently identified for residential development. 

primarily R-2 and R-3 single-family residential uses and most of the residential land identified in 

this area has been developed in accordance with this plan. There is also a section of land 

identified within District 1 for R-1 single family residential uses; this area is encouraged to be 

developed in a clustered fashion as this land develops.  The City should continue to follow the 

current development patterns as outlined in this document and according to the General Plan 

Land Use map. 

2000 West & 700 South Commercial Area 

 

The location of Syracuse High School on the northeast corner of the intersection of 2000 West 

and 700 South has created specialized commercial opportunities such as restaurants and other 

retail and commercial activities. The City has anticipated these opportunities and has identified 

the majority of the land on all four corners of this intersection as either General Commercial or C-

2 (Mixed-Use) Commercial.  There is also a section of land located south of this intersection 

along 2000 West that is anticipated to be utilized as a Neighborhood Services zone as homes 

along 2000 West are redeveloped for other uses. 



2 

200 South Corridor Commercial Area 

 

The area of land between 200 South and 700 South and from 2000 West east to 1000 West has 

been identified as a future GC General Commercial zone, BP Business Park zone, and R-1 

Residential zone area. There are more than 200 acres of land currently in use as agricultural 

property but it is anticipated that as the 200 South corridor is widened by UDOT (see ‘Land Use – 

Commercial’) this area has been identified for future development which might include housing, 

retail, commercial and professional office uses. Additionally, developers of this area of land are 

encouraged to work with the City in developing an aquatic center recreation facility in adjacency 

to Syracuse High School.  Planning tools such as commercial or mixed-use design guidelines 

should be developed and the area should be treated as a district similar to that created for the 

City's Town Center. Such a small area plan would allow the City to guide and implement 

distinctive and enhanced development options for commercial development in the northeast 

corner of the City.  

1700 South Commercial Corridor 

 

Part of another large commercial zone has been identified in this district; it is located along 1700 

South. The land along the north side of 1700 South from 1000 West to the corner of 1700 South 

and 2000 West is planned for future General Commercial and Neighborhood Services 

development. This particular corridor represents the gateway to Syracuse City and ultimately 

leads to the Syracuse Town Center. 

 

The northwest corner of 1700 South and 1000 West represents part of what can be considered the 

“gateway” to Syracuse City. Three of the corners at this intersection are located within the City 

boundaries. Two of these corners have been developed with General Commercial businesses in 

accordance with this plan. In order to put the best commercial image forward to the public, the 

development of this corner should replicate the type and quality of development that has occurred 

on the southwest and southeast corners of this intersection. Professional office zoning has also 

been identified as a future land use along 1700 south from approximately 1100 West to Marilyn 

Drive. 

 

UDOT is moving forward with improvements and widening of this particular stretch of 1700 

South. As 1700 South is a high traffic arterial class road, commercial enterprises that serve both 

local and region wide needs should be encouraged to develop here. This type of development will 

provide the necessary services and commodities for the City while enhancing the sales tax base.  

 

Founders Park, a City owned and operated park, is located in this district immediately east of the 

Syracuse Elementary school. The plan identifies all of the land in the park to remain as ‘Open 

Space/Recreational” but an eastern portion of the park may also be considered in future for retail 

and commercial development. Any proceeds from the sale of this land for such commercial 

development would be used for the purchase and development of other park lands elsewhere in 

the City. Also located just south of this park is a small general commercial area that has been 

identified as part of the Town Center. The northeast corner of 1700 South and 2000 West should 

be considered as part of the Town Center and the standards established in the Town Center 

Master Plan should apply in this area. 

 

The widening of 1700 South along this corridor will provide much needed relief to traffic 

congestion that has existed for many years. Care should continue to in order to prevent 

unnecessary traffic conflicts as this commercial district area develops further. In addition, 



3 

sidewalks should be required and provided along 1700 South as shown on the Master 

Transportation Plan.  

 



  
 

Agenda Item #11 Public Hearing- Proposed Ordinance No. 12-20 

adopting Title Two rewrites of the Syracuse City 

Municipal Code pertaining to Administration. 

 

Factual Summation  
• Any question regarding this agenda item may be directed at City Attorney 

William Carlson. 

• Please see attached Memorandum and Supporting documentation provided by 

William Carlson 

• Please see attached Proposed Ordinance No. 12-20 

o Please note that “Exhibit A” will depend on if the Council votes for 

Version A or Version B.    

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
July 10, 2012 



 

 

 

Mayor  
Jamie Nagle  
 
City Council  
Brian Duncan 
Craig Johnson 
Karianne Lisonbee 
Douglas Peterson  
Larry D. Shingleton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mayor and City Council  
From: City Attorney, William J. Carlson  
Date: July 10, 2012  
Subject: Title Two of the Syracuse City Code 
 
Background  
 
 On April 24, 2012 the City Attorney reported to the City Council that 
the Council’s majority vote to recodify Title II was in error because some 
minor adjustments to mayoral power in the recodification required either a 
unanimous vote of the Council without the Mayor or a majority vote with the 
Mayor.  
 
 In the months since, there has been discussion as to whether to 
attempt to pass a new version of the title or to simply revert to the prior 
version. On June 26, 2012 the City Council made recommendations to change 
various sections of Title II. Those revisions are identified and outlined in the 
attached Title II (Version A). 
 
 Because the revised title includes many of the earlier changes to 
mayoral power, it requires the mayor’s vote with a majority of the Council, or a 
unanimous vote of the Council except for the mayor. At the end of the 
discussion on June 26, the City Council asked whether the Mayor would be 
willing to vote for Version A. Due to a desire for further clarification of the 
mayor’s duty of conducting Council Meetings, the Mayor stated she did not 
support Version A.  
 
 At that point, the Council directed the City Attorney to draft a 
version of the administrative title which would not require a vote from the 
Mayor. That draft is attached as Title II (Version B). Version B starts with the 
adoption of all drafted changes in Version A. From there, every mayoral power 



 

 

 

enumerated by Utah Code §10-3b-104 is added or removed based on whether 
it existed under the city’s prior version of the Administrative Title. The table 
below summarizes the enumerated powers, whether they existed in the original 
title, and whether it exists in Version A and/or B. 
 
 The City Attorney recommends passing Version A of Title II with 
any additional changes the Mayor and City Council feel are necessary. This 
would require a vote of a Council majority plus the Mayor, or a unanimous 
Council without the Mayor.  
 
 If the Mayor and Council are unable to come to sufficient agreement 
to pass Version A, a Council majority without the Mayor could pass Version B 
as drafted. Any changes to Version B which affect the statutorily enumerated 
powers of the mayor would also affect who must vote for Version B to pass. 
 



STATUTORILY ENUMERATED POWERS & DUTIES OF THE MAYOR 

POWER/DUTY 
§10-3B-104(1) 

subsection 

ORIGINAL 

TITLE? 

VERSION 

A? 

VERSION 

B? 

The chief executive officer of the municipality to 

whom all employees of the municipality report. 
(A) 1-8-1 2.03.010 2.03.010 

Shall keep the peace and enforce the laws of the 

municipality 
(B)(i) 1-8-6 

2.03.010 (1.a. 

& 2.d) 

2.03.010 (1.a. 

& 2.h) 

Shall ensure that all applicable statutes and 

municipal ordinances and resolutions are 

faithfully executed and observed 

(B)(ii) 1-8-9 
Partial 

2.03.010.1.b 

Complete 

2.03.010.1.b 

If the mayor remits a fine or forfeiture… shall 

report the remittance to the council at the 

council's next meeting after the remittance 

(B)(iii) 1-8-5 - 2.03.010.1.e 

Shall perform all duties prescribed by statute or 

municipal ordinance or resolution 
(B)(iv) 1-8-9 

Partial 

2.03.010.2.e 

Complete 

2.03.010.1.g 

Shall report to the council the condition and 

needs of the municipality 
(B)(v) 1-8-2 

Partial 

2.03.010.1.d 

Complete 

2.03.010.1.d 

Shall report to the council any release granted (B)(vi) 1-8-5 - 2.03.010.1.f 

May recommend for council consideration any 

measure that the mayor considers to be in the 

best interests of the municipality; 

(C)(i) 
(shall)  

1-8-2 

(right to) 

2.03.010.1.c 

(shall) 

2.03.010.1.h 

May remit fines and forfeitures (C)(ii) 1-8-5 - 2.03.010.2.b 



POWER/DUTY 
§10-3B-104(1) 

subsection 

ORIGINAL 

TITLE? 

VERSION 

A? 

VERSION 

B? 

May, if necessary, call on residents of the 

municipality over the age of 21 years to assist in 

enforcing the laws of the state and ordinances of 

the municipality; 

(C)(iii) 
(Males)  

1-8-7 

(All) 

2.03.010.2.d 

(Males) 

2.03.010.2.h 

May release a person imprisoned for a violation 

of a municipal ordinance 
(C)(iv) 1-8-5 - 2.03.010.2.c 

May, with the council's advice and consent, 

assign or appoint a member of the council to 

administer one or more departments of the 

municipality; and 

(C)(v)(A) - - - 

May, with the council's advice and consent,  

appoint a person to fill: 

(I) a municipal office; or 

(II) a vacancy on a commission or committee of 

the municipality; 

(C)(v)(B) 1-8-3 2.03.010.2.a 2.03.010.2.a 

May at any reasonable time, examine and inspect 

the official books, papers, records, or documents 

of: 

(A) the municipality; or 

(B) any officer, employee, or agency of the 

municipality. 

(C)(vi) 
(at any time) 

1-8-8 

(at any 

reasonable 

time) 2.03.030 

(at any time) 

2.03.030 

 



1 

 

TITLE II (Version A) 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND PERSONNEL 2 

CHAPTER 1: GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 3 
2.01.010 Intent, Purpose 4 
2.01.020 Temporary Absence of City Manager 5 
2.01.030 Administrative Organization Generally 6 
2.01.040 Intergovernmental Intragovernmental Cooperation 7 

CHAPTER 2: CITY COUNCIL 8 
2.02.010 Governing Body 9 
2.02.020 Powers and Duties 10 
2.02.030 Meetings 11 
2.02.040 Open Meetings Law 12 
2.02.050 Notice of Meetings 13 
2.02.060 Agenda 14 
2.02.070 Minutes 15 
2.02.080 Mayor Presides 16 
2.02.090 Quorum 17 
2.02.100 Voting 18 
2.02.110 Reconsideration 19 
2.02.120 Rules of Procedure 20 
2.02.130 Council Committees 21 
2.02.140 Attendance 22 
2.02.150 Disorderly Conduct 23 
2.02.160 Required Attendance of Witnesses and Production of Evidence 24 
2.02.170 Records Open to Inspection 25 
2.02.180 Additional Duties and Powers may be Prescribed 26 

CHAPTER 3: MAYOR 27 
2.03.010 Functions and Duties 28 
2.03.020 Presiding Officer 29 
2.03.030 Intergovernmental CooperationRecords Open to Inspection 30 
2.03.040 Vacancy in OfficeMayor Pro Tempore 31 
2.03.050 RestrictionsVacancy in Office 32 
2.03.060 Restrictions 33 

CHAPTER 4: CITY MANAGER 34 
2.04.010 Office CreatedTerm of Office 35 
2.04.020 ResignationTerm of Office 36 
2.04.030 Resignation Other Employment 37 
2.04.040 Other Employment Powers of Mayor Not Delegated 38 
2.04.050 Powers of Mayor Not DelegatedDuties 39 
2.04.060 Duties 40 

CHAPTER 5: APPOINTED OFFICES 41 
2.05.010 Appointed Offices 42 



2 

 

2.05.020 Appointment and Vacancies 43 
2.05.030 Bond 44 
2.05.040 Salaries 45 
2.05.050 Transfer of Records 46 
2.05.060 Conflicts of Interests 47 
2.05.070 City Recorder 48 
2.05.080 City Treasurer 49 
2.05.090 City Police Chief 50 

CHAPTER 6: DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION 51 
2.06.010 City Finance Director 52 
2.06.020 City Engineer 53 
2.06.030 City Public Works Director 54 
2.06.040 City Attorney 55 
2.06.050 City Justice Court Judge 56 
2.06.060 City Recreation Director 57 
2.06.070 City Fire Chief 58 
2.06.080 Community and Economic Development Director 59 
2.06.090 Information Technology Director 60 

CHAPTER 7: CAMPAIGN FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE IN CITY ELECTIONS 61 
2.07.010 Campaign Financial Disclosure 62 

CHAPTER 8: GOVERNMENT RECORDS 63 
2.08.010 General 64 
2.08.020 Retention Schedule 65 
2.08.030 Records requests 66 
2.08.040 Fees 67 
2.08.050 Fee Waiver 68 
2.08.060 Appeals 69 

70 



3 

 

CHAPTER 1 71 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 72 

2.01.010 Intent, Purpose 73 
2.01.020 Temporary Absence of City Manager 74 
2.01.030 Administrative Organization Generally 75 
2.01.040 Intergovernmental Intragovernmental Cooperation 76 

2.01.010: INTENT, PURPOSE 77 

It is the intent and purpose of this title of the Syracuse Municipal Code to 78 
establish and clarify the organization and operation of city departments and to 79 
provide for an orderly means of conducting the operation of city government. It is 80 
further intended that this title ensure cooperation and coordination between the 81 
legislative branch, the executive branch, and all departments of the city. All 82 
ordinances of the city shall be construed in such manner as to foster and 83 
promote such cooperation, liaison and coordination. 84 

2.01.020: TEMPORARY ABSENCE OF CITY MANAGER 85 

In the event of the temporary absence of the City Manager due to illness, 86 
vacation or similar reasons, the Mayor may assign a designee or act in the 87 
position of the City Manager. 88 

2.01.030: ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION GENERALLY 89 

Department heads, as provided by this title, shall report to the City Manager who 90 
shall report directly to the Mayor. Subject to the limitations and requirements of 91 
applicable budget and appropriations, the city's administrative organization shall 92 
consist of the operating departments, offices, and divisions or bureaus, as set 93 
forth in this title. 94 

2.01.040: INTERGOVERNMENTAL INTRAGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 95 

1.   Information to City Council: The Mayor, in conjunction with the City 96 
ManagerDepartment heads, shall provide such information concerning city 97 
finances, operations and procedures, as reasonably requested by the City 98 
Council and necessary for the City Council to fulfill its statutory duties, which 99 
are not privileged, private or confidential. Direct access to and 100 
communication with department heads shall be available to the extent it is 101 
reasonable in nature and aids the City Council in fulfilling its duties. 102 

2.   Interference by Council Prohibited: No member of the City Council shall 103 
direct or request, except in writing, the appointment of any person to, or his 104 
removal from, office or to interfere in any way with the performance by the 105 
officers of their duties.  The City Council shall, in compliance with norms and 106 
code of Conduct, not give orders to any subordinate of the Mayor either 107 
publicly or privately. 108 



4 

 

CHAPTER 2 109 

CITY COUNCIL 110 

2.02.010 Powers and Duties 111 
2.02.020 Vacancy in Office 112 
2.02.030 Meetings 113 
2.02.040 Open Meetings Law 114 
2.02.050 Notice of Meetings 115 
2.02.060 Agenda 116 
2.02.070 Minutes 117 
2.02.080 Mayor Presides 118 
2.02.090 Quorum 119 
2.02.100 Voting 120 
2.02.110 Reconsideration 121 
2.02.120 Rules of Procedure 122 
2.02.130 Council Committees 123 
2.02.140 Attendance 124 
2.02.150 Disorderly Conduct 125 
2.02.160 Required Attendance of Witnesses and Production of Evidence 126 
2.02.170 Records Open to Inspection 127 
2.02.180 Additional Duties and Powers may be Prescribed 128 

2.02.010: POWERS AND DUTIES 129 

The City Council: 130 

1.   is the legislative body of the municipality and shall exercises the legislative 131 
powers and performs the legislative duties and functions of the 132 
municipality; and 133 

2.   may: 134 

(a)  pass all ordinances and rules, and make all regulations, not 135 
repugnant to law, necessary for carrying into effect or 136 
discharging all powers and duties conferred by law, and as are 137 
necessary and proper to provide for the safety and preserve the 138 
health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace 139 
and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its 140 
inhabitants, and for the protection of property in the city.adopt 141 
rules and regulations, not inconsistent with statute, for the 142 
efficient administration, organization, operation, conduct, and 143 
business of the municipality; 144 

(b)  prescribe by resolution additional duties, powers, and responsibilities 145 
for any elected or appointed municipal official, unless prohibited by 146 
statute; 147 

(c)  require by ordinance that any or all appointed officers reside in the 148 
municipality; 149 

(d)  provide for filling a vacancy in an elective or appointive office; 150 



5 

 

(e)  take any action allowed under Utah Code Ann. § 10-8-84, as 151 

amended; and 152 

(f)   perform any function specifically provided for by statute or 153 
necessarily implied by law. 154 

2.02.020: MID-TERM VACANCY IN OFFICE 155 

Mid-term City Council vacancies shall be filled as provided in Utah Code 156 
Annotated Section 20A-1-510. 157 

2.02.030: MEETINGS 158 

1.   Regular Meetings. The City Council shall hold regular meetings to conduct 159 
the business of the City at least once each month and shall prescribe by 160 
ordinance the time and place for holding its regular meetings. 161 

2.   SpecialEmergency Meetings. If, because of unforeseen circumstances it is 162 
necessary for the City Council to hold an emergency meeting to consider 163 
matters of an emergency or urgent nature, an emergency meeting may be held 164 
after an attempt has been made to notify all members of the Governing Body 165 
and a majority of the members of the Governing Body approve the meeting, If 166 
at any time the business of the City requires a special meeting of the City 167 
Council, such a special meeting may be ordered by the Mayor or any two 168 
Council Members.  169 

a. Notice of Emergency Meetings. At least three hours’ nNotice of the special 170 
emergency meeting shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of 171 
Utah Code Ann. § 10-3-502, as amended. The Governing Body shall give 172 
the best notice practicable of the time and place of the emergency meeting 173 
and the topics to be considered at the emergency meeting. The City 174 
Recorder shall also serve such notice on each council member who did 175 
not approve the meeting, either through personal service or by leaving it at 176 
the member's usual place of abode. The order of the special emergency 177 
meeting shall be entered into the minutes of the City Council. The 178 
personal appearance by a council member at an emergency meeting 179 
constitutes a waiver of the required notice. 180 

3.   Closed Meetings. The affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the City 181 
CouncilGoverning Body present at an open meeting for which notice is given 182 
and a quorum is present may call a closed meeting to discuss certain items 183 
as provided under Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-5, as amended. The reason or 184 
reasons for holding a closed meeting and the vote, either for or against the 185 
proposition to hold such a meeting, cast by each member, by name, shall be 186 
entered on the minutes  187 
of the meeting. No ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, contract, or 188 
appointment shall be approved at a closed meeting. 189 

4.   Electronic Meetings. 190 



6 

 

a.   Definitions. As used in this Syracuse Municipal Code: 191 

i.   “Anchor location” means the physical location from which the 192 
electronic meeting originates or from which the participants 193 
are connected. 194 

ii.   “Electronic meeting” means a City Council meeting 195 
convened or conducted by means of a conference using 196 
electronic communications.= 197 

iii.   “Electronic notice” means electronic mail or fax. 198 

iv.   “Monitor” means to hear or observe, live, by audio or video 199 
equipment, all of the public statements of each member of 200 
the City Council who is participating in a meeting. 201 

v.   “Participate” means the ability to communicate with all of the 202 
members of the City Council, either verbally or electronically, 203 
so that each member of the City Council can hear or observe 204 
the communication. 205 

vi.   “Public hearing” means a portion of a meeting at which 206 
comments from the public will be accepted. 207 

vii.   “Public statement” means a statement made in the ordinary 208 
course of business of the City Council with the intent that all 209 
other members of the City Council receive it. 210 

b.   Procedures. The City Council may, by following the procedures and 211 
requirements of this Ordinance, convene and conduct an electronic 212 
meeting. The City Council convening or conducting an electronic 213 
meeting shall: 214 

i.   Give public notice of the meeting pursuant to Utah Code 215 
Ann. § 52-4-202 by posting written notice at the anchor 216 
location; and 217 

ii.   Providing written or electronic notice to at least one 218 
newspaper of general circulation within the state; and a local 219 
media correspondent; 220 

c. In addition to giving public notice required by Subsection (i), provide: 221 

i.   Notice of the electronic meeting to the members of the City 222 
Council at least 24 hours before the meeting so that they 223 
may participate in and be counted as present for all 224 
purposes, including the determination that a quorum is 225 
present; and 226 

ii.   A description of how the members will be connected to the 227 
electronic meeting. 228 

d.   Electronic Meeting General. The procedures to be followed at the 229 



7 

 

electronic meeting shall be the same as those followed by the City 230 
Council in a non-electronic open and public meeting of the City 231 
Council. The Mayor, or Mayor Pro-tempore, shall conduct the 232 
meeting and the meeting shall be held pursuant to the agenda 233 
posted for that meeting. Prior to commencing the electronic meeting, 234 
an electronic link shall be established with all participants and the 235 
anchor location. Minutes shall be kept for the meeting in accordance 236 
with the requirements of the Open Meetings Law. Following passage 237 
of a motion to adjourn, the electronic link shall be terminated and the 238 
meeting shall be deemed concluded. If the meeting is a public 239 
hearing, space and facilities will be provided at the anchor location 240 
so that interested persons and the public may attend, monitor and 241 
participate in the open portions of the meeting. 242 

2.02.040: OPEN MEETINGS LAW 243 

All meetings of the City Council shall be open to the public, except closed 244 
meetings, and shall be conducted in accordance with the Open and Public 245 
Meetings Act as set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-1, et seq., as amended. 246 

2.02.050: NOTICE OF MEETINGS 247 

The City shall give public notice at least once each year of its annual meeting 248 
schedule and shall give not less than twenty-four (24) hours public notice of the 249 
agenda, date, time and place of each of its meetings, other than emergency 250 
meetings, in accordance with this title and Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-6, as 251 
amended. 252 

2.02.060: AGENDA 253 

A written agenda for each regular meeting shall be prepared by the City Manager 254 
or his designee. The Mayor or two members of the City Council may place items 255 
on the agenda. 256 

2.02.070: MINUTES 257 

Written minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the City Council in accordance 258 
with the provisions set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-7, as amended. 259 

2.02.080: MAYOR PRESIDES 260 

The Mayor shall be the chairperson and preside at the meetings of the City 261 
Council. In the absence of the Mayor or because of his inability or refusal to act, 262 
the City Council may elect a member of the City Council to preside over the 263 
meeting as Mayor Pro Tempore in accordance with the procedures set forth in 264 
Chapter 2.03 of this Title of the Syracuse Municipal Code. 265 

2.02.090: QUORUM 266 

No action of the City Council shall be official or of any effect except when a 267 
quorum of the Council Members are present, except as otherwise provided by 268 
law. Three (3) or more members of the City Council, not including the Mayor, 269 
shall constitute a quorum. 270 



8 

 

2.02.100: VOTING 271 

1.   How Taken. A roll call vote shall be taken and recorded for all ordinances, 272 
resolutions, and any action which would create a liability against the city and 273 
in any other case at the request of any member of the City Council by a “yes” 274 
or a “no” vote. Every resolution or ordinance shall be in writing before the 275 
vote is taken. 276 

2.   Number Required. The minimum number of “yes” votes required to pass any 277 
ordinance, resolution, or to take any action by the Governing Body, unless 278 
otherwise prescribed by law, shall be three (3). Any ordinance, resolution, or 279 
motion of the Governing Body having fewer favorable votes than required 280 
herein shall be deemed defeated and invalid; except in the following: fewer 281 
votes may compel attendance of absentees, may adjourn a meeting from 282 
time to time, and may fill a vacancy in the Governing Body. 283 

3.   Mayor Voting. The Mayor shall not vote at meetings of the City Council, 284 
except in case of a tie vote of the City Council, the appointment or dismissal 285 
of the City Manager, or as otherwise provided by law.  Furthermore, the 286 
Mayor shall have no power to veto any act of the City Council unless 287 
otherwise specifically authorized by statute. 288 

2.02.110: RECONSIDERATION 289 

Any action taken by the City Council shall not be reconsidered or rescinded at 290 
any special meeting unless the number of members of the City Council present 291 
at the special meeting is equal to or greater than the number of members present 292 
at the meeting when the action was approved. 293 

2.02.120: RULES OF PROCEDURE 294 

Except as otherwise provided by law, the City Council may determine its own 295 
rules of procedure or the proper conduct of its meetings. In general, the City 296 
Council refers to Robert’s Rules of Order as a guide for the conduct of its 297 
business. The Council may further adopt norms and/or a Code of Conduct to 298 
establish practices and procedures, at its discretion. 299 

2.02.130: COUNCIL ADVISORY COMMITTEES 300 

The City Council may from time to time create subcommittees titled Council 301 
Advisory Committees to advise the City Council as a whole on issues affecting 302 
the City. 303 

2.02.140: ATTENDANCE 304 

The City Council shall have the power to compel the attendance of its own 305 
members and to provide such penalties as it deems necessary for the failure to 306 
comply therewith. 307 

2.02.150: DISORDERLY CONDUCT 308 

The City Council may fine or expel any of its members for disorderly conduct 309 
upon an affirmative majority vote of those members present. The City Council 310 



9 

 

may also, upon an affirmative majority vote of those members present, expel any 311 
person who is disorderly during any regular, study, or special meeting of the City 312 
Council. 313 

2.02.160: REQUIRED ATTENDANCE OF WITNESSES AND PRODUCTION OF 314 
EVIDENCE 315 

The City Council may require the attendance of any person to give testimony or 316 
produce records, documents or things for inspection, copying or examination 317 
necessary or useful for the governance of the City. The City Council shall issue 318 
subpoenas in its own name in the manner provided in the Utah Rules of Civil 319 
Procedure or may by ordinance establish its own procedure for issuing 320 
subpoenas under this Section. 321 

2.02.170: RECORDS OPEN TO INSPECTION 322 

All records, books, papers, and documents belonging to any office of the City 323 
shall be open at any reasonable time to inspection by any member of the 324 
Council except as otherwise prohibited by law. A majority of the City Council 325 
may require any officer of the City, at any reasonable time, to prepare and 326 
provide a report in detail of all transactions in his office or any matters 327 
connected therewith. 328 

2.02.180: ADDITIONAL DUTIES AND POWERS MAY BE PRESCRIBED  329 

The duties, powers and privileges of all appointed officers in any way 330 
connected with the City government not herein defined may be prescribed by 331 
the City Council. 332 



10 

 

CHAPTER 3 333 

MAYOR 334 

2.03.010 Functions and Duties 335 
2.03.020 Presiding Officer 336 
2.03.030 Mayor Pro TemporeRecords Open to Inspection 337 
2.03.040 Intergovernmental CooperationMayor Pro Tempore 338 
2.03.050 Vacancy in Office 339 
2.03.060 Restrictions 340 

2.03.010: FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES 341 

In accordance with Utah Code 10-3b-104, the Mayor shall be the Chief Executive 342 
and Administrative Officer of the city. He  343 

1.  The Mayor shall have the power and duty to: 344 

1.a.   Enforce the laws and ordinances of the city; 345 

2.b.   Execute the policies adopted by the City Council; 346 

c. Attend all meetings of the City Council with the right to take part in all 347 
discussions and the responsibility to inform the City Council of the 348 
condition and needs of the municipality, and make recommendations 349 
and freely give advice to the City Council; 350 

d.   Furnish, or cause to be furnished,  the City Council with a report, 351 
periodically or as determined by ordinance, setting forth the amounts 352 
of all budget appropriations, the total disbursements to date from 353 
these appropriations, and the amount of indebtedness incurred or 354 
contracted against each appropriation (including disbursements and 355 
indebtedness incurred and not paid) and the percentage of the 356 
appropriations encumbered to date, which reports shall be made 357 
available for public inspections; 358 

  2. The Mayor may: 359 

3.a.   Appoint and remove the City Manager, department heads, 360 
commission, board and committee members with the advice and 361 
consent of the City Council, except as may otherwise be specifically 362 
limited by law; 363 

4.   Attend all meetings of the City Council with the right to take part in all 364 
discussions and the responsibility to inform the City Council of the 365 
condition and needs of the municipality, and make recommendations and 366 
freely give advice to the City Council; 367 

5.b.   Appoint or act as the budget officer for the purpose of fulfilling the 368 
requirements of the Uniform Municipal Fiscal Procedures Act for Utah 369 
cities; 370 

6.c.   Appoint, with the advice and consent of the City Council, a 371 



11 

 

qualified person to each appointed office deemed necessary for 372 
good government; 373 

7.   Furnish, or cause to be furnished,  the City Council with a report, 374 
periodically or as determined by ordinance, setting forth the amounts of 375 
all budget appropriations, the total disbursements to date from these 376 
appropriations, and the amount of indebtedness incurred or contracted 377 
against each appropriation (including disbursements and indebtedness 378 
incurred and not paid) and the percentage of the appropriations 379 
encumbered to date, which reports shall be made available for public 380 
inspections; 381 

8.c.   Execute agreements within certified budget appropriations on behalf of 382 
the city, or delegate by written executive order the power to execute such 383 
agreements to executive officials, subject to the procedure described in 384 
Utah Code Annotated, section 10-6-138; 385 

9.d.   When necessary, call on the residents of the city over the age of 386 
twenty one (21) years to assist in enforcing the laws of the state and 387 
ordinances of the city and may exercise within the City limits the power to 388 
suppress disorder and keep the peace as allowed by statute and the 389 
Constitutions of Utah and the United States; and 390 

10.e. Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by this title or may 391 
be required by ordinance consistent with a six member council. 392 

2.03.020: PRESIDING OFFICER 393 

The Mayor shall be the Chief Executive Officer and preside at the meetings of the 394 
City Council. However, the Mayor shall not vote at meetings of the City Council, 395 
except in case of a tie vote of the City Council, the appointment or dismissal of 396 
the City Manager, or as otherwise provided by law. Furthermore, the Mayor shall 397 
have no power to veto any act of the City Council unless otherwise specifically 398 
authorized by statute. 399 

2.03.030: RECORDS OPEN TO INSPECTION 400 

All records, books, papers, and documents belonging to any office of the City 401 
shall be open at any reasonable time to inspection by the Mayor except as 402 
otherwise prohibited by law. The Mayor may require any officer of the City, at 403 
any reasonable time, to prepare and provide a report in detail of all 404 
transactions in his office or any matters connected therewith.  405 
 406 

2.03.030040: MAYOR PRO TEMPORE 407 

The City Council shall annually elect the Mayor Pro Tempore and two additional 408 
persons, in specific order of succession, as emergency interim successors to act 409 
in the absence of the Mayor. In the absence of the Mayor or because of his 410 
inability or refusal to act, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall preside over the meeting 411 
and shall possess the powers and duties of Mayor. Any member of the City 412 
Council elected as Mayor Pro Tempore shall retain his power and authority as a 413 
member of the City Council and shall be entitled to vote as a member of the City 414 
Council on all matters. 415 



12 

 

2.03.050: MID-TERM VACANCY IN OFFICE 416 

A mid-term vacancy in the office of the Mayor shall be filled as provided in Utah 417 
Code Annotated, section 20A-1-510. 418 

2.03.060: RESTRICTIONS 419 

The Mayor may not serve as the City Recorder or as the City Treasurer as 420 
dictated in Utah Code Annotated, section 10-3-301. 421 



13 

 

CHAPTER 4 422 

CITY MANAGER 423 

2.04.010 Term of Office 424 
2.04.020 Resignation 425 
2.04.030 Other Employment 426 
2.04.040 Powers of Mayor Not Delegated 427 
2.04.050 Duties 428 

2.4.010: Term of OfficeTERM OF OFFICE 429 

The City Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be 430 
terminated at any time with or without cause. 431 

2.04.020: ResignationRESIGNATION 432 

Before voluntarily resigning from the position of City Manager, the City Manager 433 
shall give the City Council at least thirty (30) days notice in writing of his intent to 434 
resign. 435 

2.04.030: Other EmploymentOTHER EMPLOYMENT 436 

The City Manager shall not accept any outside employment in addition to 437 
employment by the City without prior annual written approval of the City Council. 438 

2.04.040: Powers of Mayor Not DelegatedPOWERS OF MAYOR NOT DELEGATED 439 

The legislative and judicial powers of the Mayor, his position as chairman of the 440 
City Council, and any ex officio position he may hold, shall not be delegated to 441 
the City Manager. 442 

2.04.050: DutiesDUTIES 443 

1.   The powers, duties, and functions of the office of City Manager shall be 444 
subject to the control of the Governing Body, but such Manager shall report 445 
to the Mayor pursuant to provisions of Section 10-3b-104(1)(a), Utah Code 446 
Annotated, or its successor section. 447 

2.   Appoint and Remove Employees. Except as set forth in Chapter 3, above, 448 
regarding the Mayor’s duties, the City Manager shall have the authority to 449 
appoint, employ and remove employees as provided herein. The City 450 
Manager shall also be responsible for reviewing the status and performance 451 
of any personnel being considered for discharge, transfer, or demotion from 452 
appointment or employment with the City.  In addition, the Manager shall 453 
exercise control of all departments, divisions and bureaus within the city 454 
government; 455 

3.   Supervise Department Heads. The City Manager shall provide direct 456 
supervision of and have direct responsibility over each Department Head. 457 



14 

 

4.   Personnel Policies. The City Manager shall be responsible for implementing 458 
and enforcing the personnel policies and procedures of the City. 459 

5.   Inventory Property. The City Manager shall keep or cause to be kept a 460 
current inventory showing all real and personal property of the City and its 461 
location. The City Manager shall be responsible for the care and custody of 462 
all such property, including equipment, buildings, parks and all other City 463 
property which is not by law assigned to some other officer or body for care 464 
and control. 465 

6.   Purchasing and Claims. The City Manager shall implement and enforce all 466 
provisions of the ordinances of the City relating to purchasing. 467 

7.   Council Meetings. The City Manager shall attend meetings of the City 468 
Council and may take part in the discussion and recommend to the City 469 
Council adoption of such measures as the City Manager may deem 470 
necessary or expedient. 471 

8.   Review Contracts. In Accordance with adopted City polices and procedures 472 
of the City, the Manager shall review, where appropriate, make 473 
recommendations, and where within his authority, execute, proposed 474 
contracts of the City. 475 

9.   Propose Plans and Programs. The City Manager shall propose plans and 476 
programs concerning the development, operation and needs of the City and 477 
submit such plans to the City Council to be approved and developed as 478 
policy. 479 

 480 

10. Implement Policy. The City Manager shall implement all policy changes and 481 
directives of the Mayor and the City Council. 482 

11. Management Controls. The City Manager shall set performance standards 483 
and exercise managerial control to ensure that the City government is 484 
functioning in the most efficient and effective manner. 485 

12. Organization. The City Manager shall recommend the creation and 486 
organization of all necessary departments, divisions, and bureaus necessary 487 
for the government of the City to the City Council for its approval prior to 488 
implementation. 489 

13. Records. The City Manager shall, as needed, examine the books, records, 490 
and official papers of the City's departments and offices. 491 

 492 

14. Legislative Mandates. The City Manager shall be responsible to keep abreast 493 
of and advise the Governing Body regarding legislative changes and issues 494 
that affect the City. 495 

15. Additional Duties. The City Manager shall have such other powers and shall 496 
perform such other duties and obligations as may be required of him by State 497 
law or by ordinance, resolution, or policy of the City Council. 498 



15 

 

CHAPTER 5 499 

APPOINTED OFFICES 500 

2.05.010 Appointed Offices 501 
2.05.020 Appointment and Vacancies 502 
2.05.030 Bond 503 
2.05.040 Salaries 504 
2.05.050 Transfer of Records 505 
2.05.060 Conflicts of Interests 506 
2.05.070 City Recorder 507 
2.05.080 City Treasurer 508 
2.05.090 City Chief of Police 509 

2.05.010: APPOINTED OFFICES 510 

The City Council may create any appointed office deemed necessary for the 511 
government of the City and shall prescribe the powers and duties to be 512 
performed by appointed officials, including, but not limited to, the City Manager, 513 
the City Recorder, the City Treasurer, the City Attorney, the City Engineer, the 514 
City Police Chief, the City Justice Court Judge, and Department Heads. 515 

2.05.020: APPOINTMENT AND VACANCIES 516 

The Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, may appoint and fill 517 
vacancies in all appointed offices provided for by law or ordinance. Except as 518 
otherwise provided by law, the term of office of all appointed officers shall be until 519 
their respective successors are chosen and qualified, unless they are sooner 520 
removed by the Mayor with the concurrence of a majority of the members of the 521 
City Council, or by the City Council with the concurrence of the Mayor. 522 

2.05.030: BOND 523 

1.   Required. Before commencing the duties of office, the City Recorder and City 524 
Treasurer shall execute a bond with good and sufficient sureties payable to 525 
the City or shall be included within public employee blanket bonds 526 
conditioned for the faithful performance of the duties of his office and the 527 
payment of all monies received by such officer according to the law and the 528 
ordinances of the City in the applicable amount set forth by the State Money 529 
Management Council. In the event that someone other than the City 530 
Treasurer is disbursing funds, that person shall be bonded as well. 531 

2.   Limitation on Treasurer's Bond. The City Treasurer's bond may not be set at 532 
an amount less than that established by the State Money Management 533 
Council pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, section 51-7-15, as amended. 534 

3.   Filed. All bonds shall be filed with the City Recorder, except the City 535 
Recorder's bond, which shall be filed with the City Treasurer. 536 

 537 

4.   Premium Charge. The premium charge by a corporate surety for any official 538 
bond shall be paid by the City. 539 



16 

 

5.   Additional Bonds. The City Council may at any time require further and 540 
additional bonds of any or all appointed officers of the City by resolution or 541 
ordinance. 542 

2.05.040: SALARIES 543 

1.   Salary. Appointed officers shall receive such compensation for their services 544 
as the City Council may fix or amend by ordinance in accordance with notice 545 
and hearing requirements set forth in Utah Code Annotated, section 10-3- 546 

818, as amended. 547 

2.   Monthly Compensation. Unless otherwise provided by ordinance, the 548 
compensation of municipal officers shall be paid at least monthly. 549 

2.05.050: TRANSFER OF RECORDS 550 

Every officer of the City, upon expiration of his term for any cause whatsoever, 551 
shall deliver to his successor all books and records which may be the property of 552 
the City immediately after notification and/or request to do so. 553 

2.05.060: CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 554 

All appointed officers of the City shall annually disclose conflicts of interest and 555 
otherwise adhere to provisions of the Utah Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act, 556 
set forth at in Utah Code Ann. §10-3-1301, et seq., as amended, hereby adopted 557 
by reference as if fully set forth herein. 558 

2.05.070: CITY RECORDER 559 
 560 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a municipal 561 
election, the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, shall 562 
appoint a qualified person to the office of City Recorder. 563 

2.   Office. The City Recorder shall occupy an office in the City offices or at some 564 
other place convenient thereto as the City Council may direct. 565 

 566 

3.   Corporate Seal. The City Recorder shall keep the Corporate Seal. When 567 
certified by the City Recorder under the Corporate Seal, copies of all papers 568 
filed in the City Recorder's office and transcripts from all records of the City 569 
Council shall be admissible in all courts as originals. 570 

4.   Meetings of City Council. The City Recorder, or his designee, shall attend 571 
meetings and keep the record of the proceedings of the City Council. 572 

 573 

5.   Actions of City Council. The City Recorder shall record all ordinances, 574 
resolutions, and regulations passed by the City Council. 575 

6.   Contracts. The City Recorder shall countersign all contracts made on behalf 576 
of the City or to which the City is a party and shall maintain a properly 577 
indexed record of all such contracts. 578 



17 

 

7.   Elections and Appointments. The City Recorder shall manage all municipal 579 
election procedures and requirements as provided in the Utah Code 580 
Annotated, as amended, and shall keep a record of all persons elected or 581 
appointed to any office within the City, including the date of appointment or 582 
election, term of office, date of death, resignation, or removal, and name of 583 
person appointed to fill any vacancy. 584 

8.   Records of the City. The City Recorder shall keep all of the books, records, 585 
accounts and documents of the City at the Recorder's Office. Such records 586 
shall be open for public inspection pursuant to the provisions of the Utah 587 
Government Records Access and Management Act. 588 

 589 

9.   Limitations. The City Recorder shall not serve as the City Treasurer. 590 

10. Additional Duties. The City Recorder shall perform such other and further 591 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 592 
regulation.. 593 

2.05.080: CITY TREASURER 594 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a municipal 595 
election, the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, shall 596 
appoint a qualified person to the office of City Treasurer. 597 

2.   Custodian. The City Treasurer shall be the custodian of all money, bonds, or 598 
other securities belonging to the City. 599 

3.   Collections. The City Treasurer shall collect and receive all monies payable 600 
to the City, including taxes, assessments, licenses, fines, forfeitures, service 601 
charges, fees and other revenues of the City. The City Treasurer shall keep 602 
an accurate account of all monies received hereunder and shall promptly 603 
deposit all such monies in the appropriate bank accounts of the City. 604 

4.   Receipts. The City Treasurer shall give or cause to be given to every person 605 
paying money to the City Treasury, a receipt or other evidence of payment 606 
therefore, specifying the date of payment and the  amount paid. The City 607 
Treasurer shall file the duplicate of such receipt, a summary report, or other 608 
evidence of payment in the office of the City Recorder. 609 

5.   Checks. The City Treasurer, or other designated person, shall sign all checks 610 
and shall, prior to affixing said signature, determine or cause to be 611 
determined that sufficient funds are on deposit in the appropriate bank 612 
account of the City to honor such check. 613 

 614 

6.   Warrants. The City Treasurer shall pay all warrants in the order in which 615 
presented and as money becomes available for payment thereof in the 616 
appropriate funds of the City. The City Treasurer shall note upon the back of 617 
each warrant presented the date of presentation and the date of payment. 618 

7.   Special Assessments. All monies received by the City Treasurer on any 619 
special assessment shall be applied to the payment of the improvement for 620 
which the assessment was made. 621 



18 

 

8.   Accounting. The City Treasurer shall keep an accurate and detailed 622 
accounting of all transactions, receipts, collections, disbursements and other 623 
matters within the Treasurer's charge as provided by State law or as the City 624 
may by ordinance or resolution direct. 625 

9.   Limitations. The City Treasurer shall not serve as the City Recorder. 626 

10. Additional Duties. The City Treasurer shall perform such other and further 627 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 628 
regulation. 629 

2.05.090: CITY POLICE CHIEF 630 
 631 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a municipal 632 
election, the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, shall 633 
appoint a qualified person to the office of City Police Chief. 634 

2.   Duties. The Police Chief shall have the same authority and responsibilities as 635 
sheriffs and constables of Davis County, Utah, pursuant to provisions of Utah 636 
Code Annotated §10-3-913,, or its successor section,, and shall: 637 

a.   suppress riots, disturbances, and breaches of the peace; 638 

b.   apprehend all persons violating State laws or City ordinances; 639 

c. diligently discharge his or her duties and enforce all ordinances of 640 
the City to preserve the peace, good order, and protection of the 641 
rights and property of all persons; attend the municipal Justice Court 642 
of the City when required, provide security for such Court, and obey 643 
its orders and directions; and 644 

d.   Additional Duties. The City Police Chief shall perform such other and 645 
further duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, 646 
resolution, or regulation. 647 

648 



19 

 

CHAPTER 6 649 

DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION 650 

2.06.010 City Finance Director 651 
2.06.020 City Engineer 652 
2.06.030 City Public Works Director 653 
2.06.040 City Attorney 654 
2.06.050 City Justice Court Judge 655 
2.06.060 City Recreation Director 656 
2.06.070 City Fire Chief 657 
2.06.080 Community and Economic Development Director 658 
2.06.090 Information Technology Director 659 

2.06.010: CITY FINANCE DIRECTOR 660 

1.   Position Created. The position of Finance Director is hereby created 661 
pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, Section 10-6-157, as amended (1953). 662 

2.   Accounts and Payment of Claims. The Finance Director shall maintain or 663 
cause to be maintained the general books for each fund of the City and all 664 
subsidiary and detailed records relating thereto, including a list of outstanding 665 
bonds, for what purpose, when and where paya ble, and the rate of interest 666 
they respectively bear, together with the amount of each outstanding. The 667 
Director shall keep accounts with all receiving and disbursing officers of the 668 
City, shall pre-audit all claims and demands against the City before they are 669 
allowed, and shall prepare checks in payment thereof to be drawn on the 670 
appropriate bank accounts of the City. The Director shall certify on the check 671 
or voucher copy of the check that he has pre-audited the claim, that it is true 672 
and correct, that it is within the lawful debt limit of the City, that it does not 673 
over expend the appropriate departmental budget and that the claim has 674 
been approved by the City Council. The Director shall also state the date of 675 
approval. 676 

3.   Ex Officio Auditor. The Finance Director shall be the ex officio auditor of 677 
Syracuse City and shall perform the duties of such office without extra 678 
compensation. 679 

4.   Financial Statements. The Finance Director or other delegated person shall 680 
prepare and present to the City Council the following financial statements: 681 

a.   As of the end of each month, a summary of cash receipts and 682 
disbursements by funds or appropriate groups of funds, showing in 683 
total, the beginning cash and invested balances, the receipts and 684 
disbursements separately for the period, and cash and invested 685 
balances in each fund or groups of funds at the end of the period. 686 

b.   As of the end of such period as the City Council may direct, but not 687 
less often than once each quarter, a statement of revenues and 688 
expenditures and comparison with the budget of the general fund. 689 

c. An annual statement of income and expense of each utility fund, 690 



20 

 

reflecting operations to date in the current year and a comparison691 



21 

 

thereof with operating results for the same period during the 692 
preceding year. 693 

d.   As of the end of such periods as the City Council may require, a 694 
condensed statement of receipts and disbursements and comparison 695 
with the cash budget of each utility fund. 696 

e.   Such statements of operations in other special funds or reports on 697 
financial condition at such times as the City Council may require. 698 

5.   Annual Audited Report. Within 180 days after the close of each fiscal period, 699 
the Finance Director or other delegated person shall prepare an annual 700 
financial report, in accordance with the Uniform Accounting Manual for Utah 701 
Cities. This report shall include a statement of revenues and expenditures 702 
and comparison with budgets for those funds for which budgets are required, 703 
statements of revenues and expenditures or of income and expense, as the 704 
case may be, of all other operating funds; a balance sheet of each fund and 705 
a combined balance sheet of all funds as of the close of the fiscal year, 706 
together with such other financial and statistical data as the City Council may 707 
require. The report shall also identify impact fee funds by the year in which 708 
they were received, the project from which they were collected, the capital 709 
projects for which the funds are budgeted, and the projected schedule for 710 
expenditure. The annual financial report may be conducted by an 711 
independent auditor on the results of operation for the year and financial 712 
condition at the close of the year, if the report is appropriately prepared and 713 
reviewed with the City Council.  Copies of the annual report shall be filed as 714 
a public document in the office of the City Recorder. 715 

6.   Publication of Annual Statement of Financial Condition. The Finance Director 716 
shall prepare and furnish to the City Council, on or before the first Monday in 717 
October of each year, a detailed statement of the financial condition of the 718 
City, and all the revenues and expenditures of the previous year. 719 

7.   Certification of Annual Property Tax Levy. The Finance Director shall certify 720 
the resolution making the annual tax levy to the County Auditor not later than 721 
the first Thursday in August of each year. 722 

8.   Additional Duties. The City Finance Director shall perform such other and 723 
further duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 724 
regulation. 725 

2.06.020: CITY ENGINEER 726 

1.   Appointment. The City Council may contract with, retain, or appoint an 727 
engineer licensed to practice engineering in the State of Utah to the office of 728 
City Engineer. Any person appointed or retained as City Engineer shall be a 729 
registered professional engineer under Title 58, Chapter 22 of theas 730 
described in Utah Code Annotated, as amended. 731 

2.   Records. The City and/or the City Engineer shall maintain all maps, plans, 732 
plats, profiles, drawings, final estimates, specifications and contracts which in 733 
any way relate to the public improvements and engineering affairs of the City 734 



22 

 

and the holder of such records shall ensure public accessibility to the same 735 
as required by law. 736 

3.   Recording. The City Engineer shall record and file all drawings and 737 
documents pertaining to public lands and improvements of the City, and shall 738 
maintain such records and files in good condition allowing no alteration, 739 
mutilation or changes to be made. The recording or filing of any drawing or 740 
instrument with the City shall not conflict in any way with the recording or 741 
filing of the same in other offices of record. 742 

4.   Fees. The City Engineer shall not record any drawings or instruments, file 743 
any papers or notices, furnish any copies, or render any service connected 744 
with his official duties, until the required fees for the same are paid or 745 
tendered. 746 

5.   Seal. The City Engineer shall have a seal for his use, which seal shall be 747 
affixed to every certification approval. 748 

6.   Additional Duties. The City Engineer shall perform such other and further 749 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 750 
regulation. 751 

2.06.030: CITY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 752 

1.   Position Created. There is hereby created the position of Public Works 753 
Director who shall act as the Department Head of the Public Works 754 
Department. 755 

2.   Duties. The Public Works Director shall have such powers and duties as 756 
designated and assigned to him by the City Council. 757 

2.06.040: CITY ATTORNEY 758 

1.   Appointment. The City may contract with, retain, or appoint an attorney 759 
licensed to practice law in the State of Utah to the office of City Attorney to 760 
provide such legal assistance to the City as may be necessary. 761 

2.   Duties. The City Attorney shall act as legal advisor to the City in all matters 762 
pertaining to contracts with or by the City or questions of legality arising out 763 
of any law, ordinance or otherwise, and shall advise all City officers in 764 
relation to their official duties. It shall be the duty of the Attorney to appear 765 
and represent the City in all suits that may be brought in any court of 766 
record or otherwise, in which the City may be plaintiff or defendant, or in 767 
any manner interested, and to prosecute or defend such suit and protect 768 
the interests of the City as the circumstances require. 769 

3.   Criminal Prosecutor. The City may make a separate contract with ancontract 770 
with, retain, or appoint a separate attorney or attorneys for the performance 771 
of criminal prosecutorial legal services. 772 

2.06.050: CITY JUSTICE COURT JUDGE 773 

1. Appointment. The office of City Justice Court Judge is hereby created, who 774 



23 

 

shall act as the Justice Court Judge of the Syracuse City Justice Court. In 775 
case of a vacancy, the Davis County Justice Court Nominating Commission 776 
shall submit at least two names of applicants to the City. The Mayor shall 777 
appoint a judge from the list of submitted names, subject to ratification by the 778 
City Council. The Justice Court Judge shall be appointed and shall have 779 
such powers and duties as set forth in Title 4 780 

 of this Syracuse Municipal Code and as otherwise designated or assigned to 781 
him by the City Council. 782 

 783 

 2. Term/Retention. The Justice Court Judge is subject to an unopposed 784 
retention election at the first general election held more than three 785 

years after the judge was appointed. The term of a judge is six years 786 
beginning the first Monday in January following the date of election. If 787 
the judge wishes to retain office, in the years of a retention election he 788 

shall file a declaration of candidacy with the Davis County Clerk. If 789 
the judge does not receive more yes votes than no votes, the judge is 790 
not retained, and a vacancy exists in the office on the first Monday in 791 

January after the regular general election. 792 

 793 

 3. Duties. The Justice Court Judge shall preside as judge over all cases 794 
within the jurisdiction of the Syracuse City Justice Court. He shall 795 

comply with and ensure that court personnel comply with applicable 796 
city rules and regulations related to personnel, budgets, and other 797 

administrative functions. Failure by the judge to comply with 798 
applicable administrative rules and regulations may be referred by the 799 
City Council to the state Justice Court Administrator. Repeated or 800 

willful noncompliance may be referred by the City Council to the 801 

Judicial Conduct Commission. 802 

 803 



24 

 

2.06.060: RECREATION DIRECTOR 804 

The Recreation Director plans, schedules, and develops various recreation 805 
activities and programs for the community. 806 

2.06.070: CITY FIRE CHIEF 807 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a 808 
municipal mayoral election, thereThere shall be appointed by the Mayor, 809 
with the advice and consent of the City Council, a City Fire Chief who shall 810 
perform the duties required of him by law, and shall perform such other 811 
duties as the City Council may require. 812 

2.   Duties. The duty of extinguishing fires and of protecting life and property 813 
within the city is entrusted to the Chief of the Fire Department. He may make 814 
suitable regulations under which the officers and the members of the 815 
department shall be required to wear an appropriate uniform or badge by 816 
which, in case of fire and at other times, their authority and position in the fire 817 
department may be known. The Chief shall have sole and entire command 818 
over all officers and members of the department at fires. He shall have full 819 
charge at all times of all apparatus and appurtenances belonging to the 820 
department, and he shall adopt such measures as deemed expedient for the 821 
extinguishment of fire, protection of property, observance of the laws of the 822 
state, and duties required of him by law and the ordinances of the city. It 823 
shall be the duty of the Fire Chief to examine the condition of all buildings 824 
and to inspect engines, hoses, and hoods, and ladder equipment of the city 825 
fire department. It shall further be the duty of the Fire Chief to see that at all 826 
times the provisions of the ordinances relating to the protection and 827 
regulation of the property are strictly enforced, and to enforce all ordinances 828 
concerning the prevention and protection against fires. 829 

3.   Additional Duties. The City Fire Chief shall perform such other and further 830 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 831 
regulation. 832 

2.06.080: COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 833 

The Community and Economic Development Director is responsible for 834 
administering and enforcing the City’s planning, zoning ordinances, 835 
reviewing, proposing changes to and implementing the general plan, and 836 
other land use policies of the City, including the activities of the Planning 837 
Commission, Economic Development and Redevelopment Agency.  The 838 
director is responsible for overseeing subordinate employees including the 839 
Code Enforcement Officer, Business License Clerk, and other clerical 840 
support staff. 841 

2.06.090: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR 842 

The Information Technology Director is responsible for the overall 843 
planning, organizing, and execution of all information technology 844 
functions at Syracuse, including directing all information technology 845 
operations to meet city requirements, supporting and maintaining 846 



25 

 

existing applications and development of new technical solutions. 847 
848 



26 

 

CHAPTER 7 849 

CAMPAIGN FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE IN CITY ELECTIONS 850 

2.07.010 Campaign Financial Disclosure 851 

2.07.010: CAMPAIGN FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 852 
Campaign Financial Disclosure in City Elections is in accordance with Utah Code 853 
Ann. § 10-3-208, as amended. 854 

(1) As used in this section: 855 

(a) "Reporting date" means: 856 

(i) 10 days before a municipal general election, for a campaign 857 
finance statement required to be filed no later than seven days 858 
before a municipal general election; and 859 

(ii) the day of filing, for a campaign finance statement required to 860 
be filed no later than 30 days after a municipal primary or 861 
general election. 862 

(b) "Reporting limit" means: 863 

(i) $50; or 864 

(ii) an amount lower than $50 that is specified in an ordinance of 865 
the municipality. 866 

(2) (a) (i) Each candidate for municipal office who is not eliminated at a municipal 867 
primary election shall file with the municipal clerk or recorder a campaign finance 868 
statement: 869 

(A) no later than seven days before the date of the 870 
municipal general election; and 871 

(B) no later than 30 days after the date of the municipal 872 
general election. 873 

(ii) Each candidate for municipal office who is eliminated at a 874 
municipal primary election shall file with the municipal clerk or 875 
recorder a campaign finance statement no later than 30 days 876 
after the date of the municipal primary election. 877 

(b) Each campaign finance statement under Subsection 878 

(2)(a) shall: 879 

(i) except as provided in Subsection (2)(b)(ii): 880 
 881 

(A) report the candidate's itemized and total: 882 

21 883 



27 

 

(I) campaign contributions, including in-kind and 884 
other non-monetary contributions, received 885 
before the close of the reporting date; and 886 
(II) campaign expenditures made through the 887 
close of the reporting date; and 888 

(B) identify: 889 

(I) for each contribution that exceeds the 890 
reporting limit, the amount of the contribution 891 
and the name of the donor; 892 

(II) the aggregate total of all contributions that 893 
individually do not exceed the reporting limit; 894 
and 895 

(III) for each campaign expenditure, the amount 896 
of the expenditure and the name of the recipient 897 
of the expenditure; or 898 

(ii) report the total amount of all campaign contributions and 899 
expenditures if the candidate receives $500 or less in campaign 900 
contributions and spends $500 or less on the candidate's 901 
campaign. 902 

(4) Each municipal clerk or recorder shall, at the time the candidate for municipal 903 
office files a declaration of candidacy, and again 14 days before each municipal 904 
general election, notify the candidate in writing of: 905 

(a) the provisions this ordinance governing the disclosure of campaign 906 
contributions and expenditures; 907 

(b) the dates when the candidate's campaign finance statement is 908 
required to be filed; and 909 

(c) the penalties that apply for failure to file a timely campaign finance 910 
statement, including the statutory provision that requires removal of the 911 
candidate's name from the ballot for failure to file the required campaign 912 
finance statement when required. 913 

(5) Notwithstanding any provision of Title 63G, Chapter 2, Government Records 914 
Access and Management Act, the municipal clerk or recorder shall: 915 

(a) make each campaign finance statement filed by a candidate available 916 
for public inspection and copying no later than one business day after the 917 
statement is filed; and 918 

(b) make the campaign finance statement filed by a candidate available 919 
for public inspection by: 920 

(i) (A) posting an electronic copy or the contents of the statement 921 
on the municipality's website no later than seven business days 922 
after the statement is filed; and 923 



28 

 

(B) verifying that the address of the municipality's 924 
website has been provided to the lieutenant governor in 925 
order to meet the requirements of Subsection 20A-11- 926 
103(5); or 927 

(ii) submitting a copy of the statement to the lieutenant governor 928 
for posting on the website established by the lieutenant governor 929 
under Section 20A-11-103 no later than two business days after 930 
the statement is filed. 931 

(6) (a) If a candidate fails to file a campaign finance statement before the 932 
municipal general election by the deadline specified in Subsection (2)(a)(i)(A), 933 
the municipal clerk or recorder shall inform the appropriate election official who: 934 

(i) shall: 935 

(A) if practicable, remove the candidate's name from the 936 
ballot by blacking out the candidate's name before the 937 
ballots are delivered to voters; or 938 

(B) if removing the candidate's name from the ballot is 939 
not practicable, inform the voters by any practicable 940 
method that the candidate has been disqualified and that 941 
votes cast for the candidate will not be counted; and 942 

(ii) shall not count any votes for that candidate. 943 

(b) Notwithstanding Subsection (6)(a), a candidate who files a campaign 944 
finance statement seven days before a municipal general election is not 945 
disqualified if: 946 

(i) the statement details accurately and completely the 947 
information required under Subsection (2)(b), except for 948 
inadvertent omissions or insignificant errors or inaccuracies; and 949 

(ii) the omissions, errors, or inaccuracies are corrected in an 950 
amended report which is filed within 24 hours of discovery of the 951 
discrepancy. 952 

(7) A campaign finance statement required under this section is considered filed 953 
if it is received in the municipal clerk or recorder's office by 5 p.m. on the date 954 
that is it due. 955 

(8) (a) A private party in interest may bring a civil action in district court to enforce 956 
the provisions of this section. 957 

(b) In a civil action under Subsection (8)(a), the court may award costs 958 
and attorney's fees to the prevailing party. 959 

 960 

 961 



29 

 

1. As used in this section: 962 
a. "Reporting date" means: 963 

i. 10 days before a general election, for a campaign finance 964 
statement required to be filed no later than seven days before a 965 
general election; and 966 

ii. the day of filing, for a campaign finance statement required to be 967 
filed no later than 30 days after a primary or general election. 968 

b. "Reporting limit" means $50 for each calendar year: 969 
2.  970 

a.  971 
i. Each candidate for city office: 972 

(A) shall deposit a campaign contribution in a separate 973 
campaign account in a financial institution; and 974 

(B) may not deposit or mingle any campaign contributions 975 
received into a personal or business account. 976 

ii. Each candidate for city office who is not eliminated at a primary 977 
election shall file with the recorder a campaign finance statement: 978 
(A) no later than seven days before the date of the general 979 

election; and 980 
(B) no later than 30 days after the date of the general election. 981 

iii. Each candidate for city office who is eliminated at a primary 982 
election shall file with the recorder a campaign finance statement 983 
no later than 30 days after the date of the primary election. 984 

b. Each campaign finance statement under Subsection (2)(a) shall: 985 
i. except as provided in Subsection 2.b.ii.: 986 

(A) report all of the candidate's itemized and total: 987 
(1) campaign contributions, including in-kind and other 988 

nonmonetary contributions, received before the 989 
close of the reporting date; and 990 

(2) campaign expenditures made through the close of 991 
the reporting date; and 992 

(B) identify: 993 
(1) for each contribution that exceeds the reporting limit, 994 

the amount of the contribution and the name of the 995 
donor; 996 

(2) the aggregate total of all contributions that 997 
individually do not exceed the reporting limit; and 998 

(3) for each campaign expenditure, the amount of the 999 
expenditure and the name of the recipient of the 1000 
expenditure; or 1001 

ii. report the total amount of all campaign contributions and 1002 
expenditures if the candidate receives $500 or less in campaign 1003 
contributions and spends $500 or less on the candidate's 1004 
campaign. 1005 

3.  1006 
a. As used in this Subsection 3, "account" means an account in a 1007 

financial institution: 1008 
i. that is not described in Subsection 2.a.i.(A); and 1009 
ii. into which or from which a person who, as a candidate for an 1010 

office, other than a city office for which the person files a 1011 
declaration of candidacy or federal office, or as a holder of an 1012 
office, other than a city office for which the person files a 1013 
declaration of candidacy or federal office, deposits a contribution 1014 
or makes an expenditure. 1015 

b. A city office candidate shall include on any campaign finance 1016 



30 

 

statement filed in accordance with this section: 1017 
i. a contribution deposited in an account: 1018 

(A) since the last campaign finance statement was filed; or 1019 
(B) that has not been reported under a statute or ordinance 1020 

that governs the account; or 1021 
ii. an expenditure made from an account: 1022 

(A) since the last campaign finance statement was filed; or 1023 
(B) that has not been reported under a statute or ordinance 1024 

that governs the account. 1025 
4. The recorder shall, at the time the candidate for city office files a 1026 

declaration of candidacy, and again 14 days before each general election, 1027 
notify the candidate in writing of: 1028 
a. the provisions of statute or municipal ordinance governing the 1029 

disclosure of campaign contributions and expenditures; 1030 
b. the dates when the candidate's campaign finance statement is 1031 

required to be filed; and 1032 
c. the penalties that apply for failure to file a timely campaign finance 1033 

statement, including the statutory provision that requires removal of 1034 
the candidate's name from the ballot for failure to file the required 1035 
campaign finance statement when required. 1036 

5. Notwithstanding any provision of the Government Records Access and 1037 
Management Act, the recorder shall: 1038 
a. make each campaign finance statement filed by a candidate 1039 

available for public inspection and copying no later than one 1040 
business day after the statement is filed; and 1041 

b. make the campaign finance statement filed by a candidate available 1042 
for public inspection by: 1043 
i.  1044 

(A) posting an electronic copy or the contents of the statement 1045 
on the city’s website no later than seven business days 1046 
after the statement is filed; and 1047 

(B) verifying that the address of the city’s website has been 1048 
provided to the lieutenant governor in order to meet the 1049 
requirements of state election code; or 1050 

ii. submitting a copy of the statement to the lieutenant governor for 1051 
posting on the website established by the lieutenant governor 1052 
under state election code no later than two business days after 1053 
the statement is filed. 1054 

6.  1055 
a. If a candidate fails to file a campaign finance statement before the 1056 

city general election by the deadline specified in Subsection 1057 
2.a.ii.(A), the recorder shall inform the appropriate election official 1058 
who:  1059 
i. shall: 1060 

(A) if practicable, remove the candidate's name from the ballot 1061 
by blacking out the candidate's name before the ballots are 1062 
delivered to voters; or 1063 

(B) if removing the candidate's name from the ballot is not 1064 
practicable, inform the voters by any practicable method 1065 
that the candidate has been disqualified and that votes cast 1066 
for the candidate will not be counted; and 1067 

ii. may not count any votes for that candidate. 1068 
b. Notwithstanding Subsection 6.a. a candidate who files a campaign 1069 

finance statement seven days before a city general election is not 1070 
disqualified if: 1071 



31 

 

i. the statement details accurately and completely the information 1072 
required under Subsection (2)(b), except for inadvertent 1073 
omissions or insignificant errors or inaccuracies; and 1074 

ii. the omissions, errors, or inaccuracies are corrected in an 1075 
amended report or in the next scheduled report. 1076 

7. A campaign finance statement required under this section is considered 1077 
filed if it is received in the recorder's office by 5 p.m. on the date that is it 1078 
due. 1079 

8.  1080 
a. A private party in interest may bring a civil action in district court to 1081 

enforce the provisions of this section or an ordinance adopted under 1082 
this section. 1083 

a.b. In a civil action under Subsection 8.a., the court may award costs 1084 
and attorney fees to the prevailing party.  1085 

1086 



32 

 

CHAPTER 7 1087 

GOVERNMENT RECORDS 1088 

2.07.010 General 1089 
2.07.020 Retention Schedule 1090 
2.07.030 Records requests 1091 
2.07.040 Fees 1092 
2.07.050 Fee Waiver 1093 
2.07.060 Appeals 1094 

2.07.010: GENERAL 1095 

All government records of the City shall be maintained, classified and accessed 1096 
in accordance with the Government Records Access and Management Act set 1097 
forth at in Utah Code Ann. §§ 63-2-101. et seq., as amended. 1098 

2.07.020: RETENTION SCHEDULE 1099 

All government records of the City shall be retained in accordance with the Utah 1100 
Municipal General Records Retention Schedule (1998), as updated, which is 1101 
hereby adopted by reference as the Syracuse City Records Retention Schedule. 1102 

2.07.030: RECORDS REQUESTS 1103 

Any person requesting a record shall file a written Government Records Access 1104 
and Management Request Form as provided by the City. Such requests shall be 1105 
submitted and processed in accordance with the Government Records Access 1106 
and Management Act. 1107 

2.07.040: FEES 1108 

The City may charge reasonable fees to cover the City’s actual cost of providing 1109 
a record. Fees for providing a record shall be adopted and may be amended as 1110 
part of the City’s Fee Schedule. When the City compiles a records in a form other 1111 
than that normally maintained by the City in response to a records request, the 1112 
actual costs for compiling the record may include those costs set forth in Utah 1113 
Code Ann. § 63-2-203, as amended; provided, no charge may be made for the 1114 
first quarter hour of staff time. The City may require payment of past fees and 1115 
future estimated fees before beginning to process a request if: (1) fees are 1116 
expected to exceed fifty dollars ($50.00); or (2) the requester has not paid fees 1117 
from previous requests. Any prepaid amount in excess of fees due shall be 1118 
returned to the requester. 1119 

2.07.050: FEE WAIVER 1120 

In accordance with Utah Code Ann. Section 63-2-203 of the Act, the City may 1121 
fulfill a record request without charge when it determines that: 1122 

1.   releasing the record primarily benefits the public rather than a 1123 
person; 1124 



33 

 

2.   the individual requesting the record is the subject of the record, or an 1125 
individual specified in Subsections 63-2-202(1) or (2) of the Act; or 1126 

3.   the requester’s legal rights are directly implicated by the information 1127 
in the record and the requester is impecunious. 1128 

2.07.060: APPEALS 1129 

Any person aggrieved by the City’s access determination made or fees imposed 1130 
under this Chapter may appeal the determination, or fee assessed, within thirty 1131 
(30) days to the Mayor in accordance with the provisions set forth in Utah Code 1132 
Ann. § 63-2-401, as amended. 1133 



1 

 

TITLE II (Version B) 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND PERSONNEL 2 

CHAPTER 1: GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 3 
2.01.010 Intent, Purpose 4 
2.01.020 Temporary Absence of City Manager 5 
2.01.030 Administrative Organization Generally 6 
2.01.040 Intragovernmental Cooperation 7 

CHAPTER 2: CITY COUNCIL 8 
2.02.010 Governing Body 9 
2.02.020 Powers and Duties 10 
2.02.030 Meetings 11 
2.02.040 Open Meetings Law 12 
2.02.050 Notice of Meetings 13 
2.02.060 Agenda 14 
2.02.070 Minutes 15 
2.02.080 Mayor Presides 16 
2.02.090 Quorum 17 
2.02.100 Voting 18 
2.02.110 Reconsideration 19 
2.02.120 Rules of Procedure 20 
2.02.130 Council Committees 21 
2.02.140 Attendance 22 
2.02.150 Disorderly Conduct 23 
2.02.160 Required Attendance of Witnesses and Production of Evidence 24 
2.02.170 Records Open to Inspection 25 
2.02.180 Additional Duties and Powers may be Prescribed 26 

CHAPTER 3: MAYOR 27 
2.03.010 Functions and Duties 28 
2.03.020 Presiding Officer 29 
2.03.030 Records Open to Inspection 30 
2.03.040 Mayor Pro Tempore 31 
2.03.050 Vacancy in Office 32 
2.03.060 Restrictions 33 

CHAPTER 4: CITY MANAGER 34 
2.04.010 Term of Office 35 
2.04.020 Resignation 36 
2.04.030 Other Employment 37 
2.04.040 Powers of Mayor Not Delegated 38 
2.04.050 Duties 39 
 40 

CHAPTER 5: APPOINTED OFFICES 41 
2.05.010 Appointed Offices 42 



2 

 

2.05.020 Appointment and Vacancies 43 
2.05.030 Bond 44 
2.05.040 Salaries 45 
2.05.050 Transfer of Records 46 
2.05.060 Conflicts of Interests 47 
2.05.070 City Recorder 48 
2.05.080 City Treasurer 49 
2.05.090 City Police Chief 50 

CHAPTER 6: DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION 51 
2.06.010 City Finance Director 52 
2.06.020 City Engineer 53 
2.06.030 City Public Works Director 54 
2.06.040 City Attorney 55 
2.06.050 City Justice Court Judge 56 
2.06.060 City Recreation Director 57 
2.06.070 City Fire Chief 58 
2.06.080 Community and Economic Development Director 59 
2.06.090 Information Technology Director 60 

CHAPTER 7: CAMPAIGN FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE IN CITY ELECTIONS 61 
2.07.010 Campaign Financial Disclosure 62 

CHAPTER 8: GOVERNMENT RECORDS 63 
2.08.010 General 64 
2.08.020 Retention Schedule 65 
2.08.030 Records requests 66 
2.08.040 Fees 67 
2.08.050 Fee Waiver 68 
2.08.060 Appeals 69 

70 



3 

 

CHAPTER 1 71 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 72 

2.01.010 Intent, Purpose 73 
2.01.020 Temporary Absence of City Manager 74 
2.01.030 Administrative Organization Generally 75 
2.01.040 Intragovernmental Cooperation 76 

2.01.010: INTENT, PURPOSE 77 

It is the intent and purpose of this title of the Syracuse Municipal Code to 78 
establish and clarify the organization and operation of city departments and to 79 
provide for an orderly means of conducting the operation of city government. It is 80 
further intended that this title ensure cooperation and coordination between the 81 
legislative branch, the executive branch, and all departments of the city. All 82 
ordinances of the city shall be construed in such manner as to foster and 83 
promote such cooperation, liaison and coordination. 84 

2.01.020: TEMPORARY ABSENCE OF CITY MANAGER 85 

In the event of the temporary absence of the City Manager due to illness, 86 
vacation or similar reasons, the Mayor may assign a designee or act in the 87 
position of the City Manager. 88 

2.01.030: ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION GENERALLY 89 

Department heads, as provided by this title, shall report to the City Manager who 90 
shall report directly to the Mayor. Subject to the limitations and requirements of 91 
applicable budget and appropriations, the city's administrative organization shall 92 
consist of the operating departments, offices, and divisions or bureaus, as set 93 
forth in this title. 94 

2.01.040: INTRAGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 95 

1.   Information to City Council: Department heads shall provide such 96 
information concerning city finances, operations and procedures, as 97 
reasonably requested by the City Council and necessary for the City Council 98 
to fulfill its statutory duties, which are not privileged, private or confidential. 99 
Direct access to and communication with department heads shall be 100 
available to the extent it is reasonable in nature and aids the City Council in 101 
fulfilling its duties. 102 

2.   Interference by Council Prohibited: No member of the City Council shall 103 
direct or request, except in writing, the appointment of any person to, or his 104 
removal from, office or to interfere in any way with the performance by the 105 
officers of their duties.   106 



4 

 

CHAPTER 2 107 

CITY COUNCIL 108 

2.02.010 Powers and Duties 109 
2.02.020 Vacancy in Office 110 
2.02.030 Meetings 111 
2.02.040 Open Meetings Law 112 
2.02.050 Notice of Meetings 113 
2.02.060 Agenda 114 
2.02.070 Minutes 115 
2.02.080 Mayor Presides 116 
2.02.090 Quorum 117 
2.02.100 Voting 118 
2.02.110 Reconsideration 119 
2.02.120 Rules of Procedure 120 
2.02.130 Council Committees 121 
2.02.140 Attendance 122 
2.02.150 Disorderly Conduct 123 
2.02.160 Required Attendance of Witnesses and Production of Evidence 124 
2.02.170 Records Open to Inspection 125 
2.02.180 Additional Duties and Powers may be Prescribed 126 

2.02.010: POWERS AND DUTIES 127 

The City Council: 128 

1.   is the legislative body of the municipality and exercises the legislative 129 
powers and performs the legislative duties and functions of the 130 
municipality; and 131 

2.   may: 132 

(a)  pass all ordinances and rules, and make all regulations, not 133 
repugnant to law, necessary for carrying into effect or 134 
discharging all powers and duties conferred by law, and as are 135 
necessary and proper to provide for the safety and preserve the 136 
health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace 137 
and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its 138 
inhabitants, and for the protection of property in the city.; 139 

(b)  prescribe by resolution additional duties, powers, and responsibilities 140 
for any elected or appointed municipal official, unless prohibited by 141 
statute; 142 

(c)  require by ordinance that any or all appointed officers reside in the 143 
municipality; 144 

(d)  provide for filling a vacancy in an elective or appointive office; 145 

(e)  take any action allowed under Utah Code; and 146 



5 

 

(f)   perform any function specifically provided for by statute or 147 
necessarily implied by law. 148 

2.02.020: MID-TERM VACANCY IN OFFICE 149 

Mid-term City Council vacancies shall be filled as provided in Utah Code 150 
. 151 

2.02.030: MEETINGS 152 

1.   Regular Meetings. The City Council shall hold regular meetings to conduct 153 
the business of the City at least once each month and shall prescribe by 154 
ordinance the time and place for holding its regular meetings. 155 

2.   Emergency Meetings. If, because of unforeseen circumstances it is necessary 156 
for the City Council to hold an emergency meeting to consider matters of an 157 
emergency or urgent nature, an emergency meeting may be held after an 158 
attempt has been made to notify all members of the Governing Body and a 159 
majority of the members of the Governing Body approve the meeting,  160 

a. Notice of Emergency Meetings. At least three hours’ notice of the 161 
emergency meeting shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of 162 
Utah Code. The Governing Body shall give the best notice practicable of 163 
the time and place of the emergency meeting and the topics to be 164 
considered at the emergency meeting. The City Recorder shall also serve 165 
such notice on each council member who did not approve the meeting, 166 
either through personal service or by leaving it at the member's usual 167 
place of abode. The order of the emergency meeting shall be entered into 168 
the minutes of the City Council. The personal appearance by a council 169 
member at an emergency meeting constitutes a waiver of the required 170 
notice. 171 

3.   Closed Meetings. The affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the 172 
Governing Body present at an open meeting for which notice is given and a 173 
quorum is present may call a closed meeting to discuss certain items as 174 
provided under Utah Code. The reason or reasons for holding a closed 175 
meeting and the vote, either for or against the proposition to hold such a 176 
meeting, cast by each member, by name, shall be entered on the minutes of 177 
the meeting. No ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, contract, or 178 
appointment shall be approved at a closed meeting. 179 

4.   Electronic Meetings. 180 

a.   Definitions. As used in this Syracuse Municipal Code: 181 

i.   “Anchor location” means the physical location from which the 182 
electronic meeting originates or from which the participants 183 
are connected. 184 

ii.   “Electronic meeting” means a City Council meeting 185 
convened or conducted by means of a conference using 186 
electronic communications.= 187 

iii.   “Electronic notice” means electronic mail or fax. 188 



6 

 

iv.   “Monitor” means to hear or observe, live, by audio or video 189 
equipment, all of the public statements of each member of 190 
the City Council who is participating in a meeting. 191 

v.   “Participate” means the ability to communicate with all of the 192 
members of the City Council, either verbally or electronically, 193 
so that each member of the City Council can hear or observe 194 
the communication. 195 

vi.   “Public hearing” means a portion of a meeting at which 196 
comments from the public will be accepted. 197 

vii.   “Public statement” means a statement made in the ordinary 198 
course of business of the City Council with the intent that all 199 
other members of the City Council receive it. 200 

b.   Procedures. The City Council may, by following the procedures and 201 
requirements of this Ordinance, convene and conduct an electronic 202 
meeting. The City Council convening or conducting an electronic 203 
meeting shall: 204 

i.   Give public notice of the meeting pursuant to Utah Code 205 
by posting written notice at the anchor location; and 206 

ii.   Providing written or electronic notice to at least one 207 
newspaper of general circulation within the state; and a local 208 
media correspondent; 209 

c. In addition to giving public notice required by Subsection (i), provide: 210 

i.   Notice of the electronic meeting to the members of the City 211 
Council at least 24 hours before the meeting so that they 212 
may participate in and be counted as present for all 213 
purposes, including the determination that a quorum is 214 
present; and 215 

ii.   A description of how the members will be connected to the 216 
electronic meeting. 217 

d.   Electronic Meeting General. The procedures to be followed at the 218 
electronic meeting shall be the same as those followed by the City 219 
Council in a non-electronic open and public meeting of the City 220 
Council. The Mayor, or Mayor Pro-tempore, shall conduct the 221 
meeting and the meeting shall be held pursuant to the agenda 222 
posted for that meeting. Prior to commencing the electronic meeting, 223 
an electronic link shall be established with all participants and the 224 
anchor location. Minutes shall be kept for the meeting in accordance 225 
with the requirements of the Open Meetings Law. Following passage 226 
of a motion to adjourn, the electronic link shall be terminated and the 227 
meeting shall be deemed concluded. If the meeting is a public 228 
hearing, space and facilities will be provided at the anchor location 229 
so that interested persons and the public may attend, monitor and 230 
participate in the open portions of the meeting. 231 



7 

 

2.02.040: OPEN MEETINGS LAW 232 

All meetings of the City Council shall be open to the public, except closed 233 
meetings, and shall be conducted in accordance with the Open and Public 234 
Meetings Act as set forth in Utah Code. 235 

2.02.050: NOTICE OF MEETINGS 236 

The City shall give public notice at least once each year of its annual meeting 237 
schedule and shall give not less than twenty-four (24) hours public notice of the 238 
agenda, date, time and place of each of its meetings, other than emergency 239 
meetings, in accordance with this title and Utah Code. 240 

2.02.060: AGENDA 241 

A written agenda for each regular meeting shall be prepared by the City Manager 242 
or his designee. The Mayor or two members of the City Council may place items 243 
on the agenda. 244 

2.02.070: MINUTES 245 

Written minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the City Council in accordance 246 
with the provisions set forth in Utah Code. 247 

2.02.080: MAYOR PRESIDES 248 

The Mayor shall be the chairperson and preside at the meetings of the City 249 
Council. In the absence of the Mayor or because of his inability or refusal to act, 250 
the City Council may elect a member of the City Council to preside over the 251 
meeting as Mayor Pro Tempore in accordance with the procedures set forth in 252 
Chapter 2.03 of this Title of the Syracuse Municipal Code. 253 

2.02.090: QUORUM 254 

No action of the City Council shall be official or of any effect except when a 255 
quorum of the Council Members are present, except as otherwise provided by 256 
law. Three (3) or more members of the City Council, not including the Mayor, 257 
shall constitute a quorum. 258 

2.02.100: VOTING 259 

1.   How Taken. A roll call vote shall be taken and recorded for all ordinances, 260 
resolutions, and any action which would create a liability against the city and 261 
in any other case at the request of any member of the City Council by a “yes” 262 
or a “no” vote. Every resolution or ordinance shall be in writing before the 263 
vote is taken. 264 

2.   Number Required. The minimum number of “yes” votes required to pass any 265 
ordinance, resolution, or to take any action by the Governing Body, unless 266 
otherwise prescribed by law, shall be three (3). Any ordinance, resolution, or 267 
motion of the Governing Body having fewer favorable votes than required 268 
herein shall be deemed defeated and invalid; except in the following: fewer 269 
votes may compel attendance of absentees, may adjourn a meeting from 270 



8 

 

time to time, and may fill a vacancy in the Governing Body. 271 

3.   Mayor Voting. The Mayor shall not vote at meetings of the City Council, 272 
except in case of a tie vote of the City Council, the appointment or dismissal 273 
of the City Manager, or as otherwise provided by law.  Furthermore, the 274 
Mayor shall have no power to veto any act of the City Council unless 275 
otherwise specifically authorized by statute. 276 

2.02.110: RECONSIDERATION 277 

Any action taken by the City Council shall not be reconsidered or rescinded at 278 
any special meeting unless the number of members of the City Council present 279 
at the special meeting is equal to or greater than the number of members present 280 
at the meeting when the action was approved. 281 

2.02.120: RULES OF PROCEDURE 282 

Except as otherwise provided by law, the City Council may determine its own 283 
rules of procedure or the proper conduct of its meetings. In general, the City 284 
Council refers to Robert’s Rules of Order as a guide for the conduct of its 285 
business. The Council may further adopt norms and/or a Code of Conduct to 286 
establish practices and procedures, at its discretion. 287 

2.02.130: COUNCIL ADVISORY COMMITTEES 288 

The City Council may from time to time create subcommittees titled Council 289 
Advisory Committees to advise the City Council as a whole on issues affecting 290 
the City. 291 

2.02.140: ATTENDANCE 292 

The City Council shall have the power to compel the attendance of its own 293 
members and to provide such penalties as it deems necessary for the failure to 294 
comply therewith. 295 

2.02.150: DISORDERLY CONDUCT 296 

The City Council may fine or expel any of its members for disorderly conduct 297 
upon an affirmative majority vote of those members present. The City Council 298 
may also, upon an affirmative majority vote of those members present, expel any 299 
person who is disorderly during any regular, study, or special meeting of the City 300 
Council. 301 

2.02.160: REQUIRED ATTENDANCE OF WITNESSES AND PRODUCTION OF 302 
EVIDENCE 303 

The City Council may require the attendance of any person to give testimony or 304 
produce records, documents or things for inspection, copying or examination 305 
necessary or useful for the governance of the City. The City Council shall issue 306 
subpoenas in its own name in the manner provided in the Utah Rules of Civil 307 
Procedure or may by ordinance establish its own procedure for issuing 308 
subpoenas under this Section. 309 



9 

 

2.02.170: RECORDS OPEN TO INSPECTION 310 

All records, books, papers, and documents belonging to any office of the City 311 
shall be open at any reasonable time to inspection by any member of the 312 
Council except as otherwise prohibited by law. A majority of the City Council 313 
may require any officer of the City, at any reasonable time, to prepare and 314 
provide a report in detail of all transactions in his office or any matters 315 
connected therewith. 316 

2.02.180: ADDITIONAL DUTIES AND POWERS MAY BE PRESCRIBED  317 

The duties, powers and privileges of all appointed officers in any way 318 
connected with the City government not herein defined may be prescribed by 319 
the City Council. 320 

CHAPTER 3 321 

MAYOR 322 

2.03.010 Functions and Duties 323 
2.03.020 Presiding Officer 324 
2.03.030 Records Open to Inspection 325 
2.03.040 Mayor Pro Tempore 326 
2.03.050 Vacancy in Office 327 
2.03.060 Restrictions 328 

2.03.010: FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES 329 

In accordance with Utah Code, the Mayor shall be the Chief Executive and 330 
Administrative Officer of the city.  331 

1.  The Mayor shall: 332 

a.   Enforce the laws and ordinances of the city; 333 

b.   Execute the policies adopted by the City Council; Ensure that all 334 
applicable statutes and municipal ordinances and resolutions are faithfully 335 
executed and observed; 336 

c. Attend all meetings of the City Council with the right to take part in all 337 
discussions and the responsibility to inform the City Council of the 338 
condition and needs of the municipality, and make recommendations 339 
and freely give advice to the City Council; 340 

d.   Furnish, or cause to be furnished, the City Council with a report, 341 
periodically or as determined by ordinance, setting forth the amounts of 342 
all budget appropriations, the total disbursements to date from these 343 
appropriations, and the amount of indebtedness incurred or contracted 344 
against each appropriation (including disbursements and indebtedness 345 
incurred and not paid) and the percentage of the appropriations 346 
encumbered to date, which reports shall be made available for public 347 
inspectionsFrom time to time report to the Council the condition and 348 
needs of the City; 349 



10 

 

e.  Report to the council any remitted fine or forfeiture granted under 350 
Subsection 2.c.; 351 

f. Report to the council any release granted under Subsection 2.d.; 352 

g. Perform all duties prescribed by statute or municipal ordinance or 353 
resolution;  354 

h. Recommend for council consideration any measure that the mayor 355 
considers to be in the best interests of the city; and 356 

  2. The Mayor may: 357 

a.   Appoint and remove the City Manager, department heads, commission, 358 
board and committee members with the advice and consent of the City 359 
Council, except as may otherwise be specifically limited by law; 360 

b.   Remit fines and forfeitures; 361 

c.  Release a person imprisoned for violation of a municipal ordinance; 362 

d. Appoint or act as the budget officer for the purpose of fulfilling the 363 
requirements of the Uniform Municipal Fiscal Procedures Act for Utah 364 
cities; 365 

c.e.   Appoint, with the advice and consent of the City Council, a 366 
qualified person to each appointed office deemed necessary for 367 
good government; 368 

c.f.   Execute agreements within certified budget appropriations on behalf of 369 
the city, or delegate by written executive order the power to execute such 370 
agreements to executive officials, subject to the procedure described in 371 
Utah Code; and 372 

dg.   When necessary, call on the male residents of the city over the age of 373 
twenty one (21) years to assist in enforcing the laws of the state and 374 
ordinances of the city and may exercise within the City limits the power to 375 
suppress disorder and keep the peace as allowed by statute and the 376 
Constitutions of Utah and the United States; and. 377 

e. Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by this title or may be 378 
required by ordinance consistent with a six member council. 379 

2.03.020: PRESIDING OFFICER 380 

The Mayor shall be the Chief Executive Officer and preside at the meetings of the 381 
City Council. However, the Mayor shall not vote at meetings of the City Council, 382 
except in case of a tie vote of the City Council, the appointment or dismissal of 383 
the City Manager, or as otherwise provided by law. Furthermore, the Mayor shall 384 
have no power to veto any act of the City Council unless otherwise specifically 385 
authorized by statute. 386 

2.03.030: RECORDS OPEN TO INSPECTION 387 

All records, books, papers, and documents belonging to any office of the City 388 



11 

 

shall be open at any reasonable time to inspection by the Mayor except as 389 
otherwise prohibited by law. The Mayor may require any officer of the City, at 390 
any reasonable time, to prepare and provide a report in detail of all 391 
transactions in his office or any matters connected therewith.  392 
 393 

2.03.040: MAYOR PRO TEMPORE 394 

The City Council shall annually elect the Mayor Pro Tempore and two additional 395 
persons, in specific order of succession, as emergency interim successors to act 396 
in the absence of the Mayor. In the absence of the Mayor or because of his 397 
inability or refusal to act, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall preside over the meeting 398 
and shall possess the powers and duties of Mayor. Any member of the City 399 
Council elected as Mayor Pro Tempore shall retain his power and authority as a 400 
member of the City Council and shall be entitled to vote as a member of the City 401 
Council on all matters. 402 

2.03.050: MID-TERM VACANCY IN OFFICE 403 

A mid-term vacancy in the office of the Mayor shall be filled as provided in Utah 404 
Code. 405 

2.03.060: RESTRICTIONS 406 

The Mayor may not serve as the City Recorder or as the City Treasurer as 407 
dictated in Utah Code. 408 



12 

 

CHAPTER 4 409 

CITY MANAGER 410 

2.04.010 Term of Office 411 
2.04.020 Resignation 412 
2.04.030 Other Employment 413 
2.04.040 Powers of Mayor Not Delegated 414 
2.04.050 Duties 415 

2.4.010: TERM OF OFFICE 416 

The City Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be 417 
terminated at any time with or without cause. 418 

2.04.020: RESIGNATION 419 

Before voluntarily resigning from the position of City Manager, the City Manager 420 
shall give the City Council at least thirty (30) days notice in writing of his intent to 421 
resign. 422 

2.04.030: OTHER EMPLOYMENT 423 

The City Manager shall not accept any outside employment in addition to 424 
employment by the City without prior annual written approval of the City Council. 425 

2.04.040: POWERS OF MAYOR NOT DELEGATED 426 

The legislative and judicial powers of the Mayor, his position as chairman of the 427 
City Council, and any ex officio position he may hold, shall not be delegated to 428 
the City Manager. 429 

2.04.050: DUTIES 430 

1.   The powers, duties, and functions of the office of City Manager shall be 431 
subject to the control of the Governing Body, but such Manager shall report 432 
to the Mayor pursuant to Utah Code. 433 

2.   Appoint and Remove Employees. Except as set forth in Chapter 3, above, 434 
regarding the Mayor’s duties, the City Manager shall have the authority to 435 
appoint, employ and remove employees as provided herein. The City 436 
Manager shall also be responsible for reviewing the status and performance 437 
of any personnel being considered for discharge, transfer, or demotion from 438 
appointment or employment with the City.  In addition, the Manager shall 439 
exercise control of all departments, divisions and bureaus within the city 440 
government; 441 

3.   Supervise Department Heads. The City Manager shall provide direct 442 
supervision of and have direct responsibility over each Department Head. 443 



13 

 

4.   Personnel Policies. The City Manager shall be responsible for implementing 444 
and enforcing the personnel policies and procedures of the City. 445 

5.   Inventory Property. The City Manager shall keep or cause to be kept a 446 
current inventory showing all real and personal property of the City and its 447 
location. The City Manager shall be responsible for the care and custody of 448 
all such property, including equipment, buildings, parks and all other City 449 
property which is not by law assigned to some other officer or body for care 450 
and control. 451 

6.   Purchasing and Claims. The City Manager shall implement and enforce all 452 
provisions of the ordinances of the City relating to purchasing. 453 

7.   Council Meetings. The City Manager shall attend meetings of the City 454 
Council and may take part in the discussion and recommend to the City 455 
Council adoption of such measures as the City Manager may deem 456 
necessary or expedient. 457 

8.   Review Contracts. In Accordance with adopted City polices and procedures 458 
of the City, the Manager shall review, where appropriate, make 459 
recommendations, and where within his authority, execute, proposed 460 
contracts of the City. 461 

9.   Propose Plans and Programs. The City Manager shall propose plans and 462 
programs concerning the development, operation and needs of the City and 463 
submit such plans to the City Council to be approved and developed as 464 
policy. 465 

 466 

10. Implement Policy. The City Manager shall implement all policy changes and 467 
directives of the Mayor and the City Council. 468 

11. Management Controls. The City Manager shall set performance standards 469 
and exercise managerial control to ensure that the City government is 470 
functioning in the most efficient and effective manner. 471 

12. Organization. The City Manager shall recommend the creation and 472 
organization of all necessary departments, divisions, and bureaus necessary 473 
for the government of the City to the City Council for its approval prior to 474 
implementation. 475 

13. Records. The City Manager shall, as needed, examine the books, records, 476 
and official papers of the City's departments and offices. 477 

 478 

14. Legislative Mandates. The City Manager shall be responsible to keep abreast 479 
of and advise the Governing Body regarding legislative changes and issues 480 
that affect the City. 481 

15. Additional Duties. The City Manager shall have such other powers and shall 482 
perform such other duties and obligations as may be required of him by State 483 
law or by ordinance, resolution, or policy of the City Council. 484 



14 

 

CHAPTER 5 485 

APPOINTED OFFICES 486 

2.05.010 Appointed Offices 487 
2.05.020 Appointment and Vacancies 488 
2.05.030 Bond 489 
2.05.040 Salaries 490 
2.05.050 Transfer of Records 491 
2.05.060 Conflicts of Interests 492 
2.05.070 City Recorder 493 
2.05.080 City Treasurer 494 
2.05.090 City Chief of Police 495 

2.05.010: APPOINTED OFFICES 496 

The City Council may create any appointed office deemed necessary for the 497 
government of the City and shall prescribe the powers and duties to be 498 
performed by appointed officials, including, but not limited to, the City Manager, 499 
the City Recorder, the City Treasurer, the City Attorney, the City Engineer, the 500 
City Police Chief, the City Justice Court Judge, and Department Heads. 501 

2.05.020: APPOINTMENT AND VACANCIES 502 

The Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, may appoint and fill 503 
vacancies in all appointed offices provided for by law or ordinance. Except as 504 
otherwise provided by law, the term of office of all appointed officers shall be until 505 
their respective successors are chosen and qualified, unless they are sooner 506 
removed by the Mayor with the concurrence of a majority of the members of the 507 
City Council, or by the City Council with the concurrence of the Mayor. 508 

2.05.030: BOND 509 

1.   Required. Before commencing the duties of office, the City Recorder and City 510 
Treasurer shall execute a bond with good and sufficient sureties payable to 511 
the City or shall be included within public employee blanket bonds 512 
conditioned for the faithful performance of the duties of his office and the 513 
payment of all monies received by such officer according to the law and the 514 
ordinances of the City in the applicable amount set forth by the State Money 515 
Management Council. In the event that someone other than the City 516 
Treasurer is disbursing funds, that person shall be bonded as well. 517 

2.   Limitation on Treasurer's Bond. The City Treasurer's bond may not be set at 518 
an amount less than that established by the State Money Management 519 
Council pursuant to Utah Code 520 

3.   Filed. All bonds shall be filed with the City Recorder, except the City 521 
Recorder's bond, which shall be filed with the City Treasurer. 522 

 523 

4.   Premium Charge. The premium charge by a corporate surety for any official 524 
bond shall be paid by the City. 525 



15 

 

5.   Additional Bonds. The City Council may at any time require further and 526 
additional bonds of any or all appointed officers of the City by resolution or 527 
ordinance. 528 

2.05.040: SALARIES 529 

1.   Salary. Appointed officers shall receive such compensation for their services 530 
as the City Council may fix or amend by ordinance in accordance with notice 531 
and hearing requirements set forth in Utah Code. 532 

2.   Monthly Compensation. Unless otherwise provided by ordinance, the 533 
compensation of municipal officers shall be paid at least monthly. 534 

2.05.050: TRANSFER OF RECORDS 535 

Every officer of the City, upon expiration of his term for any cause whatsoever, 536 
shall deliver to his successor all books and records which may be the property of 537 
the City immediately after notification and/or request to do so. 538 

2.05.060: CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 539 

All appointed officers of the City shall annually disclose conflicts of interest and 540 
otherwise adhere to provisions of the Utah Officers' and Employees' Ethics Act, 541 
set forth in Utah Code, hereby adopted by reference as if fully set forth herein. 542 

2.05.070: CITY RECORDER 543 
 544 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a municipal 545 
election, the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, shall 546 
appoint a qualified person to the office of City Recorder. 547 

2.   Office. The City Recorder shall occupy an office in the City offices or at some 548 
other place convenient thereto as the City Council may direct. 549 

 550 

3.   Corporate Seal. The City Recorder shall keep the Corporate Seal. When 551 
certified by the City Recorder under the Corporate Seal, copies of all papers 552 
filed in the City Recorder's office and transcripts from all records of the City 553 
Council shall be admissible in all courts as originals. 554 

4.   Meetings of City Council. The City Recorder, or his designee, shall attend 555 
meetings and keep the record of the proceedings of the City Council. 556 

 557 

5.   Actions of City Council. The City Recorder shall record all ordinances, 558 
resolutions, and regulations passed by the City Council. 559 

6.   Contracts. The City Recorder shall countersign all contracts made on behalf 560 
of the City or to which the City is a party and shall maintain a properly 561 
indexed record of all such contracts. 562 

7.   Elections and Appointments. The City Recorder shall manage all municipal 563 



16 

 

election procedures and requirements as provided in the Utah Code 564 
Annotated, as amended, and shall keep a record of all persons elected or 565 
appointed to any office within the City, including the date of appointment or 566 
election, term of office, date of death, resignation, or removal, and name of 567 
person appointed to fill any vacancy. 568 

8.   Records of the City. The City Recorder shall keep all of the books, records, 569 
accounts and documents of the City at the Recorder's Office. Such records 570 
shall be open for public inspection pursuant to the provisions of the Utah 571 
Government Records Access and Management Act. 572 

 573 

9.   Limitations. The City Recorder shall not serve as the City Treasurer. 574 

10. Additional Duties. The City Recorder shall perform such other and further 575 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 576 
regulation.. 577 

2.05.080: CITY TREASURER 578 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a municipal 579 
election, the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, shall 580 
appoint a qualified person to the office of City Treasurer. 581 

2.   Custodian. The City Treasurer shall be the custodian of all money, bonds, or 582 
other securities belonging to the City. 583 

3.   Collections. The City Treasurer shall collect and receive all monies payable 584 
to the City, including taxes, assessments, licenses, fines, forfeitures, service 585 
charges, fees and other revenues of the City. The City Treasurer shall keep 586 
an accurate account of all monies received hereunder and shall promptly 587 
deposit all such monies in the appropriate bank accounts of the City. 588 

4.   Receipts. The City Treasurer shall give or cause to be given to every person 589 
paying money to the City Treasury, a receipt or other evidence of payment 590 
therefore, specifying the date of payment and the  amount paid. The City 591 
Treasurer shall file the duplicate of such receipt, a summary report, or other 592 
evidence of payment in the office of the City Recorder. 593 

5.   Checks. The City Treasurer, or other designated person, shall sign all checks 594 
and shall, prior to affixing said signature, determine or cause to be 595 
determined that sufficient funds are on deposit in the appropriate bank 596 
account of the City to honor such check. 597 

 598 

6.   Warrants. The City Treasurer shall pay all warrants in the order in which 599 
presented and as money becomes available for payment thereof in the 600 
appropriate funds of the City. The City Treasurer shall note upon the back of 601 
each warrant presented the date of presentation and the date of payment. 602 

7.   Special Assessments. All monies received by the City Treasurer on any 603 
special assessment shall be applied to the payment of the improvement for 604 
which the assessment was made. 605 



17 

 

8.   Accounting. The City Treasurer shall keep an accurate and detailed 606 
accounting of all transactions, receipts, collections, disbursements and other 607 
matters within the Treasurer's charge as provided by State law or as the City 608 
may by ordinance or resolution direct. 609 

9.   Limitations. The City Treasurer shall not serve as the City Recorder. 610 

10. Additional Duties. The City Treasurer shall perform such other and further 611 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 612 
regulation. 613 

2.05.090: CITY POLICE CHIEF 614 
 615 

1.   Appointment. On or before the first Monday in February following a municipal 616 
election, the Mayor, with the advice and consent of the City Council, shall 617 
appoint a qualified person to the office of City Police Chief. 618 

2.   Duties. The Police Chief shall have the same authority and responsibilities as 619 
sheriffs and constables of Davis County, Utah, pursuant to provisions of Utah 620 
Code, and shall: 621 

a.   suppress riots, disturbances, and breaches of the peace; 622 

b.   apprehend all persons violating State laws or City ordinances; 623 

c. diligently discharge his or her duties and enforce all ordinances of 624 
the City to preserve the peace, good order, and protection of the 625 
rights and property of all persons; attend the municipal Justice Court 626 
of the City when required, provide security for such Court, and obey 627 
its orders and directions; and 628 

d.   Additional Duties. The City Police Chief shall perform such other and 629 
further duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, 630 
resolution, or regulation. 631 

632 



18 

 

CHAPTER 6 633 

DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION 634 

2.06.010 City Finance Director 635 
2.06.020 City Engineer 636 
2.06.030 City Public Works Director 637 
2.06.040 City Attorney 638 
2.06.050 City Justice Court Judge 639 
2.06.060 City Recreation Director 640 
2.06.070 City Fire Chief 641 
2.06.080 Community and Economic Development Director 642 
2.06.090 Information Technology Director 643 

2.06.010: CITY FINANCE DIRECTOR 644 

1.   Position Created. The position of Finance Director is hereby created 645 
pursuant to Utah Code. 646 

2.   Accounts and Payment of Claims. The Finance Director shall maintain or 647 
cause to be maintained the general books for each fund of the City and all 648 
subsidiary and detailed records relating thereto, including a list of outstanding 649 
bonds, for what purpose, when and where paya ble, and the rate of interest 650 
they respectively bear, together with the amount of each outstanding. The 651 
Director shall keep accounts with all receiving and disbursing officers of the 652 
City, shall pre-audit all claims and demands against the City before they are 653 
allowed, and shall prepare checks in payment thereof to be drawn on the 654 
appropriate bank accounts of the City. The Director shall certify on the check 655 
or voucher copy of the check that he has pre-audited the claim, that it is true 656 
and correct, that it is within the lawful debt limit of the City, that it does not 657 
over expend the appropriate departmental budget and that the claim has 658 
been approved by the City Council. The Director shall also state the date of 659 
approval. 660 

3.   Ex Officio Auditor. The Finance Director shall be the ex officio auditor of 661 
Syracuse City and shall perform the duties of such office without extra 662 
compensation. 663 

4.   Financial Statements. The Finance Director or other delegated person shall 664 
prepare and present to the City Council the following financial statements: 665 

a.   As of the end of each month, a summary of cash receipts and 666 
disbursements by funds or appropriate groups of funds, showing in 667 
total, the beginning cash and invested balances, the receipts and 668 
disbursements separately for the period, and cash and invested 669 
balances in each fund or groups of funds at the end of the period. 670 

b.   As of the end of such period as the City Council may direct, but not 671 
less often than once each quarter, a statement of revenues and 672 
expenditures and comparison with the budget of the general fund. 673 

c. An annual statement of income and expense of each utility fund, 674 



19 

 

reflecting operations to date in the current year and a comparison675 



20 

 

thereof with operating results for the same period during the 676 
preceding year. 677 

d.   As of the end of such periods as the City Council may require, a 678 
condensed statement of receipts and disbursements and comparison 679 
with the cash budget of each utility fund. 680 

e.   Such statements of operations in other special funds or reports on 681 
financial condition at such times as the City Council may require. 682 

5.   Annual Audited Report. Within 180 days after the close of each fiscal period, 683 
the Finance Director or other delegated person shall prepare an annual 684 
financial report, in accordance with the Uniform Accounting Manual for Utah 685 
Cities. This report shall include a statement of revenues and expenditures 686 
and comparison with budgets for those funds for which budgets are required, 687 
statements of revenues and expenditures or of income and expense, as the 688 
case may be, of all other operating funds; a balance sheet of each fund and 689 
a combined balance sheet of all funds as of the close of the fiscal year, 690 
together with such other financial and statistical data as the City Council may 691 
require. The report shall also identify impact fee funds by the year in which 692 
they were received, the project from which they were collected, the capital 693 
projects for which the funds are budgeted, and the projected schedule for 694 
expenditure. The annual financial report may be conducted by an 695 
independent auditor on the results of operation for the year and financial 696 
condition at the close of the year, if the report is appropriately prepared and 697 
reviewed with the City Council.  Copies of the annual report shall be filed as 698 
a public document in the office of the City Recorder. 699 

6.   Publication of Annual Statement of Financial Condition. The Finance Director 700 
shall prepare and furnish to the City Council, on or before the first Monday in 701 
October of each year, a detailed statement of the financial condition of the 702 
City, and all the revenues and expenditures of the previous year. 703 

7.   Certification of Annual Property Tax Levy. The Finance Director shall certify 704 
the resolution making the annual tax levy to the County Auditor not later than 705 
the first Thursday in August of each year. 706 

8.   Additional Duties. The City Finance Director shall perform such other and 707 
further duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 708 
regulation. 709 

2.06.020: CITY ENGINEER 710 

1.   Appointment. The City Council may contract with, retain, or appoint an 711 
engineer licensed to practice engineering in the State of Utah to the office of 712 
City Engineer. Any person appointed or retained as City Engineer shall be a 713 
registered professional engineer as described in Utah Code. 714 

2.   Records. The City and/or the City Engineer shall maintain all maps, plans, 715 
plats, profiles, drawings, final estimates, specifications and contracts which in 716 
any way relate to the public improvements and engineering affairs of the City 717 
and the holder of such records shall ensure public accessibility to the same 718 



21 

 

as required by law. 719 

3.   Recording. The City Engineer shall record and file all drawings and 720 
documents pertaining to public lands and improvements of the City, and shall 721 
maintain such records and files in good condition allowing no alteration, 722 
mutilation or changes to be made. The recording or filing of any drawing or 723 
instrument with the City shall not conflict in any way with the recording or 724 
filing of the same in other offices of record. 725 

4.   Fees. The City Engineer shall not record any drawings or instruments, file 726 
any papers or notices, furnish any copies, or render any service connected 727 
with his official duties, until the required fees for the same are paid or 728 
tendered. 729 

5.   Seal. The City Engineer shall have a seal for his use, which seal shall be 730 
affixed to every certification approval. 731 

6.   Additional Duties. The City Engineer shall perform such other and further 732 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 733 
regulation. 734 

2.06.030: CITY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 735 

1.   Position Created. There is hereby created the position of Public Works 736 
Director who shall act as the Department Head of the Public Works 737 
Department. 738 

2.   Duties. The Public Works Director shall have such powers and duties as 739 
designated and assigned to him by the City Council. 740 

2.06.040: CITY ATTORNEY 741 

1.   Appointment. The City may contract with, retain, or appoint an attorney 742 
licensed to practice law in the State of Utah to the office of City Attorney to 743 
provide such legal assistance to the City as may be necessary. 744 

2.   Duties. The City Attorney shall act as legal advisor to the City in all matters 745 
pertaining to contracts with or by the City or questions of legality arising out 746 
of any law, ordinance or otherwise, and shall advise all City officers in 747 
relation to their official duties. It shall be the duty of the Attorney to appear 748 
and represent the City in all suits that may be brought in any court of 749 
record or otherwise, in which the City may be plaintiff or defendant, or in 750 
any manner interested, and to prosecute or defend such suit and protect 751 
the interests of the City as the circumstances require. 752 

3.   Criminal Prosecutor. The City may contract with, retain, or appoint a 753 
separate attorney or attorneys for the performance of criminal prosecutorial 754 
legal services. 755 

2.06.050: CITY JUSTICE COURT JUDGE 756 

1. Appointment. The office of City Justice Court Judge is hereby created, who 757 
shall act as the Justice Court Judge of the Syracuse City Justice Court. In 758 



22 

 

case of a vacancy, the Davis County Justice Court Nominating Commission 759 
shall submit at least two names of applicants to the City. The Mayor shall 760 
appoint a judge from the list of submitted names, subject to ratification by the 761 
City Council.   762 

 763 

 2. Term/Retention. The Justice Court Judge is subject to an unopposed 764 
retention election at the first general election held more than three 765 

years after the judge was appointed. The term of a judge is six years 766 
beginning the first Monday in January following the date of election. If 767 
the judge wishes to retain office, in the years of a retention election he 768 
shall file a declaration of candidacy with the Davis County Clerk. If 769 
the judge does not receive more yes votes than no votes, the judge is 770 

not retained, and a vacancy exists in the office on the first Monday in 771 
January after the regular general election. 772 

 773 

 3. Duties. The Justice Court Judge shall preside as judge over all cases 774 

within the jurisdiction of the Syracuse City Justice Court. He shall 775 
comply with and ensure that court personnel comply with applicable 776 
city rules and regulations related to personnel, budgets, and other 777 

administrative functions. Failure by the judge to comply with 778 
applicable administrative rules and regulations may be referred by the 779 

City Council to the state Justice Court Administrator. Repeated or 780 
willful noncompliance may be referred by the City Council to the 781 
Judicial Conduct Commission. 782 

 783 



23 

 

2.06.060: RECREATION DIRECTOR 784 

The Recreation Director plans, schedules, and develops various 785 
recreation activities and programs for the community. 786 

2.06.070: CITY FIRE CHIEF 787 

1.   Appointment. There shall be appointed by the Mayor, with the advice and 788 
consent of the City Council, a City Fire Chief who shall perform the duties 789 
required of him by law, and shall perform such other duties as the City 790 
Council may require. 791 

2.   Duties. The duty of extinguishing fires and of protecting life and property 792 
within the city is entrusted to the Chief of the Fire Department. He may make 793 
suitable regulations under which the officers and the members of the 794 
department shall be required to wear an appropriate uniform or badge by 795 
which, in case of fire and at other times, their authority and position in the 796 
fire department may be known. The Chief shall have sole and entire 797 
command over all officers and members of the department at fires. He shall 798 
have full charge at all times of all apparatus and appurtenances belonging to 799 
the department, and he shall adopt such measures as deemed expedient for 800 
the extinguishment of fire, protection of property, observance of the laws of 801 
the state, and duties required of him by law and the ordinances of the city. It 802 
shall be the duty of the Fire Chief to examine the condition of all buildings 803 
and to inspect engines, hoses, and hoods, and ladder equipment of the city 804 
fire department. It shall further be the duty of the Fire Chief to see that at all 805 
times the provisions of the ordinances relating to the protection and 806 
regulation of the property are strictly enforced, and to enforce all ordinances 807 
concerning the prevention and protection against fires. 808 

3.   Additional Duties. The City Fire Chief shall perform such other and further 809 
duties as the City Council may provide by ordinance, resolution, or 810 
regulation. 811 

2.06.080: COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 812 

The Community and Economic Development Director is responsible for 813 
administering and enforcing the City’s planning, zoning ordinances, 814 
reviewing, proposing changes to and implementing the general plan, and 815 
other land use policies of the City, including the activities of the Planning 816 
Commission, Economic Development and Redevelopment Agency.  The 817 
director is responsible for overseeing subordinate employees including the 818 
Code Enforcement Officer, Business License Clerk, and other clerical 819 
support staff. 820 

2.06.090: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR 821 

The Information Technology Director is responsible for the overall 822 
planning, organizing, and execution of all information technology 823 
functions at Syracuse, including directing all information technology 824 
operations to meet city requirements, supporting and maintaining 825 
existing applications and development of new technical solutions. 826 

827 



24 

 

CHAPTER 7 828 

CAMPAIGN FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE IN CITY ELECTIONS 829 

2.07.010 Campaign Financial Disclosure 830 

2.07.010: CAMPAIGN FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 831 
Campaign Financial Disclosure in City Elections is in accordance with Utah 832 
Code. 833 

 834 

 835 
1. As used in this section: 836 

a. "Reporting date" means: 837 
i. 10 days before a general election, for a campaign finance 838 

statement required to be filed no later than seven days before a 839 
general election; and 840 

ii. the day of filing, for a campaign finance statement required to be 841 
filed no later than 30 days after a primary or general election. 842 

b. "Reporting limit" means $50 for each calendar year: 843 
2.  844 

a.  845 
i. Each candidate for city office: 846 

(A) shall deposit a campaign contribution in a separate 847 
campaign account in a financial institution; and 848 

(B) may not deposit or mingle any campaign contributions 849 
received into a personal or business account. 850 

ii. Each candidate for city office who is not eliminated at a primary 851 
election shall file with the recorder a campaign finance statement: 852 
(A) no later than seven days before the date of the general 853 

election; and 854 
(B) no later than 30 days after the date of the general election. 855 

iii. Each candidate for city office who is eliminated at a primary 856 
election shall file with the recorder a campaign finance statement 857 
no later than 30 days after the date of the primary election. 858 

b. Each campaign finance statement under Subsection (2)(a) shall: 859 
i. except as provided in Subsection 2.b.ii.: 860 

(A) report all of the candidate's itemized and total: 861 
(1) campaign contributions, including in-kind and other 862 

nonmonetary contributions, received before the 863 
close of the reporting date; and 864 

(2) campaign expenditures made through the close of 865 
the reporting date; and 866 

(B) identify: 867 
(1) for each contribution that exceeds the reporting limit, 868 

the amount of the contribution and the name of the 869 
donor; 870 

(2) the aggregate total of all contributions that 871 
individually do not exceed the reporting limit; and 872 

(3) for each campaign expenditure, the amount of the 873 
expenditure and the name of the recipient of the 874 
expenditure; or 875 

ii. report the total amount of all campaign contributions and 876 



25 

 

expenditures if the candidate receives $500 or less in campaign 877 
contributions and spends $500 or less on the candidate's 878 
campaign. 879 

3.  880 
a. As used in this Subsection 3, "account" means an account in a 881 

financial institution: 882 
i. that is not described in Subsection 2.a.i.(A); and 883 
ii. into which or from which a person who, as a candidate for an 884 

office, other than a city office for which the person files a 885 
declaration of candidacy or federal office, or as a holder of an 886 
office, other than a city office for which the person files a 887 
declaration of candidacy or federal office, deposits a contribution 888 
or makes an expenditure. 889 

b. A city office candidate shall include on any campaign finance 890 
statement filed in accordance with this section: 891 
i. a contribution deposited in an account: 892 

(A) since the last campaign finance statement was filed; or 893 
(B) that has not been reported under a statute or ordinance 894 

that governs the account; or 895 
ii. an expenditure made from an account: 896 

(A) since the last campaign finance statement was filed; or 897 
(B) that has not been reported under a statute or ordinance 898 

that governs the account. 899 
4. The recorder shall, at the time the candidate for city office files a 900 

declaration of candidacy, and again 14 days before each general election, 901 
notify the candidate in writing of: 902 
a. the provisions of statute or municipal ordinance governing the 903 

disclosure of campaign contributions and expenditures; 904 
b. the dates when the candidate's campaign finance statement is 905 

required to be filed; and 906 
c. the penalties that apply for failure to file a timely campaign finance 907 

statement, including the statutory provision that requires removal of 908 
the candidate's name from the ballot for failure to file the required 909 
campaign finance statement when required. 910 

5. Notwithstanding any provision of the Government Records Access and 911 
Management Act, the recorder shall: 912 
a. make each campaign finance statement filed by a candidate 913 

available for public inspection and copying no later than one 914 
business day after the statement is filed; and 915 

b. make the campaign finance statement filed by a candidate available 916 
for public inspection by: 917 
i.  918 

(A) posting an electronic copy or the contents of the statement 919 
on the city’s website no later than seven business days 920 
after the statement is filed; and 921 

(B) verifying that the address of the city’s website has been 922 
provided to the lieutenant governor in order to meet the 923 
requirements of state election code; or 924 

ii. submitting a copy of the statement to the lieutenant governor for 925 
posting on the website established by the lieutenant governor 926 
under state election code no later than two business days after 927 
the statement is filed. 928 

6.  929 
a. If a candidate fails to file a campaign finance statement before the 930 

city general election by the deadline specified in Subsection 931 



26 

 

2.a.ii.(A), the recorder shall inform the appropriate election official 932 
who:  933 
i. shall: 934 

(A) if practicable, remove the candidate's name from the ballot 935 
by blacking out the candidate's name before the ballots are 936 
delivered to voters; or 937 

(B) if removing the candidate's name from the ballot is not 938 
practicable, inform the voters by any practicable method 939 
that the candidate has been disqualified and that votes cast 940 
for the candidate will not be counted; and 941 

ii. may not count any votes for that candidate. 942 
b. Notwithstanding Subsection 6.a. a candidate who files a campaign 943 

finance statement seven days before a city general election is not 944 
disqualified if: 945 
i. the statement details accurately and completely the information 946 

required under Subsection (2)(b), except for inadvertent 947 
omissions or insignificant errors or inaccuracies; and 948 

ii. the omissions, errors, or inaccuracies are corrected in an 949 
amended report or in the next scheduled report. 950 

7. A campaign finance statement required under this section is considered 951 
filed if it is received in the recorder's office by 5 p.m. on the date that is it 952 
due. 953 

8.  954 
a. A private party in interest may bring a civil action in district court to 955 

enforce the provisions of this section or an ordinance adopted under 956 
this section. 957 

b. In a civil action under Subsection 8.a., the court may award costs 958 
and attorney fees to the prevailing party.  959 

960 



27 

 

CHAPTER 7 961 

GOVERNMENT RECORDS 962 

2.07.010 General 963 
2.07.020 Retention Schedule 964 
2.07.030 Records requests 965 
2.07.040 Fees 966 
2.07.050 Fee Waiver 967 
2.07.060 Appeals 968 

2.07.010: GENERAL 969 

All government records of the City shall be maintained, classified and accessed 970 
in accordance with the Government Records Access and Management Act set 971 
forth in Utah Code. 972 

2.07.020: RETENTION SCHEDULE 973 

All government records of the City shall be retained in accordance with the Utah 974 
Municipal General Records Retention Schedule (1998), as updated, which is 975 
hereby adopted by reference as the Syracuse City Records Retention Schedule. 976 

2.07.030: RECORDS REQUESTS 977 

Any person requesting a record shall file a written Government Records Access 978 
and Management Request Form as provided by the City. Such requests shall be 979 
submitted and processed in accordance with the Government Records Access 980 
and Management Act. 981 

2.07.040: FEES 982 

The City may charge reasonable fees to cover the City’s actual cost of providing 983 
a record. Fees for providing a record shall be adopted and may be amended as 984 
part of the City’s Fee Schedule. When the City compiles a records in a form other 985 
than that normally maintained by the City in response to a records request, the 986 
actual costs for compiling the record may include those costs set forth in Utah 987 
Code; provided, no charge may be made for the first quarter hour of staff time. 988 
The City may require payment of past fees and future estimated fees before 989 
beginning to process a request if: (1) fees are expected to exceed fifty dollars 990 
($50.00); or (2) the requester has not paid fees from previous requests. Any 991 
prepaid amount in excess of fees due shall be returned to the requester. 992 

2.07.050: FEE WAIVER 993 

In accordance with Utah Code, the City may fulfill a record request without 994 
charge when it determines that: 995 

1.   releasing the record primarily benefits the public rather than a 996 
person; 997 



28 

 

2.   the individual requesting the record is the subject of the record, or an 998 
individual specified in Subsections 63-2-202(1) or (2) of the Act; or 999 

3.   the requester’s legal rights are directly implicated by the information 1000 
in the record and the requester is impecunious. 1001 

2.07.060: APPEALS 1002 

Any person aggrieved by the City’s access determination made or fees imposed 1003 
under this Chapter may appeal the determination, or fee assessed, within thirty 1004 
(30) days to the Mayor in accordance with the provisions set forth in Utah Code. 1005 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING TITLE II REWRITES OF THE 

SYRACUSE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO 

ADMINISTRATION. 
 

 WHEREAS, due to the pace of growth in the City there are from time to time small 

proposed changes to various City ordinances that are warranted; and 
 

WHEREAS, these small proposed changes come to the attention of City staff through 

varied means including but not limited to questions, concerns or complaints from the general 

public and or from developers that are seeking clarification on the language in the City code; and  
 

WHEREAS, staff takes each question or concern under consideration and addresses it on 

case-by-case basis in a fair and judicious manner paying specific attention to the reasonableness 

and legality of the request as well as the reasonableness and legality of the City’s own 

ordinances; and  
 

WHEREAS, after such consideration staff will either support and sustain current 

ordinances as adopted or in other cases staff will research and address each proposed change and 

put forth amendments to existing ordinances; and 
 

WHEREAS, staff now hereby wishes to adopt the rewrite of Titles I and II to address 

such proposed changes. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF  

SYRACUSE CITY, STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Amendment.  The Syracuse City Municipal Code is hereby amended as 

put forth in Exhibit ‘A’. 

 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, part or provision of this Ordinance is held 

invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of 

this Ordinance, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  

 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective twenty (20) days 

after publication or posting.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SYRACUSE CITY,  

STATE OF UTAH, THIS 10
th

 DAY OF JULY, 2012.  

 

SYRACUSE CITY 

ATTEST: 

 

 

              

Cassie Z. Brown, City Recorder   Mayor Jamie Nagle 

 



 2 

 

Voting by the City Council: 

 

“AYE”  “NAY” 

 

Councilmember Duncan                 

Councilmember Johnson               

Councilmember Lisonbee               

Councilmember Peterson               

Councilmember Shingleton                      

 

 


	07-10-12 Work Session Agend
	b.0 Memo- Report on Heritage Days
	d.0 Memo- Presentation from Citizens for a Better Syracuse and Syracuse Arts Academy
	d.1 pc MINUTES re Arts Academy 1.17.06
	d.2 CC Mtg - Jan 24, 2006
	d.3 PC Mtg - Sept 16, 2008
	d.4 PC Mtg - Oct 7, 2008
	d.5 CC Mtg  - Oct 28, 2008
	e.0 Memo- Ad Hoc Committee
	07-10-12 Regular Meeting Agenda
	2.0 Memo re- Excellence Award
	2.1 Memo re-Excellence Award
	3.0 Memo- Council Minutes
	3.a 02-14-12 draft minutes
	3.b 03-14-12 draft minutes
	5.0 Memo- R12-19 for proposed fee schedule
	5.1 R12-19 adopting the FY 2012-2013 fee schedule
	5.2 Proposed Fee Schedule - FY2012 - 2013
	6.0 Memo- Metro Swat Agreement
	6.1 Metro Swat Agreement
	7.0 Memo- Ord. 12-19 Prohibiting Fireworks
	7.1 Ordinance 12-19, Prohibiting Fireworks and Open Fires 2012
	8.0 Memo- Res. 12-20 Format Council Minutes
	8.1 Memo re Council minute format
	8.2 R12-20, format for council minutes
	9.0 Memo R12-21 , rescinding R08-23 re electronic meetings
	9.1 R12-21 , rescinding R08-23 re electronic meetings
	10.0 Memo -Ord. 12-18 General Plan Update
	10.1 Ord 12-18 GP Dist One Update
	11.0 Memo- Ord. No. 12-20, Title Two
	11.1 Merged Administrative Title Memo for July 10
	Administrative Title Memo
	Table of Enumerated Powers
	Version A
	Version B


	11.2 Ord 12-20, adopting Title 2

